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Financial Highlights

Years ended in millions except per share amounts and employee figures

May 25, 2008 May 27, 2007 May 28,2006 May 29,2005 May 30, 2004

OPERATING RESULTS
Net sales $1,885.9 $1,9299 $2,158.1 $1,913.1 $1,983.1
Net income’ $3323 $375.3 $4492 $456.8 $2828

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic! $1.3 iz $132 $1.29 $0.79
Diluted' $1.26 $1.12 $126 $1.22 $0.73

Weighted-average common and
potential common shares outstanding:

Basic 2528 3195 339.8 353.9 3610
Diluted 264.3 334.2 3570 3739 388.5
FINANCIAL POSITION AT YEAR-END
Total assets? $21491 $2246.8 $2,552.6 $2,545.7 $2,280.4
Long-term debt $1.4148 $206 $211 $23.0 $-
OTHER DATA
Research and development $3630 $363.7 $326.6 $333.0 $357.1
Capital additions $1113 $106.6 $163.3 $96.6 $215.3
Cash dividends declared and paid $50.6 5451 $34.2 $141 §-
Number of employees fin thousands) 13 16 8.5 8.5 9.7

; Amounts for fiscal 2005 have been revised (see Note 1 to tha Consolidated Financial Statements).
Amounts for fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005 have been revised {see Nota 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).
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Letter to Shareholders

National

Dear Shareholders,

In our FYO7 annual report to shareholders, we introduced National's
evolution from our successful corporate directive of “60/30/30"
(achieving 60 percent gross margin with 30 percent combined
spending for R&D and SG&A, in order to drap at least 30 percent
to operating margin) to "National 3.0,” a company using its energy-
efficient PowerWise® technology and family of more than 300
PowerWise products to solve real-world problems. We also introduced
an eye-catching, iconic figure {pictured above), the "PowerWise Guy”
superhero.

What if we now;, as an industry, joined our PowerWise Guy in his
fourngy to outer space and locked back at the planet with him
and asked, "Tell us your concerns and how ws, the semiconductor
industry, can help?” And, we most assuredly would hear the planet
cry out, "Energy costs are soaring, and the world is dumping tens of
mitlions of metric tons daily of CO, into my atmosphere, using more
and more energy, and trying to generate more and more energy with
fuel and coal. And, healthcare costs are soaring out of sight, leaving
my inhabitants to pay exorbitant healthcare fees or, more sadly, to
suffer the consequences of going without healthcare. Shootings,
bombings, fires and terrorism leave scars on my surface and fears
in the hearts of my inhabitants for lack of adequate warning systems
and sensing devices. Technalogy can take a huge bite out of each of
these problems...so that, Mr. Semiconductor Industry, is how you
can help.”

The Intentions of Qur Inventions

Many companies in the semiconductor industry may want to answer
back, “Sorry, Planet, we'll have to get back to you on those. Right
now, we're busy spending our R&D dollars, so our customers can
put 10,000 songs on their MP3 players.” Qr, "We're busy driving the
megapixels in our cameras to a resolution that will force us all to
upgrade our hard disks to hold all of our pictures.” Or, “We're busy
doubling the planet's data centers to store the exponentially growing
number of YouTube videos which will, at the current cooling and
power consumption levels, dump even mare millions of tons of CO,
into the air.”

Okay, our industry is guilty as charged. Even we, at National, took
a bow enjoying the fact that we created the driver for the display
technology in the most exciting music and video phone introduced
last year {and enhanced this summer). We, like our peers, are still
proud of enabling longer battery life and enhancing features such as
lighting in handhelds but, in fairness, if you'll recall last year’s letter to
you, | said we would focus on a BHAG, a "Big Hairy Audacious Goal:”
Save the world’s energy. As we committed to you, we are investing
an increasingly large amaunt of our R&D dollars on this BHAG and on
dealing with the world's necessities. We characterize the strength of
the company as initiatives focused on improving energy efficiency...
particularly with our PowerWise technology. This is evident by our
advantage of having first solutions in the marketplace, and this
strength in energy efficiency represents opportunities for growth
going forward. But, first, here’s a recap of the year:

A Good Year...

FY08 capped off a very important year for National Semiconductor.
It was our fifth year of ROIC (Return on Invested Capital) above 20
percent, which puts us in an elite group of S&P 500 companies who
can claim that accomplishment. It was a year where our gross margins
found histeric highs, and we grew earnings per share by more than 12
percent over last year. It was a year of increasing value to customers
which translated into higher ASPs {Average Selling Prices} for our
products, contrary to our sector average. And, it was another year of
manufacturing cost reduction “high fives.” Speaking of manufacturing,
it was yet anather year of hearing from our customers that National’s
service, supply chain and logistics machine is "head and shoulders
ahove other suppliers.” And, on top of all that, it was another year of
large share count reductions as we haught back over $2 bitlion of our
stock during the year (and over $4 billion in the past four years| as
well as leveraged our balance sheet with a strong, investment-grade
credit rating. But setting all of this aside, more importantly, it was the
first year of National 3.0, a company driving more innovatian through
collaboration and moving R&D dollars more and more into creating
solutions for new megatrends. .. quality-of-life megatrends,




Energy Generation Built on Strength in Energy Efficiency
Building on our strength in energy efficiency, we introduced our
new SolarMagic™ technalegy in June. Unlike other semiconductor
companies that address solar cell technolegy, our announcement
demonstrated how we applied our circuit technology to dramatically
improve the efficiency of existing and future solar cells with our bolt-
on SolarMagic madule. Initially targeted at improving the efficiency of
a solar cell under adverse conditions such as shade or bird droppings,
dust or glass nonconformity, future generations of our SolarMagic
product family will include even more features and aptimization for
both residential and commercial installations. This same technology
can be used to optimize energy generated by batteries in electric
vehicles and applied to maximize the effectiveness of other forms
of alternative energies. (By the way, the name “magic” came from
one of our potential customers after seeing an early-stage demo of
our SotarMagic technology. “This stuff is magic!,” exclaimed the
observer.)

Using PowerWise Products for Better Energy Storage
What if you could fully charge your cell phone in just a few minutes
versus the hours it takes today? Or, what if that new Tesla Roadster,
the all-electric sports car that uses so many of National's Power\Wise
circuits, could take you from San Francisco to Los Angeles and
be completely recharged in the time it takes to grab an In-N-Cut
burger in Santa Barbara? Though further down the road, our first
demonstrations say we can do this.

Tapping PowerWise Technology for Effective Energy
Distribution

Whether we get excited about it or not, YouTube and other such video-
rich applications are definitely here to stay. The enormous number
of new data centers and new power plants required to drive robust
video boggles the mind. National continues to develop PowerWise
AVS {Adaptive Voltage Scaling) technology to enable the big digital
chips used in those powerful data center servers to consume much
less power and require significantly Jess cooling. We know we can
do this.

Adopting PowerWise Solutions for Greater Energy
Conservation

One of the reasons that healthcare costs are soaring is due to
expensive diagnostic equipment with power-hungry, oversampling
anatog front ends and Moore's Law power-hogging processors that
require extensive power supplies in hospitals and clinics. Medical
diagnastic technology is, therefore, still in the “centralized mode”
much like the days of mainframe computers when people brought
their camputer programs in a stack of cards te the "timeshare”
service center to run payroll, etc, This is much the same as we
frequently schedule appointments to venture aut to have our x-rays,
MRIs, ultrasounds and mammograms. What if we created new ways

of analog conversion to get an even higher resolution image while
dramatically lowering the power required...so much lower that
the diagnostic machine could run on batteries? And, what if this
diagnostic machine could be bought at the local drug store to use
at home with the resultant images being sent to medical experts to
review over the Internet? Then, we would have “distributed” medical
care much the same as computing is distributed today with people
having one or more PCs in their homes connected online.

Advancements in analog can also be applied to keep us more safe
and secure. What if, for instance, low power-consuming sensing
and detecting devices could be put into self-powering sensors in
classroom thermostats to detect the sound of a gunshot and initiate
a campus shutdown procedure automatically? Unfortunately, we can
count the number of lives in recent incidences that would have been
saved. The same analog technology could also be used in cargo ship
containers to detect tampering, the presence af humans, explosives
or deadty gases, and flag the incoming port inspectors to “inspect
me first.” Early detection and location of forest fires, wireless sensor
netwaorks of inexpensive cameras working together to identify known
terrorists, and many mare applications are possible.

National Is Responding

The semiconductor industry, and National in particular, is responsible
and responsive, especially as new "necessity-based markets” begin
to ramp. The collective industry profit dollars invested in R&D for
these quality-of-life megatrends will be staggering. National was in
the fortunate and unigue position of being the power management
market leader when the current energy crisis hit our planet. We're
proud to have taken a leadership pasition in applying our PowerWise
technology to the solutions that really matter, especially in the
generation and conservation of energy. And, in so doing, we are
improving the quality of life and inching closer to our BHAG of “saving
the world's energy” and, at the same time, continuing to produce
superior returns on our invested capital.

Thank You

Thank you for the confidence you've had in this company over our
transformation and, now, the strategic direction driving our future
growth. Thank you for owning shares of National Semiconductor.

Sincerealy,

Brian L. Halla
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
These statements are based on our current expectations and could be affected by the uncertainties
and risk factors described throughout this filing and particularly in Part | of Form 10-K “item 1A; Risk
Factors” and the business outlook section in Part It of Form 10-K "“ltem 7: Management'’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” These statements relate to, among
other things, sales, gross margins, operating expenses, capital expenditures, R&D efforts,
acquisitions of and investments in other companies, and asset dispositions and are indicated by
words or phrases such as “anticipate,” “expect,” “outlook,” “foresee,” “believe,” “could,” “intend,”
“will,” and similar words or phrases. These statements involve risks and uncertainties that could
cause actual results to differ materially from expectations. These forward-looking statements should
not be relied upon as predictions of future events as we cannot assure you that the events or
circumstances reflected in these statements will be achieved or will occur. For a discussion of some
of the factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our forward-looking statements,
ses the discussion on “Risk Factors” that appears in Part |, Item 1A of this 2008 Form 10-K and other
risks and uncertainties detailed in this and our other reports and filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission {(SEC). We undertake no obligation to update forward-looking statements to
reflect developments or information obtained after the date hereof and disclaim any obligation to do
s0,

Overview

We are one of the world's leading semiconductor companies focused on analog and mixed-signal
integrated circuits. Founded in 1959, we design, develop, manufacture and market high-value,
high-performance, analog-intensive solutions that provide more energy efficiency, greater
portability, better audio, sharper images and higher performance in electronic systems. We have a
diversified product portfolio which includes products such as power management circuits, audio and
operational amplifiers, display drivers, communication interface products, and data conversion
solutions. Qur portfolio of over 13,000 products is sold to a diversified group of end-customers.
Energy-efficiency is our overarching theme and our Powerwise® products enable systems that
consume less power, extend battery life and generate less heat. We target a broad range of markets
and applications such as:

¢ wireless handsets * automotive applications

* wireless basestations + factory and office automation
* networks * medical applications

* industrial markets * photovoltaic systems

« a broad range of portable applications

We benefit from an extensive intellectual property portfolio that includes more than 3,000
patents. We are focused on supporting the innovation needed for a strong new product development
pipeline. For fiscal 2008, our net sales were $1.9 hillion, our operating income was $509.1 million and
our net income was $332.3 million.

A large partion of our sales come from analog products that are classified within the standard
linear categories (as defined by the World Semiconductor Trade Statistics or WSTS). Standard linear
products are defined by WSTS as amplifiers, data converters, regulators and references (power
management), and interface products, representing the fundamental circuits that eiectronic systems
need in order to deal with continuously varying signals of the real world, such as light, sound,
pressure, temperature and speed. Within the standard linear analog market, our greatest strengths
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have historically been in the power management, amplifier, and interface areas. We focus on high
performance opportunities within the standard linear market, as high performance integrated circuits
both have the most stringent performance requirements, enabling us to add the most value to our
customers, and tend to be more proprietary in nature, typically resulting in higher gross margins.

Approximately 98 percent of our revenue in fiscal 2008 was generated from analog-based
products. Our operations are organized into two groups: the Power Management Group and the
Signal Path Group. The Power Management Group is responsible primarily for designing and
developing a wide range of integrated circuits that convert and regulate voltages to ensure that
electronic systems operate to their fullest potential with the lowest overall power consumption or the
highest energy efficiency. The Signal Path Group primarily supplies integrated circuits that handle the
requisite analog technology for information or data as it travels from the point where it enters the
electronic system, and is conditioned, converted and processed to the point where it is sent out. In
addition to providing real world interfaces, these products are used extensively in signal
conditioning, signal conversion {from analog to digital and vice versa) and high-speed interfacing
applications.

National was incorporated in the state of Delaware in 1959 and our headquarters have been in
Santa Clara, California since 1967. Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange
under the trading symbol “NSM.” Qur fiscal year ends on the last Sunday of May and references in
this document to fiscal 2008 refer to our fiscal year ended May 25, 2008. References to fiscal 2007
refer to our fiscal year ended May 27, 2007 and references to fiscal 2006 refer to our fiscal year ended
May 28, 2006. Our fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 each were 52-week years. On our “Investor Relations"”
website, located at www.national.com, we post the following filings as soon as reasonably
practicable after they are electronically filed with or furnished to the SEC: our annual report on
Form 10-K, our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, our current reports on Form 8-K, our proxy statement
and any amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Exchange Act. All of the filings on our website are available free of charge. We also maintain certain
corporate governance documents on our website, including our Code of Conduct and Ethics,
Governance Committee Charter, Compensation Committee Charter, Audit Committee Charter and
other Governance Policies. We will provide a printed copy of any of these documents to any
shareholder who requests it. We do not intend for information found on our website to be part of this
document or part of any other report or filing with the SEC.

Recent Highlights

Throughout fiscal 2008, we continued to focus on analog product areas, particularly higher-
performance, higher-value areas where we are able to leverage the increasing need for energy
efficiency. As a part of our business focus, we periodically identify opportunities to improve our cost
structure or to divest or reduce involvement in product areas that are not in line with our business
objectives, as well as pursue acquisitions or business investments to gain access to key technologies
that we believe augment our existing technical capability and support our business objectives. For
example, in January 2008, we announced that we would dispose of certain manufacturing equipment
and reduce the workforce at our wafer fabrication facilities as part of an action to modernize our
facilities and rationalize our capacity. In April 2008, we announced a workforce reduction, primarily in
product line and support functions, as part of our effort to strategically align resources in connection
with our focus on accelerating revenue growth in key market areas that require better power
management and energy efficiency.

In June 2007, our Board of Directors approved (i) a $1.5 billion accelerated stock repurchase

program; and (i) an additional $500 million stock repurchase program similar to our existing stock
repurchase program announced in March 2007. We entered into two agreements with Goldman,
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Sachs & Co. (Goldman Sachs) to conduct the accelerated stock repurchase program. See Note 12 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements for a more complete discussion of these agreements. We also
entered into a $1.5 billion unsecured bridge credit facility with an affiliate of Goldman Sachs and used
the funds to finance the accelerated stock repurchase. See Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for a more complete discussion of the credit facility which was subsequently repaid. The
$1.5 billion accelerated stock repurchase program was completed in December 2007 with a total of
58.0 million shares repurchased.

In connection with the accelerated stock repurchase program, we completed a public offering
of $1.0 billion of senior unsecured notes in June 2007. The net proceeds from this offering were used
to partially repay indebtedness under the unsecured bridge credit facility used to finance the
accelerated stock repurchase. In July 2007, we entered into a $500 million unsecured term loan with a
consortium of banks and used the funds to repay the remaining amounts outstanding under the
unsecured bridge credit facility. See Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a more
complete discussion of the senior unsecured notes and the bank term loan.

In addition to the accelerated stock repurchase program, we repurchased an additional
27.9 million shares of our common stock during fiscal 2008 for $623.5 million as part of two
$500 million stock repurchase programs: (i) the $500 million stock repurchase program announced in
March 2007 and {ii} the $500 million stock repurchase program announced in June 2007, All of these
shares were repurchased in the open market. For all of fiscal 2008, we repurchased a total of
85.9 million shares of our common stock for $2,123.5 million through both the $1.5 billion accelerated
stock repurchase program and the two $500 million stock repurchase programs.

We also continued our dividend program in fiscal 2008, during which time we paid a total of
$50.6 million in cash dividends. Subsequent to fiscal year end, on June 3, 2008, our Board of
Direcdtors declared a cash dividend of $0.06 per outstanding share of commaon stock, which was paid
on July 7, 2008 to shareholders of record at the close of business on June 16, 2008.

Products

Semiconductors are integrated circuits {in which a number of transistors and other elements are
combined to form a more complicated circuit) or discrete devices (such as individual transistors}. In
an integrated circuit, various components are fabricated in a small area or “chip” of silicon, which is
then encapsulated in plastic, ceramic or other advanced forms of packaging and can then be
connected to a circuit board or substrate.

We manufacture an extensive range of analog intensive and mixed-signal integrated circuits,
which are used in numerous applications. While no precise industry definition exists for analog and
mixed-signal devices, we consider products which process analog information or convert
analog-to-digital or digital-to-analog as analog and mixed-signal devices.

We are a leading supplier of analog and mixed-signal products, serving both broad based
markets such as the industrial, communications, computing, consumer, medical and automotive
markets, and more narrowly defined markets such as wireless handsets, displays, personal
computers and communications infrastructure. Our analog and mixed-signal devices include:

* operational and audio amplifiers * communication interface circuits

* power references, regulators and « flat panel display drivers and
switches signal processors

* analog-to-digital or digital-to-analog + radio frequency integrated circuits
converters
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Other product offerings that are not analog or mixed-signal include microcontrollers and
embedded Bluetooth™ solutions that collectively serve a wide variety of applications in the wireless,
personal computer, industrial, automotive, consumer and communication markets.

Our diverse portfolio of intellectual property enables us to develop building block products,
application-specific standard products and custom large-scale integrations for our customers. Qur
high-performance building blocks and application-specific standard products allow our customers to
solve challenging technical problems and to differentiate their systems in a way that is beneficial to
the end user.

With our leadership in innovative packaging and analog process technology, we can address
growth opportunities that depend upon the critical elements of efficiency, physical size and
performance. We directly service top tier original equipment manufacturers (OEMs) in a number of
markets and we reach a broader range of customers through our franchised distributors.

Corporate Organization

During fiscal 2008, our business operations were organized in two groups: the Power Management
Group and the Signal Path Group. Each group is responsible for various product line business units.
Many of our products in each group are part of our Powerwise® portfolio of products, which are parts
that are deemed to be highly energy efficient relative to the function they are performing.

Power Management Group

The Power Management Group includes four different business units in the power management
area: Advanced Power, Infrastructure Power, Mobile Devices Power and Performance Power. The
Power Management Group also contains the ASIC & Telecom business unit.

Power management refers to the conversion and management of power consumption in
electronic systems. Integrated circuits such as digital processors, analog-to-digital converters and
light emitting diodes each require different power sources to operate efficiently. Power management
integrated circuits convert and regulate voltages to ensure that electronic systems operate to their
fullest potential while achieving the lowest overall power consumption. Our high-performance power
management portfolio provides valuable solutions to our customers to solve design problems in
space and energy-constrained applications from feature-rich handheld devices to large line-powered
systems. We are focusing efforts on developing power management circuits for energy conservation
applications.

The four business units that address power management design, develop and manufacture a
wide range of products including:

+ high-efficiency switching voltage regulators and controllers
* high-performance low drop-out voltage regulators

+ accurate LED drivers

* precision voltage references

+ battery management integrated circuits

Mobile Pixel Link (MPL) serial bridges

« display drivers

We are growing our power management business by balancing our focus between broad
customer needs and specific target markets. We continue to strengthen our broad portfolio of power
management integrated circuits which can address customer needs in a variety of end markets such
as consumer, industrial, medical, automotive and communications infrastructure. At the same time,
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we focus on markets, such as personal mobile devices, which can provide more rapid growth
opportunities from customers that value the performance our products deliver, such as energy
efficiency and size or heat reduction.

We continue to enhance the performance of power management building blocks in terms of
providing greater efficiency, increased power density, tighter accuracy and wider voltage ranges.
These building block products serve as the foundation for the development of highly integrated
application-specific standard products for high volume applications.

The ASIC & Telecom business unit supplies user-designed application-specific products in the
form of standard cells, gate arrays and full custom devices. This business unit also supplies key
telecommunications components for analog and digital line cards, as well as 8-bit and 16-bit
microcontrollers.

Signal Path Group

Key business units under the Signal Path Group include the Amplifiers, Audio, Data Conversion and
Interface business units, as well as Hi-Rel operations. The signal path refers to the analog technology
that is applied to the path that information or data travels along from the point where it enters the
electronic equipment and is conditioned, converted and processed to the point where it is sent out.
Our signal path products provide a vital technology link that allows the user to connect to digital
information and are used to enable and enrich the user experience of sight and sound from many
electronic applications. In addition to providing the real-world interfaces, signal path products are
used extensively in signal conditioning, signal conversion {from analog-to-digital and vice versa} and
high-speed signal interfacing applications.

The Signal Path Group designs, develops and manufactures a wide range of products
including:

* high-speed and precision operattonal amplifiers

high-fidelity, low-power audio amplifiers

* high-speed and precision analog-to-digital converters and digital-to-analog converters
* precision timing products

* high-speed communication interface and signal-conditioning products

¢ thermal management products

We are expanding our presence in key market segments by developing more
high-performance analog products that can address applications in the consumer, industrial,
medical, automotive and communications infrastructure markets. With our growing product portfolio
of high-performance building blocks, we continue to improve performance by providing greater
precision, higher speed and lower power which our customers value, These building block products
serve as the starting point for the development of highly integrated application-specific standard
products for high volume applications.

The Hi-Rel business unit of the Signal Path Group supplies integrated circuits and contract
services to the high reliability market, which includes avionics, defense and aerospace customers.

Worldwide Marketing and Sales Group, Technology Development Group and Manufacturing
Operations Group

Separate from our business operating groups, our corporate structure in fiscal 2008 includes a
centralized Worldwide Marketing and Sales Group, a Technology Development Group and a
Manufacturing Operations Group.
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The Worldwide Marketing and Sales Group is our global sales and marketing organization
organized around the four major regions of the world where we operate. We define our four major
regions as the Americas, Asia Pacific, Europe and Japan which is not a part of the Asia Pacific region.
Reference to these regions elsewhere in this document is based on this definition.

The Technology Development Group is a centralized worldwide organization primarily
responsible for process development, technology infrastructure, quality assurance and shared
engineering services. Process development consists of research in and development of proprietary
processes for the manufacture of our products. Technology infrastructure provides a range of
process libraries, product cores and software, and the selection and support of computer aided
design tools used in the design, layout and simulation of our products. Engineering services provide
test development and reliability services used broadly across our product lines.

The Manufacturing Operations Group is a centralized worldwide organization that manages all
production, including outsourced manufacturing, global logistics and packaging technology.

Segment Financial Information and Geographic Information

For segment reporting purposes, each of our product line business units represents an operating
segment as defined under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131, Disclosures about
Segments of an Enterprise and Refated information. Business units that have similarities, including
economic characteristics, underlying technology, markets and customers, are aggregated into larger
segments. Under the criteria in SFAS No. 131, Analog is our only reportable segment for fiscal 2008.
The remaining business units that are not included in the Analog reportable segment are grouped as
“All Others.”

Our business is dependent on the success of our Analog segment since it represents
approximately 98 percent of our sales in fiscal 2008. Consequently, the Analog segment faces the
same risks as those for the company as a whole including risks attendant to cur foreign operations.
For a more complete discussion of those risks, see the section under Risk Factors that appears in
Part I, Item 1A of this Form 10-K.

For further financial information on the Analog reportable segment, as well as geographic
information, refer to the information contained in Note 15, “Segment and Geographic Information,”
in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in ltem 8.

Marketing and Sales
We market our products globally to OEMs and original design manufacturers (ODMs) through a direct
sales force. Some of our major OEMs include:

* Apple * Panasonic « Siemens

* LG Electronics * Research in Motion Ltd * Sony Ericsson Mobile
* L.M. Ericsson * Robert Bosch Communications

* Motorola * Samsung » Tektronix

* Nokia + Seagate

* Nokia Siemens Network ¢ Sharp

It is becoming increasingty commeon in the technology industry for OEMs to use contract
manufacturers to build their products and ODMs to design and build products. As a result, our design
wins with major OEMs, particularly in the computing and cellular phone markets, can ultimately
result in sales to a third party contract manufacturer or ODM.
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In addition to our direct sales force, we use distributors in our four geographic business
regions, and approximately 54 percent of our fiscal 2008 net sales were made to distributors. In line
with industry practices, we generally credit distributors for the effect of price reductions on their
inventory of our products and, under specific conditions, we repurchase products that we have
discontinued. Distributors do not have the right to return product except under customary warranty
provisions. The programs we offer to cur distributors include the following:

* Allowances involving pricing and volume. We refer to this as the “contract sales debit”
program,
* Allowances for inventory scrap. We refer to this as the “scrap allowance” program,

Under the contract sales debit program, products are sold to distributors at standard prices
published in price books that are broadly provided to our various distributors. Distributors are
required to pay for this product within our standard commercial terms. After the initial purchase of
the product, the distributor has the opportunity to request a price allowance for a particular part
number depending on the current market conditions for that specific part as well as volume
considerations. This request is made prior to the distributor reselling the part. Once we have
approved an allowance to the distributor, the distributor proceeds with the resale of the product and
credits are issued to the distributor in accordance with the specific allowance that we approved.
Periodically, we issue new distributor price books. For those parts for which the standard prices have
been reduced, we provide an immediate credit to distributors for inventory quantities they have on
hand.

Under the scrap allowance program, centain distributors are given a contractually defined
allowance to cover the cost of any scrap they might incur. The amount of the allowance is specifically
agreed upon with each distributor.

Our regiona! facilities in the United States, Europe, Japan and Asia Pacific region handle local
customer support. These customer support centers respond to inquiries on product pricing and
availability, pre-sale customer technical support requests, order entry and scheduling, and post-sale
support under our product warranty provisions. The technical support provided to our customers
consists of marketing activities that occur prior to sale of product to our customers and for which we
have no contractual obligation and no fees are charged. Technical support consists primarily of aiding
customers in product selection and answering questions about our products.

We augment our sales effort with application engineers based in the field. These engineers are
specialists in various aspects of our product portfolio and work with customers to identify and design
our integrated circuits into customers’ products and applications. These engineers also help identify
emerging markets for new products and are supported by our design centers in the field or at
manufacturing sites.

We also provide web-based, on-line tools that allow customers and potential customers to
select our devices, create a design using our parts, and simulate performance of that design.

Customers

Our top ten customers combined represented approximately 58 percent of total accounts receivable
at May 25, 2008 and approximately 62 percent at May 27, 2007.
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Net sales to major customers as a percentage of total net sales were as follows:

May 25, May 27, May 28,

Years Ended: 2008 2007 2006
Distributor:
Avnet 15% 14% 12%
Arrow 12% 13% 12%
OEM:
Nokia 1% * *
* less than 10% »

Although we do not have any other customers with sales greater than 10 percent, we do have
several other large OEM customers that manufacture and market wireless handsets and other
electronic products. These customers typically purchase a range of different products from us. If any
one of these customers were to cease purchasing products from us within a very short timeframe,
such as within one quarter, it could have a negative impact on our financial results for that period,

Backloyg .

In accordance with industry practice, we frequently revise semiconductor backlog quantities and
shipment schedules under outstanding purchase orders to reflect changes in customer needs. We
rarely formally enforce binding agreements for the sale of specific quantities at specific prices that are
contractually subject to price or guantity revisions, consistent with industry practice. For these
reasons, we do not believe it is meaningful to disclose the amount of backlog at any particular date.

Seasonality

We are affected by the seasonal trends in the semiconductor and related industries. We typically
experience sequentially lower sales in our first and third fiscal quarters, primarily due to customer
vacation and holiday schedules. Sales usually reach a seasonal peak in our fourth fiscal quarter. This
typical seasonal trend did not occur during fiscal 2008 since 1) sales in our first quarter of fiscal 2008
were 3 percent higher than sales in the previous fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 and 2) our fiscal 2008
sales peaked in the second quarter of fiscal 2008, Sales in the third quarter of fiscal 2008 declined
nearly 9 percent compared to the previous second quarter due to a combination of lower demand in
the wireless handset market and holiday seasonality. Although sales in the last quarter of fiscal 2008
increased sequentially over the third quarter level, sales in the fourth quarter were lower than sales in
each of the first two quarters of fiscal 2008.

Manufacturing

The design of semiconductor and integrated circuit products is shaped by general market needs and
customer requirements. Following product design and development, we generally produce
integrated circuits in the following steps:

» Wafer Fabrication. Product designs are compiled and digitized by state of the art design
equipment and then transferred to silicon wafers in a series of complex precision processes
that include oxidation, lithography, chemical etching, diffusion, deposition, implantation and
metallization.

+ Wafer Sort. The silicon wafers are tested and separated into individual circuit devices.

* Product Assembly. Tiny wires are used to connect the electronic circuits on the device to
the stronger metal leads of the package in which the device is encapsulated for protection.
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* Final Test. The devices are subjected to a series of vigorous tests using computerized circuit
testers and, for certain applications, environmental testers such as burn-in ovens,
centrifuges, temperature cycle or moisture resistance testers, salt atmosphere testers and
thermal shock testers.

* Coating. Certain devices in the analog portfolio are designed to be used without traditional
packaging. In this case, the integrated circuit is coated with a protective material to allow
mounting directly onto a circuit board.

Our product groups are supported by our global manufacturing infrastructure. We have
developed a number of proprietary manufacturing processes and packaging technologies to support
our broad portfolio of analog products. Substantially all of our products are manufactured in our
three wafer fabrication facilities in Maine, Texas and Scotland. Assembly and test are performed
primarily at our facilities in Malaysia and China. At times and as needed, we outsource certain
manufacturing functions to address capacity and other economic issues.

Our wafer manufacturing processes include Bipolar, Metal Oxide Silicon, Complementary
Metal Oxide Silicon and Bipolar Complementary Metal Oxide Silicon technologies, including Silicon
Germanium. QOur efforts are heavily focused on proprietary processes that support our analog
portfolio of products, which address wireless handsets, other personal mobile devices and a broad
variety of other electronic applications. The feature size of the individual transistors on a chip is
measured in microns; one micron equals one millionth of a meter. As products decrease in size and
increase in functionality, our wafer fabrication facilities must be able to manufacture integrated
circuits with sub-micran circuit pattern widths. This precision fabrication carries over to assembly
and test operations, where advanced packaging technology and comprehensive testing are required
to address the ever increasing performance and complexity embedded in integrated circuits.

Raw Materials

Qur manufacturing processes use certain key raw materials critical to our products. These include
silicon wafers, certain chemicals and gases, ceramic and plastic packaging materials and various
precious metals. We also rely on subcontractors to supply finished or semi-finished products which
we then market through our sales channels. We obtain raw materials and semi-finished or finished
products from various sources, although the number of sources for any particular material or product
is relatively limited. We believe our current supply of essential materials is sufficient to meet our
needs. However, shortages have occurred from time to time and could occur again. Significant
increases in demand, rapid product mix changes or natural disasters could affect our ability to
procure materials or goods.

Research and Development

Our research and development efforts consist of research in metallurgical, electro-mechanical and
solid-state sciences, manufacturing process development and product design. Research and
develapment of most process technologies are conducted by our Technology Development Group.
Specific product design and development is generally done in our business units. Total research and
development expenses were $363.0 million for fiscal 2008, or 19 percent of net sales, compared to
$363.7 million for fiscal 2007, or 19 percent of net sales, and $326.6 million for fiscal 2006, or
15 percent of net sales.

Although R&D expenses in fiscal 2008 were at a comparable level to R&D expenses in fiscal
2007, we have continued to increase our investment in research and development on analog product
areas. Share-based compensation expense included in R&D expense for fiscal 2008 was $27.3 million
compared to fiscal 2007 which was $31.7 million. This decrease in share-based compensation
expenses more than offset higher spending in fiscal 2008 resulting from the acquisition of Xignal
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Technologies AG {Xignal) in January 2007, as well as higher payroll and employee benefits expenses.
We are continuing to concentrate our research and development spending on analog products and
underlying analog capabilities such as DC to DC power conversion, signal conditioning, high-speed
amplification and low-power analog-to-digital conversion. During fiscal 2008, research and
development spending in the Analog segment was 3 percent higher compared to fiscal 2007 and we
continue to invest in the development of new analog products that can serve applications in a wide
variety of end markets such as personal mobile devices, communications infrastructure, alternative
energy, industrial and medical. A significant portion of our research and development is directed at
power management technology.

Patents

We own numerous United States and non-U.S. patents and have many patent applications pending.
We consider the development of patents and the maintenance of an active patent program
advantageous to the conduct of our business. However, we believe that continued success will
depend more on engineering, production, marketing, financial and managerial skills than on our
patent program. We license certain of our patents to other manufacturers and participate in a number
of cross licensing arrangements and agreements with other parties. Each license agreement has
unigue terms and conditions, with variations as to length of term, royalties payable, permitted uses
and scope. The majority of these agreements are cross-licenses in which we grant a broad license to
our intellectual property in exchange for receiving a similar corresponding license from the other
party, and none are exclusive. The amount of income we have received from licensing agreements
has varied in the past, and we cannot precisely forecast the amount and timing of future income from
licensing agreements. On an overall basis, we believe that no single license agreement is material to
us, either in terms of royalty payments due or payable or intellectual property rights granted or
received,

Employees

At May 25, 2008, we employed approximately 7,300 people of whom approximately 3,200 were
employed in the United States, 700 in Europe, 2,600 in Southeast Asia, 700 in China and 100 in other
areas. We believe that our future success depends fundamentally on our ability to recruit and retain
skilled technical and professional perscnnel. Our employees in the United States are not covered by
collective bargaining agreements. We consider our employee relations worldwide to be favorable.

Competition

Competition in the semiconductor industry is intense. With our focus on high-value analog, our major
competitors include Analog Devices, Linear Technology, Maxim Integrated Products and Texas
Instruments. In some cases, we may also compete with our customers. Competition is based on
design and quality of products, product perfarmance, price and service, with the relative importance
of these factors varying among products and markets. We cannot assure you that we will be able to
compete successfully in the future against existing or new competitors or that our operating results
will not be adversely affected by increased competition.

Environmental Regulations

To date, our compliance with foreign, federal, state and local laws and regulations that have been
enacted to requlate the environment has not had a material adverse effect on our capital
expenditures, earnings, competitive or financial position. For more information, see ltem 3, “Legal
Proceedings” and Note 14, “Commitments and Contingencies” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements in Iltem 8. However, we could be subject to fines, suspension of production, alteration of
our manufacturing processes or cessation of our operations if we fail to comply with present or future
statutes and regulations governing the use, storage, handling, discharge or disposal of toxic, volatile
or otherwise hazardous chemicals used in our manufacturing processes.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

A description of the risk factors associated with our business is set forth below. We review and update
our risk factors each quarter. The risks described below are not the only ones facing us. Additional
risks not currently known to us or that we currently believe are immaterial may also impair our
business operations, results or financial condition.

You should read the following risk factors in conjunction with the factors discussed elsewhere
in this and our other filings with the SEC and in materials incorporated by reference in these filings.
These risk factors are intended to highlight certain factors that may affect our financial condition and
results of operations and are not meant to be an exhaustive discussion of risks that apply to
companies like National with broad international operations. Like other companies, we are
susceptible to macroeconomic downturns in the United States or abroad that may affect the general
economic climate and our performance and the performance of our customers, Similarly, the price of
our stock is subject to volatility due to fluctuations in general market conditions, differences in our
results of operations from estimates and projections generated by the investment community, and
other factors beyond our control.

RISK FACTORS RELATING TO GENERAL BUSINESS CONDITIONS

A large portion of our revenues is dependent on the wireless handset market.

The wireless handset market is a significant source of our overall sales. New products are being
developed to address new features and functionality in handsets, such as advanced color displays,
advanced audio, lighting features and battery management that can adequately handle the demands
of these advanced features. Due to high levels of competition, as well as complex technological
requirements, we cannot assure you that we will continue to be successful in this targeted market.
Although the worldwide handset market is large, growth trends and other variables are often
uncertain and difficult to predict. Since the wireless handset market is a consumer-driven market,
changes in the economy that affect consumer demand can adversely affect our business and
operating results.

Reduced consumer or corporate spending due to uncertainties in the macroeconomic
environment could adversely affect our revenues and graoss margins.

We depend on demand from the consumer, original equipment manufacturer, contract
manufacturing, industrial, automotive and other markets we serve for the end market applications
which incorporate our products. Qur revenues and gross margins are based on certain levels of
consumer and corporate spending. If our projections of these expenditures fail to materialize due to
reductions in consumer or corporate spending as a result of uncertain conditions in the
macroeconomic environment, such as continuing increases in oil prices, fluctuations in interest rates,
subprime mortgage failures, or otherwise, our revenues and gross margins could be adversely
affected.

Conditions inherent in the semiconductor industry may cause periodic fluctuations in our
operating restults.

Rapid technological change and frequent introduction of new technology leading to more complex
and integrated products characterize the semiconductor industry. The result is a cyclical environment
with potentially short product life cycles, even with analog products which form the core of our
strategic focus. We have seen and may see in the future significant and rapid increases and decreases
in product demand. Substantial capital and R&D investment are required to support products and
manufacturing processes in the semiconductor industry, which amplify the effect of this cyclicality
although less capital investment is needed for analog products than for many other semiconductor
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products. As a result of this environment, we have experienced in the past and may experience in the
future periodic fluctuations in our operating results. Market shifts in product mix toward or away from
higher margin products, including analog products, may also have a significant impact on our
operating results. As a result of these and other factors, our financial results could fluctuate
significantly from period to period.

Our business will be harmed if we are unable to compete successfully in our markets.
Competition in the semiconductor industry is intense. Our major competitors include Analog
Devices, Linear Technology, Maxim Integrated Products and Texas Instruments. These companies
sell competing products into some of the same markets that we target. In some cases, we may also
compete with our customers. Competition is based on design and quality of preducts, product
performance, price and service, with the relative importance of these factors varying among
products, markets and customers. We cannot assure you that we will be able to compete successfully
in the future against existing or new competitors or that our operating results will not be adversely
affected by increased competition.

RISK FACTORS RELATING TO INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS

We operate in the global marketplace and face risks associated with worldwide operations.

During fiscal 2008, approximately 80 percent of our sales were derived from customers in
international markets. We expect that international sales will continue to account for a significant
majority of our total revenue in future years. We have manufacturing facilities outside the United
States in the United Kingdom, Malaysia and China. We are subject to the economic and political risks
inherent in international operations, including the risks associated with ongoing uncertainties and
political and economic instability in many countries around the world. In addition, the management
of global operations subjects us to risks associated with trade balance issues, currency controls,
differences in local business and cultural factors, fluctuations in interest and currency exchange
rates, and difficulties in staffing and managing foreign operations. Although we did not experience
any materially adverse effects from our international operations as a result of these types of factors in
fiscal 2008, one or more of these factors could have a material adverse effect on us in the future.

Recent events and global disruptions could adversely affect our financial performance and
operating resuits.

Terrorist activities worldwide and hostilities in and between nation states, including the continuing
hostilities and violence in Iraq and the threat of future hostilities involving the United States and other
countries, may cause uncertainty and instability in the overall state of the global economy or in the
industries in which we operate. We have no assurance that the consequences from these events will
not disrupt our operations in either the United States or other regions of the world. Continued
increases in oil prices, as well as spreading subprime mortgage failures, could also affect our
operations. Pandemic illnesses that spread globally and/or substantial natural disasters, as well as
geopolitical events, may also affect our future costs, operating capabilities and revenues.

We have significant manufacturing operations in China and, as a result, are subject to risks.

Since we began production in our assembly and test facility in Suzhou, China in fiscal 2005, the
factory has increased its output. Our operations in China are subject to the economic and political
situation there. Our ability to operate in China may be adversely affected by changes in China's laws
and regulations, including those relating to taxation, import and export tariffs, environmental
regulations, land use rights, property and other matters. We believe that our operations in China are
in compliance with all applicable legal and regulatory requirements. However, we cannot assure you
that China’s central or local governments will not impose new, stricter regulations or interpretations
of existing regulations that would require additional expenditures. Changes in the political
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environment or government policies could result in revisions to laws or regulations or their
interpretation and enforcement, increased taxation, restrictions on imports, import duties or
currency revaluations. In addition, a significant destabilization of relations between China and the
United States could result in restrictions or prohibitions on our operations in China. The Chinese legai
systems relating to foreign trade and intellectual property are relatively new and continue to evolve.
Enforcement of existing laws or agreements may be sporadic and implementation and interpretation
of laws may be inconsistent. Moreover, there is a high degree of fragmentation among regulatory
authorities resulting in uncertainties as to which authorities have jurisdiction over particular parties or
transactions.

We are subject to fluctuations in the exchange rate of the U.S. dollar and foreign currencies.
While we transact business primarily in U.S. dollars, and most of our revenues are denominated in
U.S. dollars, a portion of our costs and revenues is denominated in other currencies, such as the euro,
the Japanese yen, pound sterling and certain other Asian currencies. As a result, changes in the
exchange rates of these or any ather applicable currencies to the U.S. dollar will affect our net sales,
costs of goods sold and operating margins. We have a program to hedge our exposure to currency
rate fluctuations, but our hedging program may not be fully effective in preventing foreign exchange
losses.

We are subject to export restrictions and laws affecting trade and investments.

As a global company headquartered in the United States, we are subject to U.S. laws and regulations
that limit and restrict the export of some of our products and related product information.
Compliance with these laws has not significantly limited our operations or our sales in the recent past
but could significantly limit them in the future. We maintain an export compliance program but there
are risks that the compliance controls could be circumvented, exposing us to legal liabilities. We must
also comply with export restrictions and laws imposed by other countries affecting trade and
investments. Although these restrictions and laws have not significantly restricted our operations in
the recent past, there is a risk that they could in the future,

RISK FACTORS RELATING TO SALES AND OPERATIONS

Our performance depends on the availability and cost of raw materials, utilities, critical
manulacturing equipment and third-party manufacturing services.

Our manufacturing processes and critical manufacturing equipment require that certain key raw
materials and utilities be available. Limited or delayed access to or increases in the cost of these
iterns, or the inability to implement new manufacturing technologies or install manufacturing
equipment on a timely basis could adversely affect our results of operations. We subcontract a
portion of our wafer fabrication and assembly and testing of our integrated circuits. We depend on a
limited number of third parties, most of whom are located outside of the United States, to perform
these subcontracted functions. We do not have long-term contracts with all of these third parties.
Reliance on these third parties involves risks, including possible shortages of capacity in periods of
high demand. Although we did not experience any material difficulties with supplies or
subcontractors in fiscal 2008, we have had difficulties in the past and could experience them in the
future.

A substantial portion of our sales are made to franchised distributors and the termination of a
franchise agreement with one or more distributors could result in a negative impact on our
business.

In fiscal 2008, our distributors accounted for approximately 564 percent of our sales, with two of our
distributors accounting for 27 percent of total sales. Distributors typically sell products from several
of our competitors along with our products. A significant reduction of effort to sell National products
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or the termination of one or mare distributors may reduce our access to certain end-customers and
adversely impact our ability to sell our products. The termination of a franchise agreement with a
distributor could also result in the return of our inventory held by the distributor.

Our profit margins may vary over time.

Our profit margins may be adversely affected by a number of factors, including decreases in our
shipment volume, reductions in, or obsolescence of our inventory and shifts in our product mix. In
addition, the competitive market environment in which we operate may adversely affect pricing for
our products, although we try to emphasize higher margin products. Because we own most of our
manufacturing capacity, a significant portion of our operating costs are fixed, including costs
associated with depreciation expense. In general, these costs do not decline with reductions in
customer demand or utilization of our manufacturing capacity. If we are unable to utilize our
manufacturing facilities at a high level, the fixed costs associated with these facilities will result in
higher average unit costs and lower gross margins.

We make forecasts of customer demand that may be inaccurate.

Our ability to match inventory and production mix with the product mix needed to fill current orders
and orders to be delivered in any given quarter may affect our ability to meet that quarter’s revenue
forecast. To be able to accommodate customer requests for shorter shipment lead times, we
manufacture product based on customer forecasts. These forecasts are based on multiple
assumptions. While we believe our relationships with our customers, combined with our
understanding of the end markets we serve, provide us with the ability to make reliable forecasts, if
we inaccurately forecast customer demand, it could result in inadequate, excess or obsolete
inventory that would reduce our profit margins.

We are subject to warranty claims, product recalls and product liability.

We could be subject to warranty or product liability claims that could lead to significant expenses as
we defend such claims or pay damage awards. In the event of a warranty claim, we may also incur
costs if we compensate the affected customer. We maintain product liability insurance, but there is no
guarantee that such insurance will be available or adequate to protect against all such claims. We
may incur costs and expenses relating to a recall of one of our customers’ products containing one of
our devices. Although costs or payments we have made in connection with warranty claims or
product recalls in the past have not materially affected our results of operations and financial
condition, they could in the future.

We may be harmed by natural disasters and other disruptions.

Our worldwide operations could be subject to natural disasters and other disruptions. Our corporate
headquarters are located near major earthquake fault lines in California. in the event of a major
earthquake, or other natural or manmade disaster, we could experience loss of life of our employees,
destruction of facilities or other business interruptions. The operations of our suppliers could also be
subject to natural disasters and other disruptions, which could cause shortages and price increases in
various essential materials. We use third party freight firms for nearly all of our shipments from
vendors and from our wafer manufacturing facilities to assembly and test sites and for shipments to
customers of our final product. This includes ground, sea and air freight. Any significant disruption of
our freight shipments globally or in certain parts of the world, particularly where our operations are
concentrated, would materially affect our operations. We maintain property and business
interruption insurance, but there is no guarantee that such insurance will be available or adequate to
protect against all costs associated with such disasters and disruptions.
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RISK FACTORS RELATING TO R&D, INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY AND LITIGATION

We may experience delays in introducing new products or market acceptance of new
products may be below our expectations.

Rapidly changing technologies and industry standards, along with frequent new product
introductions, characterize the industries in which our primary customers operate. As our customers
evolve and introduce new products, our success depends on our ability to anticipate and adapt to
these changes in a timely and cost-effective manner by developing and introducing into the market
new products that meet the needs of our customers. We believe that continued focused investment
in research and development, especially the timely development, introduction and market
acceptance of new analog products, is a key factor to successful growth and the ability to achieve
strong financial performance. Successful development and introduction of these new products are
critical to our ability to maintain a competitive position in the marketplace. We will continue to invest
resources to develop more highly integrated solutions and building block products, both primarily
based on our analog capabilities. We will continue to target applications such as wireless handsets,
other portable devices and applications in other broad markets that require analog technology,
especially in areas where analog technology can be used to achieve energy efficiencies. We cannot
assure you that we will be successful in timely developing and introducing successful new products,
and a failure to bring new products to market may harm our operating results. We also cannot assure
you that products that may be developed in the future by our competitors will not render our
products obsolete or non-competitive.

Our products are dependent on the use of intellectual property that we need to protect.

We rely on patents, trade secrets, trademarks, mask works and copyrights to protect our products
and technologies, and have a pragram to file applications for and obtain patents, trademarks, mask
works and copyrights in the United States and in selected foreign countries where we believe filing
for such protection is appropriate. Effective patent, trademark, copyright and trade secret protection
may be unavailable, limited cr not applied for in some countries. Some of our products and
technologies are not covered by any patent or patent application. In addition, we cannot assure you
that:

* the patents owned by us or numerous other patents which third parties license to us will not
be invalidated, circumvented, challenged or licensed to other companies; or

+ any of our pending or future patent applications will be issued within the scope of the claims
sought by us, if at all.

We also seek to protect our proprietary technologies, inciuding technologies that may not be
patented or patentable, in part by confidentiality agreements and, if applicable, inventors’ rights
agreements with our collaborators, advisors, employees and consultants. We cannot assure you that
these agreements will not be breached, that we will have adequate remedies for any breach or that
our collaborators will not assert rights to intellectual property arising out of our research
collaborations. In addition, we may not be able to enforce these agreements globally. Some of our
technologies have been licensed on a non-exclusive basis from other companies, which may license
such technologies to others, including our competitors. if necessary or desirable, we may seek
licenses under patents or intellectual property rights claimed by others. However, we cannot assure
you that we will obtain such licenses or that the terms of any offered licenses will be acceptable to us.
The failure to obtain a license from a third party for technologies we use could cause us to incur
substantial liabilities and to suspend the manufacture or shipment of products or our use of
processes requiring the technologies.
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We are subject to litigation risks.

All industries, including the semiconductor industry, are subject to legal claims. We are involved in a
variety of routine legal matters that arise in the normal course of business. Further discussion of
certain specific material legal proceedings we are involved with is contained in Note 14 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. We believe it is unlikely that the final outcome of these legal
claims will have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position or results of
operations. However, litigation is inherently uncertain and unpredictable. An unfavorable resolution
of any particular legal ¢laim or proceeding could have a material adverse effect on our consolidated
financial position or results of operations.

RISK FACTORS RELATED TO OUR DEBT

Increased leverage may harm our financisl condition and results of operations.

On June 7, 2007, we announced that we would incur $1.5 billion of indebtedness under a bridge
credit facility to purchase shares of our common stock through an accelerated stock repurchase
program. We subsequently issued $1.0 billion in senior unsecured notes and entered into a bank loan
in the aggregate principal amount of $0.5 billion to fully repay the indebtedness under the bridge
credit facility. As a result, our total liabilities at the end of the fiscal 2008 were $2.0 billion, an increase
of $1.5 billion from the end of fiscal 2007. This increase from fiscal 2007 and any future increase in our
level of indebtedness will have several important effects on our future operations, including, without
limitation:

« we have additional cash requirements in order to support the payment of principal and
interest on our cutstanding indebtedness;

*» increases in our outstanding indebtedness and leverage may increase our vulnerability to
adverse changes in general economic and industry conditions, as well as to competitive
pressure;

* our ability to obtain additional financing for working capital, capital expenditures, general
corporate and other purposes may be limited particularly in light of current credit market
conditions; and

« our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and our industry may be
limited.

Our ability to make payments of principal and interest on our indebtedness depends upon our
future performance, which is subject to general economic conditions, industry cycles and financial,
business and other factors affecting our consolidated operaticns, many of which are beyond our
control. If we are unable to generate sufficient cash flow from operations in the future to service our
debt, we may be required to, among other things:

* seek additional financing in the debt or equity markets;

« refinance or restructure all or a portion of our indebtedness, including the notes;
+ sell selected assets;

» reduce or delay planned capital expenditures; or

* reduce or delay planned operating expenditures.

Such measures might not be sufficient to enable us to service our debt. In addition, any such

financing, refinancing or sale of assets might not be available on economically favorable terms, if at
all.
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Rises in interest rates could adversely affect our financial condition.

An increase in prevailing interest rates has an immediate effect on the interest rates charged on our
variable rate debt, including the senior floating rate notes and bank debt, which rise and fall upon
changes in interest rates on a quarterly basis. Although interest rates actually decreased in fiscal
2008, any increased interest expense associated with increases in interest rates affects our cash flow
and our ability to service our debt. As a protection against rising interest rates, we may enter into
agreements such as interest rate swaps, caps, floors and other interest rate exchange contracts.
However, the other parties to the agreements may fail to perform or the terms may be unfavorable to
us depending on rate movements.

RISK FACTORS RELATING TO PERSONNEL AND MERGER AND ACQUISITION ACTIVITY

We may not be able to attract or retain employees with skills necessary to remain competitive
in our industry.

Our continued success depends in part on the recruitment and retention of skilled personnel,
including technical, marketing, management and staff personnel. Experienced personnel in the
semiconductor industry, particularly in our targeted analog areas, are in high demand and
competition for their skills is intense. We cannot assure you that we will be able to successfully recruit
and retain the key personnel we require.

We may pursue acquisitions, investments and divestitures that could harm our operating
results and may disrupt our business.

We have made and will continue to consider making strategic business investments, alliances and
acquisitions we consider necessary to gain access to key technologies that we believe will augment
our existing technical capability and support our business model objectives. Acquisitions and
investments involve risks and uncertainties that may unfavorably impact our future financial
performance. We may not be able to integrate and develop the technologies we acquire as expected.
If the technology is not developed in a timely manner, we may be unsuccessful in penetrating target
markets. With any acquisition there are risks that future operating results may be unfavorably
affected by acquisition related costs, including in-process R&D charges and incremental R&D
spending.

We have made and will continue to consider making strategic divestitures. With any
divestiture, there are risks that future operating results could be unfavorably impacted if targeted
objectives, such as cost savings, are not achieved or if other business disruptions occur as a result of
the divestiture or activities related to the divestiture.

RISK FACTORS RELATING TO TAX AND ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS

We may be affected by higher than expected tax rates or exposure to additional income tax
liabilities.

As a global company, our effective tax rate is dependent upon the geographic composition of
worldwide earnings and tax regulations governing each region. We are subject to income taxes in
both the United States and various foreign jurisdictions, and complex analyses and significant
judgment are required to determine worldwide tax liabilities. From time to time, we have received
notices of tax assessments in various jurisdictions where we operate. We may receive future notices
of assessments and the amounts of these assessments or our failure to favorably resolve such
assessments may have a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

We have significant amounts of deferred tax assets. The recognition of deferred tax assets is
reduced by a valuation altowance if it is more likely than not that the tax benefits associated with the
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deferred tax benefits will not be realized. If we are unable to generate sufficient future taxable income
in certain jurisdictions, or if there is a significant change in the actual effective tax rates or the time
period within which the underlying temporary differences become taxable or deductible, we could
be required to increase the valuation allowances against our deferred tax assets, which would cause
an increase in our effective tax rate. A significant increase in our effective tax rate could have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition or resuits of operations.

We are subject to many environmental laws and regulations.

Increasingly stringent environmental regulations restrict the amount and types of materials that can
be released from our operations into the environment. While the cost of compliance with
environmental laws has not had a material adverse effect on our results of operations historically,
compliance with these and any future regulations could require significant capital investments in
pollution control equipment or changes in the way we make our products. In addition, because we
use hazardous and other regulated materials in our manufacturing processes, we are subject to risks
of liabilities and claims, regardless of fault, resulting from accidental releases, including personal
injury claims and civil and criminal fines. The following should also be considered.

» we currently are remediating past contamination at some of our sites;

» we have been identified as a potentially responsible party at a number of Superfund sites
where we (or our predecessors) disposed of wastes in the past; and

« significant regulatory and public attention on the impact of semiconductor operations on the
environment may result in more stringent regulations, further increasing our costs.

For more information on environmental matters, see Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements,

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not applicable.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We conduct manufacturing, as well as certain research and development activities, at our wafer
fabrication facilities located in Arlington, Texas; South Portland, Maine; and Greenock, Scotland.
Wafer fahrication capacity utilization (based on wafer starts} was 67 percent for fiscal 2008 compared
to 62 percent for fiscal 2007. We expect our captive manufacturing capacity together with our third-
party subcontract manufacturing arrangements to be adequate to supply our needs in the
foreseeable future.

Our assembly and test functions are performed primarily in Southeast Asia and China. Qur
assembly and test facilities are located in Melaka, Malaysia and in Suzhou, China. In July 2005, we
announced a plan to close our assembly and test facility in Singapore and consolidate its production
volume into our aforementioned test facilities in Malaysia and China. We successfully completed
closure of the Singapaore facility by the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2007 and sold the facility in
June 2007. We currently do not anticipate any additional facility closures in the foreseeable future.

Our principal administrative and research facilities are located in Santa Clara, California. Our
regional headquarters for Worldwide Marketing and Sales are located in Santa Clara, California;
Munich, Germany; Tokyo, Japan; and Kowloon, Hang Kong. We maintain local sales offices and sales
service centers in various locations and countries throughout our four business regions. We also
operate small design facilities in various locations in the U.S., including:

Calabasas, California Longmont, Colorado San Diego, California
Federal Way, Washington Norcross, Georgia South Portland, Maine
Fort Collins, Colorado Phoenix, Arizona Tucson, Arizona
Grass Valley, California Rochester, New York

Indianapolis, Indiana Salem, New Hampshire

Design facilities are also operated at overseas lacations including China, Estonia, Finland,
Germany, India, italy, Japan, Malaysia, the Netherlands, Taiwan and the United Kingdom. We own our
manufacturing facilities and our corporate headquarters. In general, we lease most of our design
facilities and our sales and administrative offices. As described in the business section under item 1
of this Form 10-K, our manufacturing operations are centralized and shared among our product line
business units, and no individual facility is dedicated to a specific operating segment. We believe our
facilities are suitable and have adequate capacity for our current needs. Further, we believe space and
capacity will be available if needed in the future.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We currently are a party to various legal proceedings, including those noted below. While we believe
that the ultimate outcome of these various proceedings, individually and in the aggregate, will not
have a material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations, litigation is always
subject to inherent uncertainties, and unfavorable rulings could occur. An unfavorable ruling could
include money damages or an injunction prohibiting us from setling one or more products. Were an
unfavorable ruling to occur, there exists the possibility of a material adverse impact on the netincome
of the period in which the ruling occurs, and future periods.

Tax Matters

The Internal Revenue Service (IRS} completed its field examination of our tax returns for fiscal years
1997 through 2000 and on July 29, 2003 issued a notice of proposed adjustment seeking additional
taxes of approximately $19.1 million (exclusive of interest) for those years. The issues giving rise to
most of the proposed adjustments related to R&D credits, inventory and depreciation deductions. We
contested the adjustments through the IRS administrative process. Through that process, we agreed
with the Appeals Office of the IRS to settle the matter for the payment of additional taxes of
approximately $14.7 million (exclusive of interest) and this settlement was approved by the
Congressional Joint Committee on taxation in October 2007. Interest computations totaling
$2.6 million were finalized by the IRS in January 2008. All payments have been made and the matter
is how completed.

We are also undergoing tax audits at several international locations and from time to time our
tax returns are audited in the United States by state agencies and at international locations by local
tax authorities. We believe we have made adequate tax payments and/or accrued adequate amounts
such that the outcome of these audits will have no material adverse effect on our financial
statements.

Environmental Matters

We have been named to the National Priorities List {Superfund} for our Santa Clara, California site and
we have completed a remedial investigation/feasibility study with the Regional Water Quality Control
Board {(RWQCB}, which is acting as agent for the EPA. We have agreed in principle with the RWQCB
on a site remediation plan, and we are conducting remediation and cleanup efforts at the site. In
addition to the Santa Clara site, we have been designated from time to time as a potentially
responsible party by international, federal and state agencies for certain environmental sites with
which we may have had direct or indirect involvement. These designations are made regardless of
the extent of our involvement. These claims are in various stages of administrative or judicial
proceedings and include demands for recovery of past governmental costs and for future
investigations and remedial actions. In many cases, the dollar amounts of the claims have not been
specified and the claims have been asserted against a number of other entities for the same cost
recovery or other relief as is sought from us. We have also retained responsibility for environmental
matters connected with businesses we sold in fiscal 1996 and 1997, but we are not currently involved
in any legal proceedings relating to those liabilities.

Other

1. In November 2000, a derivative action was filed in the U.S. District Court in Delaware against us,
Fairchild Semiconductor International, Inc. and Sterling Holding Company, LLC, by Mark Levy, a
Fairchild stockholder. The action was brought under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act and the rules
issued under that Act by the SEC. The plaintiff seeks disgorgement of alleged short-swing insider
trading profits. We had originally acquired Fairchild common and preferred stock in March 1997 at the
time we disposed of the Fairchild business. Prior to its initial public offering in August 1999, Fairchild
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had amended its certificate of incorporation to provide that all Fairchild preferred stock would
convert automatically to common stock upon completion of the initial public offering. As a result, our
shares of preferred stock converted to common stock in August 1993, Plaintiff has alleged that our
acquisition of commeon stock through the conversion constituted an acquisition that should be
“matched” against our sale in January 2000 of Fairchild common stock for purposes of computing
short-swing trading profits. The action seeks to recover from us on behalf of Fairchild alleged
recoverable profits of approximately $14.1 million. The case has completed discovery in the District
Court and we filed a motion for summary judgment in June 2004. The SEC proposed clarifying
amendments to its Section 18(b) rules in June 2004 which we believe are dispositive of the case and
the SEC adopted the rule amendments in August 2005. Oral argument on the briefing ordered by the
District Court on whether it should apply the SEC rule amendments to the case was held in November
2005. In February 2007, the District Court granted our motion for summary judgment. Plaintiff has
appealed this ruling, the argument on the appeal was heard in the Third Circuit Court of Appeals on
March 24, 2008 and we are waiting for the Court’s ruling. We intend to continue to contest the case
through all available means.

2. In Septerber 2002, iTech Group, Inc. {iTech) brought suit against us in California Superior
Court alleging a number of contract and tort claims related to a software license agreement we
entered into earlier in 2002 and the proposed sale of one of our business units. At the trial which
began in May 2005 the jury in the case found for iTech on claims of breach of contract, promissory
fraud and unjust enrichment, awarding plaintiff compensatory damages of approximately
$234.0 thousand and punitive damages of $15.0 million. In post trial motions heard by the court in
July 2005, the court affirmed the verdict for compensatory damages, awarded attorneys’ fees to
iTech of approximately $60.0 thousand and reduced the punitive damages to $3.0 million and
judgment was entered in those amounts in August 2005. We appealed the case and the California
Appeals Court issued an unpublished opinion in December 2006, reversing the trial court judgment
and remanding the case for re-trial or other disposition. After the opinion of the Appeals Court had
become final, we paid plaintiff’s counsel attorneys’ fees of approximately $79.3 thousand,
representing the attorneys’ fees originally awarded at trial, plus interest and additional fees on
appeal. The case was settied in October 2007 shortly before retrial that was scheduled to begin in
November 2007, Under the settlement, we paid $6.5 million to iTech in exchange for a release of all
claims related to the litigation and dismissal of the case. The settlement amount has been paid, the
case has been dismissed and the matter is now cencluded.

3. In April 2008, LS| Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiary Agere Systems Inc. (collectively
LS} instituted an action in the United States International Trade Commission {ITC), naming us and 17
other respondents in an action seeking an exclusion preventing importation into the U.S. of
semiconductor integrated circuit devices and products made by methods alleged to infringe an LSI
patent on the use of tungsten metallization in semiconductor manufacturing., LS| also filed a
companion case against the same parties in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Texas
seeking unspecified amounts of monetary damages (trebled because of the alleged willful
infringement), royalties, attorneys’ fees, costs and an injunction against further infringement. Since
the initiation of both actions, five other parties have been named as respondents/defendants in the
respective actions. The action in the U.S. District Court has been stayed pending the outcome of the
ITC action. Although no hearing date has been set yet in the ITC action, it is expected that a hearing
will occur in early calendar 2009. We intend to contast both actions through all available means.

4, In May 2008, eTool Development, Inc. and eTool Patent Holdings Corporation (collectively
eTool] brought suit in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Texas alleging that our
WEBENCH online design tools infringe an eTool patent and seeking an injunction and unspecified
amounts of monetary damages (trebled because of the alleged willful infringement), attorneys’ fees
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and costs. We have filed an answer to the complaint and counterclaims for declaratory judgment of
non-infringement and invalidity of the patent. We intend to contest the case through all available
means.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders, through the solicitation of proxies or
otherwise, during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by this report.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
Fiscal Year 2008

Name Title, Fiscal Year 2008 Age
Lewis Chew (1) Senior Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer 4—5
Todd M. DuChene (2) Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary 44
Brian L. Halla {3} Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer 61
Detlev J. Kunz {4) Senior Vice President, Power Management Products Group 57
Donald Macleod {5) President and Chief Operating Officer 59
Michael E. Noonen {6) Senior Vice President, Worldwide Marketing and Sales 45
Suneil V. Parulekar (7) Senior Vice President, Signal Path Products Group 60
Ulrich Seif (8) Senior Vice President, Manufacturing Services and Chief

Information Officer 50
Edward J. Sweeney (9) Senior Vice President, Human Resources 51

All information as of May 25, 2008, the last day of the 2008 fiscal year.

Business Experience

(1)

(2)

(3)

{4)

(5)

Mr. Chew joined National in May 1997 as Director of Internal Audit and was made Vice
President and Controller in December 1998, Acting Chief Financial Officer in April 2001 and
Senior Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer in June 2001. Prior to joining
National, Mr. Chew was a partner at the accounting firm KPMG LLP.

Mr. DuChene joined National in January 2008 as Senior Vice President, General Counsel and
Secretary. Prior to joining National, Mr. DuChene had held positions as Executive Vice
President, General Counsel and Secretary of Solectron Corporation from 2005 to 2007 and as
Senior Vice President, Corporate Development, Chief Legal Officer and Secretary of Fisher
Scientific International Inc. from 1996 to 2005. Prior to that he was Senior Vice President,
General Counsel and Secretary of OfficeMax, Inc.

Mr, Halla joined National in May 1996 as Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive
Officer. Prior to that, Mr. Halla had held positions at LSI Logic as Executive Vice President, LS|
Logic Products; Senior Vice President and General Manager, Microprocessor/DSP Products
Group; and Vice President and General Manager, Microprocessor Products Group. Mr. Halla
was named Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer at the beginning of the 2006
fiscal year.

Mr. Kunz joined National in July 1981. Prior to becoming Senior Vice President, Power
Management Products Group at the beginning of the 2006 fiscal year, he had held positions in
the company as Senior Vice President and General Manager, Worldwide Marketing and Sales;
Regional Vice President and General Manager, Europe; European Sales and Distribution
Director; Director of European Communications and Consumer Product Marketing; and
Manager, European Telecom Business Center.

Mr. Macleod joined National in February 1978 and was named President and Chief Operating
Officer at the beginning of the 2006 fiscal year. Prior to then, he had held positions in the
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.

company as Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer; Executive Vice President,
Finance and Chief Financial Officer; Senior Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer;
Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer; Vice President, Financial Projects; Vice
President and General Manager, Volume Products - Europe; and Director of Finance and
Management Services — Europe.

(6) Mr. Noonen joined National in September 2001 and was named Senior Vice President,
Worldwide Marketing and Sales at the beginning of the 2006 fiscal year. Prior to then, he had
held positions at National as Vice President, Communications and Computing interface Group
and Vice President, Wired Communications Division. Prior to joining National, Mr. Noonen had
served as Director of New Markets and Technologies at Cisco Systems, Inc. and had held sales
management positions at 8x8, Inc. and the NCR Microelectronics division of NCR Corporation.

(7} Mr. Parulekar joined National in January 1989. Prior to becoming Senior Vice President, Signal
Path Products Group at the beginning of the 2006 fiscal year, he held positions in the company
as Senior Vice President, Analog Products Group; Vice President, Amplifier/Audio Products;
Product Line Director, Amplifier/Audio Products; Director of Marketing, Mediamatics; Director
of Strategy, Communications and Consumer Group; and Director of Marketing, Power
Management Group.

{(8)  Mr. Seif first joined National in January 1980 and had held a number of positions in MIS related
operations when he left the company in 1996 to become the Chief Information Officer and Vice
President of Information Services at Cirrus Logic. He returned to National in May 1997 as the
Chief Information Officer and Vice President of Information Services and was made Senior
Vice President and Chief Information Officer in April 2001. Mr. Seif was named Senior Vice
President, Manufacturing Services and Chief Information Officer at the beginning of the 2006
fiscal year.

{9) Mr. Sweeney first joined National in February 1983 and had held a number of human resources
positions and was serving as Vice President, Human Resources for the Central Technology and
Manufacturing Group when he left the company in 1998 to become the Vice President of
Human Resources at Candescent Technologies Corporation. He later became the Vice
President of Human Resources at Vitria Technology Inc. Mr. Sweeney rejoined National in May
2002 as Senior Vice President, Human Resources.

Our executive officers serve at the pleasure of our Board of Directors. There is no family
relationship among any of our directors and executive officers.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

See information appearing in Note 12, Shareholders’ Equity; and Note 16, Financial Information by
Quarter {Unaudited) in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in ltem 8 of this
Form 10-K. Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange. During fiscal 2008, we paid
total cash dividends of $50.6 million on our common stock, consisting of dividends of $0.04 per share
of common stock paid in each of the first two quarters of the fiscal year and dividends of $0.06 per
share of common stock in each of the remaining two quarters of the fiscal year. During fiscal 2007, we
paid total cash dividends of $45.1 million on our common stock, consisting of dividends of $0.03 per
share of common stock paid in each of the first two quarters of the fiscal year and dividends of $0.04
per share of common stock in each of the remaining two quarters of the fiscal year. Market price
range data are based on the New York Stock Exchange Composite Tape. Market price per share at the
close of business on July 11, 2008 was $20.64. At July 11, 2008, the number of record holders of our
common stock was 5,661. For information on our equity compensation plans, see ltem 12 of this
Form 10-K.

During the past three fiscal years, we did not make any unregistered sales of our securities.
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The following graph compares a $100 investment in National stock over the five year period
from the beginning of fiscal 2003 through the end of fiscal 2008, with a similar investment in the
Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index and Standard & Poor's 500 Semiconductor Industry Index. It
shows the cumulative total returns over this five year period, assuming reinvestment of dividends.

Comparison of Five Year Cumulative Total Return* Among National,
S&P 500 Index and S&P 500 Semiconductor Industry Index
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—O— NATIONAL SEMICONDUCTOR CORP  —{J— S&P 500 INDEX —#x— S&P 500 SEMICONDUCTORS

May 25, May 30, May 29, May 28, May 27, May 25,
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

National Semiconductor Corp. $100.00 $193.22 $180.14 $229.65 $235.21 $186.75
S&P 500 Index 100.00 122.18 133.04 14480 17468 161.72
S&P 500 Semiconductor Industry

Index 100.00 147.28  138.05 12581 137.30  133.68

*  Assumes $100 invested on 5/25/03 in stock or index, including reinvestment of dividends.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
The following table summarizes purchases we made of our common stock during the fourth quarter
of fiscal 2008:

Approximate

Total Number Dollar Value of
of Shares Shares that
Purchased as May Yet Be
Total Number Average Part of Publicly  Purchased Under
Shares Price Paid Announced Plans the Plans or
Period Purchased!" per Share or Programs Programs®
Month # 1
February 25, 2008 - March 24,
2008 3,600,000 $18.25 3,600,000 3414 million
Maonth # 2
March 25, 2008 - April 24,
2008 6,565,136 $19.26 6,550,000 $288 million
Month # 3
April 25, 2008 - May 25, 2008 1,554,679 $20.51 1,550,000 $256 million

Total 11,719,815 11,700,000

n Includes 17,679 shares that were reacquired through the withholding of shares ta pay
employee tax obligations upon the vesting of restricted stock and 2,136 shares purchased by
the rabbi trust utilized by our Deferred Compensation Plan, which permits participants to direct
investment of their accounts in National stock in accordance with their instructions.

2 Purchases during the fourth fiscal quarter were made under the $500 million stock repurchase
program announced in June 2007. Shares were repurchased in the open market. As of May 25,
2008, $256 million of the $500 million stock repurchase program announced in June 2007
remains available for future stock repurchases. We do not have any plans to terminate the
program prior to its completion and there is no expiration date for this repurchase program.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial information has been derived from our audited consolidated
financial statements. The information set forth below is not necessarily indicative of results of our
future operations and should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in ltem 7 of this Form 10-K and the consolidated
financial statements and related notes thereto in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

FIVE-YEAR SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
Years Ended

(In Millions, Except Per Share Amounts and May 26, May 27, May 28, May 29, May 30,
Employee Figures) 2008 2007 2008 2005 2004
OPERATING RESULTS
Net sales $1,8859 $1,929.9 $2,158.1 $1,913.1 $1,983.1
Cost of sales 6715 767.7 885.4 892.3 970.8
Gross margin 1,214.4 1,172.2 1,272.7 1,020.8 1,012.3
Operating expenses 705.3 682.5 607.2 621.9 684.5
Operating income 509.1 489.7 6665.5 398.9 327.8
Interest {expense) income, net (51.7} 38.9 31.8 15.9 10.4
Other non-operating (expense) income, net (6.2) 2.0 (2.1} (4.9) {4.5)
Income before income taxes and cumulative

effect of a change in accounting principle 451.2 530.6 695.2 409.9 333.7
Income tax expense {benefit)!! 118.9 155.3 246.0 {46.9) 49.0

Income before cumulative effect of a change in

accounting principle!"! $ 3323 $ 3753 $ 449.2 $ 456.8 $ 2847
Net income!" $ 3323 $ 3753 § 449.2 $ 4568 $ 2828
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Income before cumulative effect of a change in

accounting principle:

Basict" $ 131 % $ 132 ¢ 129 $ 079

Diluted' $ 126 $ $ 126 $ 122 $ 073
Net income:

Basic!" $ 131 $ 117 $ 132 $ 129 $§ 078

Diluted! $ 126 $ 112 $ 126 $ 122 § 073
Weighted-average common and potential

commeon shares outstanding:

Basic 252.8 3196 339.8 363.9 361.0

Diluted 264.3 334.2 3567.0 373.9 388.5
FINANCIAL POSITION AT YEAR-END
Working capital®? $ 863.0 $ 9915 $1,143.0 $1,2292 $ 7845
Total assets® $2,149.1 $2,246.8 $2,552.6 $2,545.7 $2,280.4
Long-term debt $1,4148 $ 206 $ 211 $ 230 $ -
Total debt $1,4773 $ 206 $ 211 $ 230 $ 221
Shareholders’ equity'? $ 196.9 $1,7685 $1,967.6 $2,095.6 $1,680.5
OTHER DATA
Research and development $ 3630 $ 3637 $ 3266 $ 333.0 $ 3571
Capital additions $ 111.3 $ 1066 $ 1633 $ 966 $ 2153
Cash dividends declared and paid $ 506 $ 451 $ 342 $ 141 § -
Number of employees (in thousands) 7.3 7.6 8.5 8.5 9.7
m Amounts for fiscal 2005 have been revised (See Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).
2 Amounts for fiscal 2007, 2006 and 2005 have been revised {See Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements).
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This MD&A contains a number of forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of
the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, These statements
are based on our current expectations and could be affected by the uncertainties and risk factors
described throughout this filing and particularly in Part | of Form 10-K “ltem 1A: Risk Factors” and the
business outlook section of this MD&A. These statements relate to, among other things, sales, gross
margins, operating expenses, capital expenditures, R&D efforts, acquisitions of and investments in
other companies, and asset dispositions and are indicated by words or phrases such as “anticipate,”
“expect,” "autlook,” “foresee,” “believe,” “could,” “intend,” “will," and similar words or phrases.
These statements involve risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially
from expectations. These forward-looking statements should not be relied upon as predictions of
future events as we cannot assure you that the events or circumstances reflected in these statements
will be achieved or will occur. For a discussion of some of the factors that could cause actual results to
differ materially from our forward-looking statements, see the discussion on risk factors that appears
in Part |, Item 1A of this Form 10-K and other risks and uncertainties detailed in this and our other
reports and filings with the SEC. We undertake no obligation to update forward-loocking statements to
reflect developments or information obtained after the date hereof and disclaim any obligation to do
s0.

This discussion should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and
the accompanying notes included in this Form 10-K for the year ended May 25, 2008.

= Strategy and Business

We design, develop, manufacture and market a wide range of semiconductor products, most of
which are analog and mixed-signal integrated circuits. Our goal is to be the premier provider of
high-performance, energy-efficient analog and mixed-signal solutions. We are focused on the
following:

+ providing high-performance, analog-intensive solutions that enable customers to effectively
differentiate their products;

* targeting our investments on high-growth and high-return markets, particularly by
leveraging our strengths in creating energy-efficient circuits and solutions, many of which
will fall under our PowerWise® brand;

* strengthening and deepening our relationships with customers;

« using our proprietary technologies to create and maintain our market-leading solutions; and

* consistently delivering superior returns on invested capital to our shareholders.

A large portion of our sales comes from analog products that are classified within the standard
linear categories {as defined by the WSTS}. Beyond the standard linear categories, we also sell
analog systems and subsystems that can be more specifically targeted at various applications. We
look to create analog-intensive solutions that provide more energy efficiency, greater portability,
better audio, sharper images and higher performance in electronic systems. Energy-efficiency is our
overarching theme and our PowerWise® products enable systems that consume less power, extend
battery life and generate less heat. Our leading-edge products include power management circuits,
audio and operational amplifiers, display drivers, communication interface products and data
conversion solutions. Approximately 98 percent of our net sales in fiscal 2008 came from our Analog
segment, compared to approximately 95 percentin fiscal 2007 and approximately 89 percentin fiscal
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2006. For mare information on our business, see Part |, Item 1, Business, in this Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended May 25, 2008.

» Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We believe the following critical accounting policies are those policies that have a significant effect on
the determination of our financial position and results of operations. These policies also require us to
make our most difficult and subjective judgments:

a)

b)

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue from the sale of semiconductor products upon shipment,
provided we have persuasive evidence of an arrangement typically in the form of a
purchase order, title and risk of loss have passed to the customer, the amount is fixed or
determinable and collection of the revenue is reasonably assured. We record a
provision for estimated future returns at the time of shipment. Approximately
54 percent of our semiconductor product sales were made to distributors in fiscal 2008,
compared to approximately 55 percent in fiscal 2007 and approximately 51 percent in
fiscal 2006. We have agreements with our distributors that cover various programs,
including pricing adjustments based on resale pricing and volume, price protection for
inventory and scrap allowances. The revenue we record for these distribution sales is
net of estimated provisions for these programs. When determining this net distribution
revenue, we must make significant judgments and estimates. Qur estimates are based
upon historical experience rates by geography and product family, inventory levels in
the distribution channel, current economic trends, and other related factors. Actual
distributor claims activity has been materially consistent with the provisions we have
made based on our estimates. However, because of the inherent nature of estimates,
there is always a risk that there could be significant differences between actual amounts
and our estimates. Our financial condition and operating results are dependent on our
ability to make reliable estimates, and we believe that our estimates are reasonable.
However, different judgments or estimates could result in variances that might be
significant to our operating results.

Service revenues are recognized as the services are provided or as milestones are
achieved, depending on the terms of the arrangement. These revenues are included in
net sales and totaled $25.1 million in fiscal 2008, $33.9 million in fiscal 2007 and
$47.8 million in fiscal 2006.

Certain intellectual property income is classified as revenue if it meets specified
criteria established by company policy that defines whether it is considered a source of
income from our primary operations. These revenues are included in net sales and
totaled $1.6 million in fiscal 2008, $2.8 million in fiscal 2007 and $5.3 million in fiscal
2006. All other intellectual property income that does not meet the specified criteria is
not considered a source of income from primary operations and is therefore classified
as a component of other operating income, net, in the consolidated statement of
income. Intellectual property income is recognized when the license is delivered, the fee
is fixed or determinable, collection of the fee is reasonably assured and remaining
obligations are perfunctory or inconsequential to the other party.

Valuation of Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of standard cost, which approximates actual cost on
a first-in, first-out basis, or market. The total carrying value of our inventory is reduced
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for any difference between cost and estimated market value of inventory that is
determined to be obsolete or unmarketable, based upon assumptions about future
demand and market conditions. Reductions in carrying value are deemed to establish a
new cost basis. Inventory is not written up if estimates of market value subsequently
improve. We evaluate obsolescence by analyzing the inventory aging, order backlog
and future customer demand on an individual product basis. If actual demand were to
be substantially lower than what we have estimated, we may be required to write
inventory down below the current carrying value. While our estimates require us to
make significant judgments and assumptions about future events, we believe our
relationships with our customers, combined with our understanding of the end-markets
we serve, provide us with the ability to make reasonable estimates. The actual amount
of obsolete or unmarketable inventory has been materially consistent with previously
estimated write-downs we have recorded. We also evaluate the carrying value of
inventory for lower-of-cost-or-market on an individual product basis, and these
evaluations are intended to identify any difference between net realizable value and
standard cost. Net realizable value is used as a measure of market for purposes of
evaluating lower-of-cost-or-market and is determined as the selling price of the product
less the estimated cost of disposal. When necessary, we reduce the carrying value of
inventory to net realizable value. If actual market conditions and resulting product sales
were to be less favorable than what we have projected, additional inventory write-
downs may be required.

Impairment of Goodwill, Intangible Assets and Qther Long-lived Assets

We assess the impairment of long-lived assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying value may not be recoverable from the
estimated future cash flows expected to result from their use and eventual disposition.
Our long-lived assets subject to this evaluation include property, plant and equipment
and amortizable intangible assets. Amortizable intangible assets subject to this
evaluation include developed technology we have acquired, patents and technology
licenses. We assess the impairment of goodwill annually in our fourth fiscal quarter and
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that it is more likely than not that
an impairment loss has been incurred. We are required to make judgments and
assumptions in identifying those events or changes in circumstances that may trigger
impairment. Some of the factors we consider include:

« significant decrease in the market value of an asset;

* significant changes in the extent or manner for which the asset is being used or in its
physical condition;

* significant change, delay or departure in our business strategy related to the asset;

* significant negative changes in the business climate, industry or economic
conditions; and

* current period operating losses or negative cash flow combined with a history of
similar losses or a forecast that indicates continuing losses associated with the use of
an asset.

Our impairment evaluation of long-lived assets includes an analysis of estimated
future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the assets over their
remaining estimated useful lives. If the estimated future undiscounted net cash flows
are insufficient to recover the carrying value of the assets over the remaining estimated
useful lives, we record an impairment loss in the amount by which the carrying value of
the assets exceeds the fair value. We determine fair value based on discounted cash
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flows using a discount rate commensurate with the risk inherent in our current business
model. Major factors that influence our cash flow analysis are our estimates for future
revenue and expenses associated with the use of the asset. Different estimates could
have a significant impact on the results of our evaluation. If, as a result of our analysis,
we determine that our amortizable intangible assets or other long-lived assets have
been impaired, we will recognize an impairment loss in the period in which the
impairment is determined. Any such impairment charge could be significant and could
have a material adverse effect on our financial position and results of operations.

QOur impairment evaluation of goodwill is based on comparing the fair value to the
carrying value of our reporting units containing goodwill. Qur reporting units are based
on our operating segments as defined under SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about
Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information.” The fair value of a reporting unit is
measured at the business unit level using a discounted cash flow approach that
incorperates our estimates of future revenues and costs for those business units. As of
May 25, 2008 our reporting units containing goodwill include our advanced power,
ASIC & telecom, data conversion, infrastructure power products, interface, mobile
devices power products, non-audio amplifier and performance power products
business units, all of which are operating segments within our Analog reportable
segment. The estimates we use in evaluating goodwill are consistent with the plans and
estimates that we use to manage the underlying businesses. If we fail to deliver new
products for these business units, if the products fail to gain expected market
acceptance, or if market conditions for these business units fail to materialize as
anticipated, our revenue and cost forecasts may not be achieved and we may incur
charges for goodwill impairment, which could be significant and could have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations.

d) Income Taxes
We determine deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the future tax consequences
that can be attributed to net operating loss and credit carryovers and differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and
their respective tax bases, using the enacted tax rate expected to be applied when the
taxes are actually paid or recovered. The recognition of deferred tax assets is reduced
by a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that the tax benefits will not be
realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets depends upon the generation of
future taxable income during the periods in which the net operating loss and credit
carryovers and differences between financial statement carrying amounts and their
respective tax bases become deductible. In determining a valuation allowance, we
consider past performance, expected future taxable income and prudent and feasible
tax planning strategies. We currently have a valuation allowance that has been
established primarily against the reinvestment and investment tax credits related to our
operation in Malaysia, as we have concluded that a significant portion of the deferred
tax assets will not be realized due to the uncertainty of sufficient taxable income in
Malaysia beyond the foreseeable future. Our forecast of expected future taxable income
is based on historical taxable income and projections of future taxable income over the
periods that the deferred tax assets are deductible. Changes in market conditions that
differ materially from our current expectations and changes in future tax laws in the
United States and international jurisdictions or changes in our tax structure may cause
us to change our judgments of future taxable income. These changes, if any, may
require us to adjust the existing tax valuation allowance higher or lower than the
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amount we currently have recorded; such an adjustment could have a material impact
on the tax expense for the fiscal year.

The calculation of tax liabilities involves significant judgment in estimating the
impact of uncertainties in the application of complex tax laws. Although FASB
Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48), which we adopted at the beginning of fiscal 2008,
provides further clarification on the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes
recognized in the financial statements, the new threshold and measurement attribute
prescribed by FIN 48 will continue to require significant judgment by management. If
the ultimate resolution of tax uncertainties is different from what we have currently
estimated, this could have a material impact on income tax expense.

Share-based Compensation

We measure and record compensation expense for all share-based payment awards
based on estimated fair values in accordance with SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-
Based Payment” (SFAS No. 123 (R)). We provide share-based awards to our employees,
executive officers and directors through various equity compensation plans including
our employee equity, stock option, stock purchase and restricted stock plans. The fair
value of stock option and stock purchase equity awards is measured at the date of grant
using a Black-Scholes option pricing model and the fair value of restricted stock awards
is based on the market price of our common stock on the date of grant. In determining
fair value using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, management is required to
make certain estimates of the key assumptions such as expected life, expected volatility,
dividend vields and risk free interest rates. The estimates of these key assumptions
involve judgment regarding subjective future expectations of market price and trends.
The assumptions used in determining expected life and expected volatility have the
most significant effect on calculating the fair value of share-based awards. When we
began to record compensation expense for share-based payment awards at the
beginning of fiscal 2007, we used the simplified method specified by the SEC’s Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 107 to determine the expected life of stock coptions, For all
options granted after December 31, 2007, we determine expected life based on
historical stock option exercise experience for the last four years, adjusted for our
expectation of future exercise activity. Expected volatility is based on implied volatility,
as management has determined that implied volatility better reflects the market’s
expectation of future volatility than historical volatility. If we were to determine that
another method to estimate these assumptions was more reasonable than our current
methods, or if another method for calculating these assumptions were to be prescribed
by autharitative guidance, the fair value for our share-based awards could change
significantly. If the expected volatility and/or expected life were increased under our
assumptions, then the Black-Scholes computation of fair value would also increase,
thereby resulting in higher compensation costs being recorded.

SFAS No. 123(R) also requires forfeitures to be estimated at the date of grant. Our
estimate of forfeitures is based on our historical activity, which we believe is indicative
of expected forfeitures. In subsequent periods if the actual rate of forfeitures differs
from our estimate, the forfeiture rates may be revised, as necessary. Changes in the
estimated forfeiture rates can have a significant effect on share-based compensation
expense since the effect of adjusting the rate is recognized in the period the forfeiture
estimate is changed.
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We also grant performance share units to executive officers that require us to
estimate expected achievement of performance targets over a two-year performance
period. This estimate involves judgment regarding future expectations of various
financial performance measures such as those described in the overview section below.,
If our estimate of the level of financial performance measures expected to be ultimately
achieved changes, the related share-based compensation expense may be significantly
increased or reduced in the period that our estimate changes.

* Overview

Throughout fiscal 2008, we continued to focus on providing leading-edge analog solutions with a
large portion of our sales classified within the analog standard linear categories, which the WSTS
defines as amplifiers, data converters, regulators and references (power management products), and
interface products. In fiscal 2008, approximately 98 percent of our total net sales came from our
Analog segment, compared to approximately 95 percent in fiscal 2007 and approximately 89 percent
in fiscal 2006. We believe that the success we have experienced in these markets has been driven by
our understanding of the analog markets and our circuit design capabilities, especially as they pertain
to energy efficiency that is enabled by our products. Our success has also been due to our innovative
packaging and proprietary analog process technology, as well as our comprehensive manufacturing
supply and logistics network.

Net sales in fiscal 2008 were lower than net sales in fiscal 2007. During the first half of fiscal
2008, we experienced sequential quarterly growth in sales for each of the first two quarters as
demand for our new analog products increased, particularly in the wireless handset and personal
mobile device markets. However, by the third quarter of fiscal 2008 cur sales declined nearly
9 percent from the second quarter of fiscal 2008 due to a combination of lower demand in the
wireless handset market and holiday seasonality. Net sales improved in the last quarter of fiscal 2008,
as new orders increased sequentially by 12 percent over the third quarter of fiscal 2008.

Although net sales in fiscal 2008 were lower compared to fiscal 2007, our gross margin of
64.4 percent was higher than fiscal 2007 gross margin of 60.7 percent. Our performance in gross
margin percentage is attributable to continuing improvement in manufacturing efficiencies and
execution relative to the level of factory utilization, as well as improvements in our sales mix of
higher-value analog products. We continue to direct our research and development investments on
high-value growth areas in analog markets and applications, with particular focus on power
management and energy efficiency.

In reviewing our performance, we consider several key financial measures. When reviewing
our net sales performance, we look at sales growth rates, new order rates {including turns orders,
which are orders received with delivery requested in the same quarter), blended-average selling
prices, sales of new products and market share. We define new products as those introduced within
the last three years. We gauge our operating income performance based on gross margin trends,
product mix, blended-average selling prices, factory utilization rates and operating expenses relative
to sales. We are focused on growing our earnings per share over time while generating a consistently
high return on invested capital by concentrating on operating income, working capital management,
capital expenditures and cash management. We determine return on invested capital based on net
operating income after tax divided by invested capital, which generally consists of total assets
reduced by goodwill and non-interest bearing liabilities.

We repurchased a total of 85.9 million shares of our common stock during fiscal 2008 for
$2,123.5 million. Of these shares, 58.0 million shares were repurchased through the $1.5 billion
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accelerated stock repurchase program announced in June 2007. The other 27.9 million shares were
repurchased in the open market for $623.5 million in connection with two $500 million stock
repurchase programs, one announced in March 2007 and the other in June 2007. The stock
repurchase activity is one element of our overall program to deliver a consistently high return on
invested capital, which we believe improves shareholder value over time. See Note 12 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for a more complete discussion of the stock repurchase program
and Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a more complete discussion of the debt we
incurred as part of the accelerated stock repurchase program.

We also continued with the dividend program in fiscal 2008, during which time we paid a total
of $50.6 million in cash dividends. On June 3, 2008, cur Board of Directors declared a cash dividend
of $0.06 per outstanding share of common stock, which was paid on July 7, 2008 to shareholders of
record at the close of business on June 16, 2008.

The following table and discussion provide an overview of our operating results for fiscal years
2008, 2007 and 2006:

Years Ended: May 25, May 27, May 28,
(In Millions) 2008 % Change 2007 % Change 2006
Net sales $1,885.9 {2.3%) $1,929.9 (10.6%) $2,158.1
QOperating income $ 509.1 $ 489.7 $ 665.5
As a % of net sales 27.0% 25.4% 30.8%
Net income $ 3323 $§ 375.3 $ 449.2
As a % of net sales 17.6% 19.4% 20.8%

Net income for fiscal 2008 includes $27.2 million for severance and restructuring expenses
related to a factory modernization effort announced in January 2008 and a workforce reduction
announced in April 2008 {See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). Net income for fiscal
2008 also includes a charge of $3.3 million related to settlement of a legal matter {See Note 14 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements), a gain of $3.1 million from the sale of the Singapore plant assets
{See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements) and other operating income of $0.6 million
(See Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). These charges and credits are all pre-tax
amounts. Income tax expense for fiscal 2008 includes $31.9 million of tax benefits that arose
primarily from the resolution of international tax inquiries, the expiration of statute of limitations
associated with international tax matters and costs related to the manufacturing restructure and
workforce reduction actions.

Net income for fiscal 2007 included an in-process R&D charge of $6.1 million related to the
acquisition of Xignal {See Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements), severance and
restructuring expenses of $4.6 million that mostly related to our Scotland and Texas manufacturing
facilities (See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements) and ather operating income of
$2.8 million (See Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). These charges and credits are all
pre-tax amounts. income tax expense for fiscal 2007 included a tax benefit of approximately
$18.5 million from the retroactive reinstatement to January 1, 2006 of the U.S. federal R&D tax credit
under the Tax Relief and Health Care Act of 2006 enacted into law during fiscal 2007. Of the
$18.5 million, $12.4 million was related to fiscal 2007 R&D expenses and $6.1 million was related to
fiscal 2006 R&D expenses. The tax benefit from the federal R&D tax credit was partially offset by the
non-deductible nature of the in-process R&D charge related to the Xignal acquisition.
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Net income for fiscal 2006 included a net charge of $33.7 million for severance and
restructuring expenses arising from cost reduction actions taken during the year {See Note 5 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements}, goodwill impairment losses of $7.6 million {See Note 7 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements}, gain from sale of businesses of $28.9 million {See Note 5 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements} and other operating income of $5.7 million (See Note 3 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements). All of these charges and credits are pre-tax amounts. Income tax
expense for fiscal 2006 included $24.5 million of tax expense related to the repatriation of
accumulated foreign earnings under provisions of the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004.

* Net Sales

Years Ended: May 25, May 27, May 28,
{in Millions) 2008 % Change 2007 % Change 2006
Analog segment $1,839.7 0.8% $1,825.0 {6.4%) $1,929.7
As a % of net sales 97.6% 94.6% 89.4%
All others $ 46.2 {(56.0%) $ 104.9 (54.1%) $ 228.4
As a % of net sales 2.4% 5.4% 10.6%
Total net sales $1,885.9 $1,929.9 $2,158.1

100% 100% 100%

The chart above and the following discussion are based on our reportable segments described in
Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Although net sales for the company in total were lower in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007,
net sales for our Analog segment in fiscal 2008 were slightly higher than in fiscal 2007 due to
increased sales for new analog products, primarily in the wireless handset and personal mobile
device markets where we have experienced growth associated with feature-rich devices that utilize
our analog solutions to enable features as well as enhance power efficiency and battery life. Unit
shipments of Analog segment products were 2 percent lower in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007,
but this decline in volume was favorably offset by higher blended-average selling prices that
increased 3 percent in fiscal 2008 over fiscal 2007. The increase in blended-average selling prices was
driven mainly by improved sales mix from higher-value analog products.

Within the Analog segment, net sales from our power management business units in fiscal
2008 grew 8 percent compared to fiscal 2007. Net sales from our amplifiers business units {including
audio amplifier products) in fiscal 2008 alsc grew 7 percent compared to fiscal 2007, However, net
sales from our interface and data conversion business units decreased in fiscal 2008 by 14 percent
and 6 percent, respectively, compared to fiscal 2007.

The decline in net sales in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007 for other operating business
units included in the category described as “All Others” was primarily driven by a significant decrease
in foundry sales associated with previously sold businesses. This decline was consistent with our
original plans and expectations.

For fiscal 2008, net sales in our geoagraphic regions compared to fiscal 2007 decreased by
10 percent in the Americas and 8 percent in Japan, while remaining relatively flat in the Asia Pacific
region and increasing by 3 percentin Europe. Regional sales as a percentage of total net sales in fiscal
2008 compared to fiscal 2007 were higher in the Asia Pacific region at 47 percent and Europe at
22 percent, while dropping to 20 percent in the Americas and 11 percent in Japan. The reported
amount of net sales in U.S. dollars related to foreign currency-denominated sales in fiscal 2008 was

38 National Semiconductor Annual Report 2008




favorably affected by foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations as the pound sterling, euro and
Japanese yen all strengthened over the fiscal year against the dollar. However, the effect of currency
exchange rate fluctuations on net sales reported in U.S. dollars was minimal since less than a quarter
of our total net sales were denominated in foreign currency and we have hedging programs intended
to minimize the effect of currency exchange rate fluctuations.

Analog segment sales in fiscal 2007 in total were lower than sales in fiscal 2006 due to lower
shipments to distributors, who reduced their inventories during the year, and lower demand from
customers, who were also affected by oversupply of inventory, as well as decelerating growth rates
in end demand. Unit shipments in our Analog segment were lower by 16 percent in fiscal 2007
compared to fiscal 2006. Notwithstanding the lower volume, blended-average selling prices
increased 13 percent in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006, driven mainly by improved sales mix
from our analog standard linear product portfolio.

Comparing Analog segment sales in fiscal 2007 with those in fiscal 2006, net sales from our
data conversion business unit grew 6 percent, which was more than offset by a decrease of
11 percent in net sales from the amplifiers business unit {including audic amplifier products} and a
decrease of 23 percent in net sales from the interface business unit. During this period, sales from our
power management business units were relatively flat.

For the other operating business units included in the “All Others” category, the decrease in
net sales in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 was primarily driven by a significant decline in
foundry sales associated with previously sold businesses.

For fiscal 2007, net sales in our geographic regions compared to fiscal 2006 declined by
22 percent in Japan and 16 percent in the Asia Pacific region, while remaining fairly flat in the
Americas and increasing by 2 percent in Europe. Regional sales as a percentage of total net sales in
fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 were higher in the Americas at 22 percent and in Europe at
21 percent, while dropping to 46 percent in the Asia Pacific region and 11 percent in Japan. The
reported amount of net sales in U.S. dollars related to foreign currency-denominated sales in fiscal
2007 was favorably affected by foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations in eurc and pound
sterling which strengthened over the fiscal year against the dellar and more than offset the
unfavorable effect of the Japanese yen as it weakened over the fiscal year against the dollar.
However, the effect of currency exchange rate fluctuations on net sales reported in U.S. dollars was
minimal since less than a quarter of our total net sales in fiscal 2007 were denominated in foreign
currency and we had hedging programs intended to minimize the effect of currency exchange rate
fluctuations.

+ Gross Margin

Years Ended: May 25, May 27, May 28,
{In Millions) 2008 % Change 2007 % Change 2006
Net sales $1,885.9 (2.3%) $1,929.9 {10.6%) %$2,158.1
Cost of sales 671.5 (11.4%) 757.7 {14.4%) 885.4
Gross margin $1,214.4 $1,172.2 $1,272.7
As a % of net sales 64.4% 60.7% 59.0%

We achieved a higher gross margin percentage in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007 despite lower
sales in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007. This higher gross margin percentage was due to
improvements in manufacturing efficiencies and execution relative to the level of factory utilization
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combined with improved product mix of higher-margin analog standard linear products. As part of
that product mix improvement, our blended-average analog selling prices in fiscal 2008 were higher
compared to fiscal 2007. Qur analog product portfolic has continued to improve through active
efforts to increase the portion of our business that comes from high value, high-performance analog
products that are more proprietary in nature. Wafer fabrication capacity utilization (based on wafer
starts) was 67 percent for fiscal 2008 compared to 62 percent for fiscal 2007, Gross margin in fiscal
2008 includes share-based compensation expense of $20.1 million compared to $21.0 million in
fiscal year 2007.

The increase in the gross margin percentage in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 was largely
driven by improved product mix of higher-margin analog standard linear products. A decline in
foundry sales from the businesses we had previously sold {which carried much lower gross margins)
also contributed to the improvement in gross margin percentage during fiscal 2007. Manufacturing
efficiencies we began to achieve in connection with the conversion and upgrading of our wafer-
manufacturing capacity in Scotland and Texas also aided our ability to sustain a higher gross margin
percentage despite a significant drop in factory utilization in fiscal 2007. Wafer fabrication capacity
utifization {based on wafer starts) was 62 percent for fiscal 2007 compared to 83 percent for fiscal
2006.

* Research and Development

Years Ended: May 25, May 27, May 28,
{In Millions) 2008 % Change 2007 % Change 2006
Research and development $363.0 (0.2%) $363.7 11.4% $326.6
As a % of net sales 19.2% 18.8% 15.1%

Although R&D expenses in fiscal 2008 were at a comparable level to R&D expenses in fiscal 2007, we
have continued to increase our investment in research and development on analog product areas.
Share-based compensation expense included in R&D expense for fiscal 2008 was $27.3 million
compared to fiscal 2007 which was $31.7 million. This decrease in share-based compensation
expenses more than offset higher spending in fiscal 2008 resulting from the acquisition of Xignal in
January 2007, as well as higher payroll and employee benefits expenses. We are continuing to
concentrate our research and development spending on analog products and underlying analog
capabilities such as DC to DC power conversion, signal conditioning, high-speed amplification and
low-power analog-to-digital conversion. During fiscal 2008, research and development spending in
the Analog segment was 3 percent higher compared to fiscal 2007 and we continue to invest in the
development of new analog products that can serve applications in a wide variety of end markets
such as personal mobile devices, communications infrastructure, alternative energy, industrial and
medical. A significant portion of our research and development is directed at power management
technology.

The increase in R&D expenses in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 was largely due to the
inclusion of share-based compensation expense in the amount of $31.7 million as a result of the
adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) beginning in fiscal 2007. During fiscal 2007, research and development
spending in the Analog segment was 18 percent higher than fiscal 2006. The in-process R&D charge
of $6.1 million related to the acquisition of Xignal in January 2007 is not included in R&D expenses for
fiscal 2007, and it is reported as a separate component of operating expenses in the consolidated
statement of income.
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+ Selling, General and Administrative

Years Ended: May 25, May 27, May 28,
{In Millions) 2008 % Change 2007 % Change 2006
Selling, general and administrative $315.5 1.5% $310.9 13.5% $273.9
As a % of net sales 16.7% 16.1% 12.7%

Selling, general and administrative expenses in fiscal 2008 include a $6.2 million credit that
represents a reduction in the liability associated with the employee deferred compensation plan due
to a decline in the market value of the employees’ corresponding investment assets for the plan. Until
fiscal 2008, the effect from changes in the market value of these same employee investment assets
has not been significant. See the discussion of a corresponding $6.2 miltion loss on investments due
to the decline in the market value of the employees’ investment assets described in the paragraph,
“Other Non-Operating Income {Expense), Net.” Excluding the effect of this credit, SG&A expenses
were higher in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007 primarily due to higher payroll and employee
benefit expenses, which more than offset a decrease in share-based compensation expense. Share-
based compensation expense for fiscal 2008 included in SG&BA expenses was $42.3 millicn
compared to $58.8 million in fiscal 2007. We focus on managing our cost structure, including SG&A
expenses, in line with our overall business model objectives, as well as current business conditions.

The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal
2006 is primarily due to the inclusion of share-based compensation expense in the amount of
$58.8 million as a result of the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) beginning in fiscal 2007. The increase
from the adoption of share-based compensation expense under SFAS No. 123(R) was partially offset
by lower variable compensation expenses in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006.

» Severance and Restructuring Expenses Related to Cost Reduction Programs

Our fiscal 2008 results include a net charge of $27.2 million for severance and restructuring expenses.
In January 2008, we announced that we would dispose of certain manufacturing equipment and
reduce the workforce at our wafer fabrication facilities as part of an action to modernize our facilities
and rationalize our capacity. In connection with this action, we eliminated approximately 200
positions, primarily at our manufacturing plants located in Ariington, Texas; South Portland, Maine;
and Greenock, Scotland. As a result of this action, we recorded a charge of $19.1 million. In April
2008, we announced a workforce reduction that eliminated approximately 128 positions across the
company, primarily in product line and support functions as part of our efforts to strategically align
resources in connection with our focus on accelerating revenue growth in key market areas that
require better power management and energy efficiency. As a result of this action, we recorded a
charge of $3.6 million. In addition, severance and restructuring expenses for fiscal year 2008 include
a recovery of $1.5 million for the release of the residual accrued balance of a lease obligation that has
been settled. See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a more complete discussion of
these actions and related charges, as well as a discussion of fiscal 2008 activity related to previously
announced actions.

Our fiscal 2007 results included a net charge of $4.6 million for severance and restructuring
expenses arising from actions in Scotland and Texas related to the conversion and upgrading of our
wafer-manufacturing capacity in those facilities. See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for a more complete discussion of these actions and related charges.

QOur fiscal 2006 results included a net charge of $33.7 million for severance and restructuring
expenses arising from cost reduction actions taken during fiscal 2006. These actions included the
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phased closure of our assembly and test plant in Singapore, steps to reduce indirect manufacturing
costs at our Texas plant and additional cost reduction actions primarily related to the reorganization
of our product lines into two groups {Signal Path Group and Power Management Group) originally
announced at the end of fiscal 2005. See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a more
complete discussion of these actions and related charges.

* Charge for Acquired In-Process Research and Development

In connection with our acquisition during fiscal 2007 of Xignal, we allocated $6.1 million of the total
purchase price to the value of in-process R&D. This amount was expensed upon acquisition because
technological feasibility had not been established and no future alternative uses existed for the
technology. See Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a more complete discussion of
the acquisition.

¢ Gain from Sale of Businesses

As part of our actions to reposition toward a higher-value portfolio, we have disposed of businesses
that did not align with our business model. Our fiscal 2006 results included a gain of $0.6 million upon
the completion in April 2006 of the sale of a small business unit that was developing high definition
products (HDP) and a gain of $28.3 million from the sale completed in June 2005 of our cordless
business unit. See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a more complete discussion of
these transactions.

+ Goodwill Impairment Loss

tn fiscal 2008 and 2007, no impairment losses were identified from our annual impairment
evaluations for goodwill, nor did any events or changes in circumstances arise during either fiscal
year that indicated our carrying values of goodwill were not recoverable.

Qur fiscal 2006 results included a $5.2 million impairment loss for goodwill in our HDP
reporting unit, which was recorded when we evaluated the business at the time we decided to sell it.
In fiscal 2006, we also recorded an additional $2.4 million impairment loss for goodwill in our CRT
reporting unit upon completing our annual evaluation of goodwill. The fair values of the HDP and CRT
reporting units were determined using a discounted cash flow approach that incorporated our
estimates of future sales and costs for the business units.

* Interest Income

Years Ended: May 25, May 27, May 28,
{In Millions) 2008 2007 2006
Interest income $33.8 $40.1 $33.7

The decrease in interest income for fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007 is due to lower interest rates
on lower average cash balances. The increase in interest income in fiscal 2007 over fiscal 2006 was
due to higher average cash balances and higher interest rates.

* Interest Expense

Years Ended: May 25, May 27, May 28,
{In Millions} 2008 2007 2006
Interest expense $85.5 $1.2 $1.9
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The increase in interest expense in fiscal year 2008 compared to fiscal year 2007 is due to
substantially higher debt balances associated with the debt transactions completed in June and July
2007 as part of the financing for our accelerated stock repurchase (See Note 9 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for a more complete discussion). Since some of our overall debt has floating
interest rates, changes in the reference interest rates that correspond to that debt will affect future
interest expense.

The decrease in interest expense in fiscal 2007 compared to fiscal 2006 was due to lower
interest rates.

* Other Non-Qperating Income (Expense), Net

Years Ended: May 25, May 27, May 28,
(In Millions) 2008 2007 20086
Gain (loss} on investments $(6.0) $2.0 $8.3
Share in net losses of equity-method investments - - (0.7)
Charitable contribution (0.2) - {9.7)
Total other non-operating income (expense), net $(6.2) $2.0 ${2.1)

The components of other non-operating expense, net, are primarily derived from activities related to
investment assets. The loss on investments of $6.0 million in fiscal 2008 represents a decline in the
market value of the investment assets held in the trust for the employee deferred compensation plan,
which is partially offset by a $0.2 miflion gain from other investments not associated with the deferred
compensation plan. See the discussion of a corresponding $6.2 million credit included in SG&A
expenses pertaining to the liability that relates to the deferred compensation plan investments
described in the paragraph, “Selling, General and Administrative.”

The gain on investments in fiscal 2007 reflects the change in unrealized holding gains and
losses from trading securities, which is partially offset by impairment losses on non-marketable
investments.

The gain on investments in fiscal 2006 reflects the sale of shares in available-for-sale securities
and in a non-publicly traded company, as well as the change in unrealized holdings gains from trading
securities, offset by an impairment loss on a non-marketable investment.

* Income Tax Expense

Years Ended: May 25, May 27, May 28,
(In Millions) 2008 2007 2006
Income tax expense $118.9  $155.3  $246.0
Effective tax rate 26.4% 29.3% 35.4%

The effective tax rate was lower for fiscal 2008 compared to 2007 due to an increase in tax benefits
recognized that arose primarily from the resolution of international tax inquiries and the expiration of
statute of limitations associated with international tax matters.

The effective tax rate for fiscal 2007 includes a tax benefit of approximately $18.5 million from
the retroactive reinstatement to January 1, 2006 of the U.S. federal R&D tax credit under the Tax Relief
and Health Care Act of 2006 enacted into law during the third quarter of fiscal 2007, Of the
$18.5 million, $12.4 million was related to fiscal 2007 R&D expenses and $6.1 million was related to
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fiscal 2006 R&D expenses. The tax benefit from the federal R&D tax credit was partially offset by the
non-deductible nature of the in-process R&D charge related to the Xignal acquisition. The fiscal 2007
effective tax rate was also lower than the rate for fiscal 2006 primarily because income tax expense in
fiscal 2006 included incremental tax expense of $24.5 million related to the repatriation of
accumulated foreign earnings under provisions of the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 and
$5.8 million related to discrete transactions recorded during fiscal 2006 that had higher effective tax
rates. Those discrete transactions included cost reduction and restructuring activities associated with
the announced closure of the Singapore plant and the sale of the cordless business.

We adopted FIN 48 effective at the beginning of fiscal 2008. The cumulative effect of applying
FIN 48 was a $37.1 million increase to retained earnings at the beginning of fiscal 2008. Historically,
we had classified unrecognized tax benefits as current income taxes payable. Under FIN 48, we now
classify unrecognized tax benefits as long-term income taxes payable except to the extent we
anticipate cash payment within the next year. Any prospective adjustments to our unrecognized tax
benefits will be recorded as an increase or decrease to income tax expense and cause a
corresponding change to our effective tax rate.

During the preparation of our fiscal 2008 financial statements, we identified an understatement
in net deferred tax assets relating to basis differences in fixed assets. The understatement occurred in
our fiscal 2005 income tax provision when we released a valuation allowance on our deferred tax
assets that excluded $41.5 million. As a result, our income tax benefit and net income in fiscal 2005
were each understated by $41.5 million, and basic and diluted earnings per share were understated
by $0.12 and $0.11, respectively. We concluded that these errors were not material to any prior year
financial statements under the guidance of Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 99, “Materiality.” Although
the errors were and continue to be immaterial to prior periods, because of the significance of an
out-of-period correction in the current year, we applied the guidance of Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 108, “’'Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstaternents when Quantifying Misstatements in
Current Year Financial Statements,” and revised the prior year financial statements to correct the
understatement of deferred tax assets. As a result, the fiscal 2006 beginning retained earnings
increased by $41.5 million from the additional release of a valuation allowance on our deferred tax
assets. The corresponding adjustments increased current deferred tax assets by $0.7 million and
non-current deferred tax assets by $40.8 million. See Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional information.

Our ability to realize the net deferred tax assets {$330.4 million at May 25, 2008) is primarily
dependent on our ability to generate future U.S. taxable income. We believe it is more likely than not
that we will generate sufficient taxable income to utilize these tax assets. Our ability to utilize these tax
assets is dependent on future results and it is therefore possible that we will be unable to ultimately
realize some portion or all of the benefits of these recognized deferred tax assets. This could result in
additions to the deferred tax asset valuation allowance and an increase to tax expense.

» Share-Based Compensation Expense

Beginning in fiscal 2007, we adopted SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment,” which
requires the measurement and recognition of compensation expense for all share-based payment
awards based on estimated fair value. We provide share-based awards to our employees, executive
officers and directors through various equity compensation plans including our employee equity,
stock option, stock purchase and restricted stock plans. For further detail and a description of these
plans, see Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this Form 10-K for the year ended
May 25, 2008.
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We applied the modified prospective transition method to adopt SFAS No. 123(R) and
accordingly, operating results for periods prior to fiscal 2007 have not been restated to reflect the
adoption of SFAS No. 123(R). In the year we adopted SFAS No. 123(R), the effect on operating results
in fiscal 2007 was a decrease in net income of $64.5 million and a decrease to basic earnings per
share of $0.20 and diluted earnings per share of $0.19 from the amounts they woutd have been under
the previous accounting standard. Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), we measured
compensation expense in accordance with the intrinsic method of Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and reported pro forma information
regarding netincome and earnings per share required by SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” (SFAS No. 123) as amended by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation - Transition and Disclosure.”

The fair value of awards for our stock option and stock purchase plans is measured at the date
of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing model which requires the input of certain key
assumptions. Upon adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), we changed the method used to determine the
assumption for expected volatility. Beginning in fiscal 2007, the expected volatility assumption is
based on implied volatility, as management has determined that implied volatility better reflects the
market’s expectation of future volatility than historical volatility. Prior to fiscal 2007, we used our
historical stock price volatility in accordance with the requirements of SFAS No. 123 for purposes of
our pro forma information. This change results in a lower volatility assumption for fiscal 2007
compared to fiscal 2008. See Note 1 and Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for
additional discussion of and updates regarding our share-based compensation plans and the effect
of share-based compensation expense.

Share-based compensation expense was $89.7 million in fiscal 2008 compared to
$111.5 million in fiscal 2007 and $16.1 million fiscal 2006. The decrease in expense in fiscal 2008
compared to fiscal 2007 is mainly due to the drop off of higher compensation expense from stock
options granted pricr to fiscal 2007 that was determined based on using historical volatility. The
expense from these stock options diminishes as they become fully vested.

* Foreign Qperations

Our foreign operations include manufacturing facilities in the Asia Pacific region and Europe and
sales offices throughout the Asia Pacific region, Europe and Japan. A portion of the transactions at
these facilities is denominated in local currency, which exposes us to risk from exchange rate
fiuctuations. Our exposure from expenses at foreign manufacturing facilities during fiscal 2008 was
concentrated in U.K. pound sterling, Malaysian ringgit and Chinese RMB. Where practical, we hedge
net non-U.S. dollar denominated asset and liability positions using forward exchange and purchased
option contracts. Qur exposure from foreign currency denominated revenue is limited to the
Japanese yen and the euro. We hedge up to 100 percent of the notional value of outstanding
customer orders denominated in foreign currency using forward exchange contracts and
over-the-counter foreign currency options. A portion of anticipated foreign sales commitments is at
times hedged using purchased option contracts that have an original maturity of one year or less.

At some of our international locations, we maintain defined benefit pension plans that operate
in accordance with local statutes and practices. In fiscal 2007, we adopted the provisions of SFAS
No. 158, "Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans — an
amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R),” which requires the recognition on the
consolidated balance sheet of the funded status for defined benefit pension plans. Upon
implementation, we remeasured the ending funded status of our plans using their historical
exchange rates. In fiscal 2008, we determined that, consistent with the underlying principles of SFAS
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No. 158, the ending balance of the funded status as of May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2007 should reflect
the remeasurement of those balances using the current exchange rates at the respective balance
sheet dates. Therefore, for the fiscal 2008 Form 10-K, we have revised the fiscal 2007 balance to
reflect remeasurement using the current exchange rate at May 27, 2007. This resulted in an increase
in other non-current liabilities of $25.2 million. The corresponding offsets increased accumulated
other comprehensive loss by $21.8 million and deferred tax assets by $3.4 million. See Note 1 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

« Financial Market Risks

We are exposed to financial market risks, including changes in interest rates and foreign currency
exchange rates. To mitigate these risks, we use derivative financial instruments. We do not use
derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes.

Approximately $700 million of our long-term debt has floating interest rates whereby an
increase in the reference interest rate increases our interest expense and likewise, a decrease in the
reference interest rate decreases our interest expense. At our current debt levels, a change in the
London Interbank QOffered Rate, or LIBOR, of one percentage point would result in a corresponding
change in our interest expense of up to approximately $7.0 million annually. Although interest rates
decreased in fiscal 2008, there is no guarantee that rates will continue to decrease. Moreover,
increases in interest expense would be mitigated by a similar increase in interest income earned from
our large cash portfolio. The remainder of our long-term debt totaling approximately $775 million has
fixed interest rates and is not affected by changes in interest rates. A series of decreases in interest
rates has a significant effect on the amount of interest income we earn from our cash portfolio due to
the short-term nature of the major portion of our cash portfolio. At the same time, interest expense
would be positively affected since as noted above, a portion of our long-term debt has floating
interest rates. A significant portion of the floating-interest-rate debt can be repaid at any time without
incurring prepayment penalties.

A substantial majority of our revenue and capital spending is transacted in U.S. dollars.
However, we do enter into transactions in other currencies, primarily the Japanese yen, pound
sterling, euro and various other Asian currencies. To protect against reductions in value and the
volatility of future cash flows caused by changes in foreign exchange rates, we have established
programs to hedge our exposure to these changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Our hedging
programs reduce, but do not always eliminate, the impact of foreign currency exchange rate
movements. An adverse change (defined as 15 percent in all currencies) in exchange rates would
result in a decline in income before taxes of less than $10 million. This calculation assumes that each
exchange rate would change in the same direction relative to the U.S. dollar. In addition to the direct
effects of changes in exchange rates, these changes typically affect the volume of sales or the foreign
currency sales price as competitors’ products become more or less attractive. Our sensitivity analysis
of the effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates does not factor in a potential change in
sales levels or local currency selling prices. Ali of these potential changes are based on sensitivity
analyses performed as of May 25, 2008.
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* Liquidity and Capital Resources

Years Ended: May 25, May 27, May 28,
{In Millions) 2008 2007 2006

Net cash provided by operating activities $6443 $618.3 $796.9
Net cash used in investing activities {102.0) {8.4) {36.0)
Net cash used by financing activities {634.1) (713.5) {695.8)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents $ (91.8) $(1036) & 65.1

The primary factors contributing to the changes in cash and cash equivalents in fiscal 2008, 2007 and
2006 are described below:

During fiscal 2008, cash from operating activities was generated by net income, adjusted for
non-cash items {primarily depreciation and amortization, and share-based compensation expense)
and a positive impact from changes in working capital components. Changes in working capital that
had a positive effect are attributable to an increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses
associated with the accrual of interest from the long-term debt and decreases in inventories and
other assets. The decrease in other current assets primarily reflects the refund of certain operating
lease deposits upon exercising the option to purchase the related equipment. This was partially offset
by a decrease in other non-current liabilities primarily due to a contribution we made to one of our
defined benefit pension plans. In fiscal 2007, cash from operating activities was positively affected by
net income, adjusted for non-cash items {primarily depreciation and amaortization, and share-based
compensation expense}. This was partially offset by a negative impact from changes in working
capital components, primarily caused by a significant decrease in accounts payabte and accrued
expenses that was partially offset by decreases in receivables and inventories. In fiscal 2006, cash
from operating activities was generated primarily from net income, adjusted for non-cash items
{primarily depreciation and amortization and the tax benefit associated with stock options) combined
with a positive impact from changes in warking capital components.

The primary use of cash for investing activities in fiscal 2008 was the purchase of property,
plant and equipment of $111.3 million, mainly representing the purchase of machinery and
equipment, which was partially offset by proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment of
$16.6 million. The primary use of cash for investing activities in fiscal 2007 was for investment in
property, plant and equipment of $106.6 million, mainly representing the purchase of machinery and
equipment, and a business acquisition, net of cash acquired for $8.2 million. These amounts were
offset by the sale and maturity of available-for-sale securities of $110.8 million. The major use of cash
for investing activities during fiscal 2006 was for investment in property, plant and equipment of
$163.3 million, primarily for the purchase of machinery and equipment, which was partially offset by
the proceeds of $71.0 million from the sale of our cordless and high definition products businesses,
$46.9 million from the sale and maturity of available-for-sale securities and $11.6 million from the sale
of investments.

The primary use of cash for financing activities in fiscal 2008 was for the repurchase of
85.9 million shares of our common stock for $2,123.5 million, which includes 58.0 million shares of
our commaon stock repurchased under the $1.5 billion accelerated share repurchase program. The
remaining shares were repurchased in the open market. We also used cash for financing activities for
the payments of $50.6 million for cash dividends, $46.8 million of principal payments on the bank
term loan and $14.6 million related to tax withholdings paid on behalf of employees for net share
settlements. These amounts were partially offset by cash proceeds of $1,489.4 million (net of
$10.6 million issuance costs) that came from new debt, which included $1.0 billion unsecured senior
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notes issued through a public offering in June 2007 and a $500.0 million unsecured credit facility with
a consortium of banks funded in July 2007. Cash proceeds also included $103.7 million from the
issuance of common stock under employee benefit plans. Financing activities in fiscal 2008 also
include an additional $1.5 billion of cash received from the unsecured bridge credit facility in June
2007 that was used to finance the accelerated stock repurchase and an additional payment of
$1.5 billion for its full repayment after completing the $1.0 billion unsecured senior note offering in
June 2007 and the $500 million unsecured credit facility with a consortium of banks in July 2007. The
primary use of cash for financing activities in fiscal 2007 was for the repurchase of 32.9 million shares
of our common stock in the open market for $774.0 million, payments of $45.1 million for cash
dividends and $8.7 million for software license obligations. These amounts were partially offset by
proceeds of $103.1 million from the issuance of common stock under employee benefit plans. The
primary use of cash from our financing activities in fiscal 2006 was for the repurchase of 37.2 million
shares of our common stock in the open market for $950.7 million. We also used cash to pay
$34.2 million in cash dividends and $13.1 million on software license obligations. These amounts
were partially offset by proceeds of $303.3 million from the issuance of common stock under
employee benefit plans.

As of May 25, 2008, we had a balance of $255.8 million remaining available for future common
stock repurchases under our stock repurchase program announced in June 2007. On June 3, 2008,
our Board of Directors declared a cash dividend of $0.06 per outstanding share of common stock,
which was paid on July 7, 2008 to shareholders of record at the close of business on June 16, 2008.

We foresee continuing cash outlays for plant and equipment in fiscal 2009, with our primary
focus on new analog capabilities at our existing sites. At the current time, we anticipate that our fiscal
2009 capital expenditures will be slightly higher than the fiscal 2008 amount. We will continue to
manage the level of capital expenditures relative to sales levels, capacity utilization and industry
business conditions. We expect that existing cash and investment balances, together with existing
lines of credit and cash generated by operations, will be sufficient to finance the capital investments
currently planned for fiscal 2009, as well as the dividends paid in July 2008, the authorized stock
repurchase program, and principal and interest payments due on long-term debt.

Our cash and investment balances are dependent in part on continued collection of customer
receivables and the ability to sell inventories. Although we have not experienced major problems
with our customer receivables, significant declines in overall economic conditions could lead to
deterioration in the quality of customer receivables. Since we no longer hold investments with
maturities greater than 90 days, we did not experience any major declines in our cash equivalents or
marketable investments as a result of the current downturn in the financial markets. However, major
declines in financial markets could possibly cause reductions in our cash equivalents and marketable
investments in the future.
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The following table provides a summary of the effect on liquidity and cash flows from our
contractual obligations as of May 25, 2008:

Payments due by period:
Lessthan 1 -3 3 -5 More than

{In Millions) Total 1 Year Years  Years 5 Years
Long-term debt $1,477.3 | $ 625 $399.1 $640.7 $375.0
Operating leases:

Non-cancelable operating leases 61.0 24.5 26.7 7.6 2.2
Purchase Obligations:

CAD software licensing agreements 9.7 9.7 - - -

Industrial gas contracts 6.4 0.5 0.9 09 4.1

Utility contract 2.8 2.8 - - -
Other long-term obligations 5.6 3.6 2.0 - -
Total $1,562.8 | $103.6 $428.7 $649.2 $381.3

Cormnmercial Commitments:
Standby letters of credit under bank
multicurrency agreement $ 16| $ 09 $ 07 $ - $ -

In addition, as of May 25, 2008, capital purchase commitments were $18.4 million,

We do not currently have any relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial
partnerships, such as entities often referred to as structured finance or special purpose entities,
which might be established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or other
contractually narrow or limited purposes. We do not engage in trading activities involving
non-exchange traded contracts. As a result, we do not believe we are materially exposed to
financing, liquidity, market or credit risks that could arise if we had engaged in these relationships.

+ Recentiy Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 162, “The Hierarchy of
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles,” which provides a framework for selecting accounting
principles to be used in preparing financial statements that are presented in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles for nongovernmental entities. We do not expect the
adoption of this Statement to have any impact on our consolidated financial statements. This
Statement will be effective 80 days following the SEC’s approval of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board amendments to AU Section 411, “The Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity With
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.”

In March 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 161, “Disclosures
about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” which is intended to improve financial
reporting about derivative instruments and hedging activities by requiring enhanced disclosures to
enable investors to better understand their effects on an entity’s financial position, financial
performance and cash flows. This Statement is effective beginning in our third quarter of fiscal 2009,
We are currently evaluating this Statement and have not yet fully determined its effect on our
consolidated financial statements,
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In February 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Staff Position (FSP)
No. FAS 157-1 and FSP No. FAS 157-2. FSP No. 157-1 amends SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value
Measurements,” to exclude SFAS No, 13, “Accounting for Leases,” and other accounting
pronouncements that address fair value measurements for purposes of lease classification or
measurement under Statement 13. FSP No. 167-2 delays the effective date of SFAS No. 157 for
nonfinancial assets and non-financial liabilities, except for items that are recognized or disclosed at
fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis. FSP No. 157-1 is effective beginning in our
first quarter of fiscal 2009 upon adoption of SFAS No. 157 and FSP No. 157-2 is effective immediately.
We are continuing to evaluate SFAS No. 157, which will become effective beginning in our first
quarter of fiscal 2009, and have not yet determined whether it will result in a change to our fair value
measurements.

In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ratified the consensus reached
on Emerging Issues Task Force, or EITF, Issue No. 07-1, “Collaborative Arrangements.” The EITF
addresses accounting for collaborative-arrangement activities that are not conducted within a
separate legal entity. These collaborative arrangements are sometimes called “virtual joint ventures.”
Applying the equity method of accounting to activities performed outside a separate legal entity by a
“virtual joint venture” is prohibited. Revenues and costs incurred with third parties in connection with
the collaborative arrangement should be presented gross or net by the collaborators based on
criteria in EITF 99-19, “Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent,” and other
applicable accounting literature. Payments to or from collaborators should be presented in the
income statement based on the nature of the arrangement, the nature of the company’s business and
whether the payments are within the scope of other accounting literature. Other detail information
related to the collaborative arrangement is also required to be disclosed. The requirements under this
EITF will be applied to collaborative arrangements in existence at the beginning of our fiscal 2009. We
are currently analyzing the requirements of this EITF and have not yet determined its effect on our
consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 141 (revised
2007), “Business Combinations” and SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interest in Consolidated
Financial Statements.” These new standards represent the outcame of the FASB's joint project with
the International Accounting Standards Board and are intended to improve, simplify and converge
internationally the accounting for business combinations and the reporting of noncontrolling
interests in consolidated financial statements.

SFAS No. 141(R) replaces SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations;” however, it retains the
fundamental requirements of the former Statement that the acquisition method of accounting
{previously referred to as the purchase method) be used for all business combinations and for an
acquirer to be identified for each business. This Statement defines the acquirer as the entity that
obtains control of one or more businesses in the business combination and establishes the
acquisition date as the date that the acquirer achieves control. The new standard requires the
acquiring entity in a business combination to recognize all {and only) the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed in the transaction; establishes the acquisition-date fair value as the measurement
objective for all assets acquired and liabilities assumed; and requires the acquirer to disclose to
investors and other users all of the information they need to evaluate and understand the nature and
financial effect of the business combination.

SFAS No. 160 amends Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, “Consolidated Financial
Statements,” to establish accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a
subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. This Statement clarifies that a noncontrolling
interest in a subsidiary is an ownership interest in the consolidated entity that should be reported as
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equity in the consolidated financial statements. This Statement changes the way the consolidated
income statement is presented by requiring net income {o be reported at amounts that inctude the
amounts attributable to both the parent and the noncontrolling interest and to disclose those
amounts on the face of the income statement. It also aligns the reporting of noncontrolling interest in
subsidiaries with the requirements in International Accounting Standard 27.

Both SFAS No. 141(R) and SFAS No. 160 are effective beginning in our fiscal 2010. SFAS
No. 141 (R} will be applied to business combinations that are consummated beginning in fiscal 2010,
and SFAS No. 160 will be applied prospectively to all noncontrolling interests, including any that
arose before fiscal 2010. We are currently evaluating these Statements and have not yet determined
their effect on our consolidated financial statements.

In June 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ratified EITF Issue No. 07-3,
“Accounting for Nonrefundable Advance Payments for Goods or Services Received for Use in Future
Research and Development Activities.” The EITF requires non-refundable advance payments to
acquire goods or pay for services that will be consumed or performed in a future period in
conducting R&D activities to be recorded as an asset and recognized as an expense when the R&D
activities are performed. The EITF will be applied prospectively to new contractual arrangements
entered into beginning in our fiscal 2009. We currently recognize these non-refundable advanced
payments as an expense upon payment. The adoption of EITF 07-3 is not expected to have a
significant effect on our consolidated financial statements.

* Qutlook

Although overall sales were lower in fiscal 2008 compared to fiscal 2007, sales of our new analog
products increased, particularly in the wireless handset and personal mobile device markets where
we have experienced growth opportunities over the past year due to positive market trends
combined with our successful penetration into feature-rich devices in those markets. In the last
quarter of fiscal 2008, net sales also improved as new orders increased sequentially by 12 percent
over the third quarter of fiscal 2008, reflecting activity from both our QEM customers as well as our
distributors. A portion of the increase was attributable to a higher level of turns orders (which are
orders received with delivery requested in the same quarter) compared to the preceding third
quarter. As we entered the first quarter of fiscal 2009, our opening 13-week backlog was higher than it
was when we began the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008.

Distributor resales in our distribution channel were higher in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008,
driven by positive seasonal trends, while the number of weeks of inventory that distributors were
carrying was down slightly. During the first quarter of fiscal 2009, we anticipate that distributor resales
will be retatively comparable to the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 and overall OEM activity is expected
to remain stable with some amount of seasonality in certain regions due to summer holidays.

Considering all factors, including those described above, we provided guidance for netsalesin
the first quarter of fiscal 2009 to be in the range of $460 million to $475 million. However, if backlog
orders are cancelled or if the currently anticipated level of turns orders is less than expected, we may
not be able to achieve this projected level of sales. We expect our gross margin percentage in the first
quarter of fiscal 2009 to range from 85 percent to 66 percent. Our estimate includes approximately
$4 million of share-based compensation expense included in cost of sales in the first quarter of fiscal
2009. Wafer fabrication utilization is expected to stay relatively stable compared to the fourth quarter
of fiscal 2008, which was 71 percent. However, if there are further declines in factory utilization or
changes in the expected sales level or product mix, our gross margin percentage could be negatively
impacted.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

See information/discussion appearing under the subcaption “Financial Market Risks” of
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in Item 7 of
this Form 10-K and the information appearing in Note 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies,” and Note 2, ““Financial Instruments,” in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.
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NATIONAL SEMICONDUCTOR CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended
{In Millions, Except Per Share Amounts)

Net sales
Cost of sales

Gross margin

Research and development

Selling, general and administrative
Severance and restructuring expenses

Gain from sale of businesses

In-process research and development charge
Goodwill impairment loss

Other operating income, net

Operating expenses

Operating income

Interest income

Interest expense

Other non-aperating income (expense), net

Income before income taxes
Income tax expense

Net income

Earnings per share:
Basic
Diluted

Weighted-average common and potential common shares

outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

May 25, May 27, May 28,
2008 2007 2006
$1,885.9 $1,929.9 $2,158.1
6715 757.7 885.4
1,214.4  1,172.2  1,2727
363.0 363.7 326.6
315.5 310.9 2739

27.2 4.6 33.7

- - {28.9)

. 6.1 -

- - 7.6

{0.4) (2.8) {(5.7)
705.3 682.5 607.2
509.1 489.7 665.5
338 40.1 33.7
(85.5) (1.2) {(1.9)
{6.2) 2.0 2.1)
451.2 530.6 695.2
118.9 155.3 246.0

$ 3323 $ 37563 $ 4492
$ 131 % $ 1.32
$ 126 $ $ 126
252.8 3195 339.8
264.3 334.2 357.0

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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NATIONAL SEMICONDUCTOR CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended
{in Millions)

Net income

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities
Reclassification adjustment for net realized {gain) on
available-for-sale securities included in net income
Defined benefit pension plans:
Reclassification adjustment for the amortization of transition
asset included in net periodic pension cost
Recognition of actuarial gain {loss) arising during the period
Plan settlement
Derivative instruments:
Unrealized gain (loss) on cash flow hedges

Other comprehensive income {loss)
Comprehensive income

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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May 25, May 27, May 28,
2008 2007 2006
$332.3  $375.3  $449.2

- 0.3 4.8

- - (4.7

{(0.1) (0.1) (0.1)
274 19.9 (15.3)
{0.4) - -
0.1 (0.1) -
27.0 20.0 (15.3)
$359.3 $395.3 $433.9
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NATIONAL SEMICONDUCTOR CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended
{In Millions)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income with net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Share-based compensation expense
Excess tax benefit from share-based payment arrangements
Tax benefit associated with stock options
Deferred tax provision {benefit}
Loss (gain) on investments
Loss on disposal of equipment
Restructure equipment impairment
Gain on sale of manufacturing plant assets
In-process research and development charge
Impairment of goodwill
Gain on sale of businesses
Share in net losses of equity-method investments
Non-cash other operating {income} expense, net
Other, net
Changes in certain assets and liabilities, net:
Receivables
Inventories
Other current assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Income taxes payable
Other non-current assets
Other non-current liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Sale of equipment

Sale and maturity of available-for-sale securities
Sale of investments

Business acquisition, net of cash acquired

Sale of businesses

Funding of benefit plan

Other, net

Net cash used by investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from unsecured senior notes, net of issuance costs of
$7.1 million

Praceeds from bank borrowings, net of issuance costs of $3.5 million

Repayment of bank borrowing

Payment on software license obligations

Excess tax benefit from share-based payment arrangements

issuance of common stock

Payroll taxes paid on behalf of employees

Purchase and retirement of treasury stock

Cash dividends declared and paid

Net cash used by financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement
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May 25,
2008

May 27, May 28,
2007 2006

$ 3323 S 3753 S 4492

132.7 144.7 160.9
89.7 1115 16.1
(17.0) (12.6) -
27.6 29.6 104.5
5.1 {16.2) 703
6.0 (2.0) (8.3)
3.3 0.7 2.7
3.0 . -
{3.1) - -

. 6.1 -

- - 7.6

- (28.9)

. . 0.7

- - 1.9

4.0 2.4 (2.5)
13.3 57.9 (84.3)
27.1 15.7 {19.2)
23.3 7.9 45.0
46.0 (126.0) 71.8
(18.4) 18.9 17.0
- - (9.0
(30.6) 44 1.4
644.3 618.3 796.9
(111.3)  (106.8)  {163.3)
16.6 1.2 1.2

- 110.8 46.9

0.2 - 11.6

. {8.2) R

- - 71.0
(5.6) (8.5) (3.0)
(1.9) 2.9 (0.4)
{102.0) 8.4) {36.0)
992.9 - -
1,996.5 - -
(1,546.8) - -
(8.7) (8.7) (13.1)
17.0 12.6 -
103.7 103.1 303.3
(14.6) (1.4) (1.1)
(2,1235)  (774.0)  (950.7)
(50.6) (45.1) {34.2)
(634.1)  (7135)  (695.8)
(91.8)  (103.6) 65.1
828.6 932.2 867.1

$ 7368 $ 8286 $ 9322




SEMICONDUCTOR CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Operations

We design, develop, manufacture and market a wide range of semiconductor products, most of
which are analog and mixed-signal integrated circuits. Our goal is to be the premier provider of
high-performance analog and mixed-signal solutions. We look to create analog-intensive solutions
that provide maore energy efficiency, greater portability, better audio, sharper images and higher
performance in electronic systems.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include National Semiconductor Corporation and our
majority-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions are eliminated in
consolidation.

Our fiscal year ends on the last Sunday of May, and for each of the fiscal years ended May 25,
2008, May 27, 2007 and May 28, 2006, we had 52-week years.

Revision of Prior Period Financial Statements

During the preparation of our fiscal 2008 financial statements, we identified an understatement in net
deferred tax assets relating to basis differences in fixed assets. The understatement occurred in our
fiscal 2005 income tax provision when we released a valuation allowance on our deferred tax assets
that excluded $41.5 million. As a result, our income tax benefit and net income in fiscal 2005 were
each understated by $41.5 million, and basic and diluted earnings per share were understated by
$0.12 and $0.11, respectively.

In fiscal 2008, we determined that, consistent with the underlying principles of SFAS No. 158,
the ending balance of the funded status of our defined benefit pension plans at May 25, 2008 and
May 27, 2007 should reflect the remeasurement of those balances using the current exchange rates
at the respective balance sheet dates. In our fiscal 2007 financial statements, the funded status at
May 27, 2007 was remeasured at its historical exchange rate and therefore, understated by
$25.2 million.

We concluded that these errors were not material to any prior year financial statements under
the guidance of Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 99, “Materiality.” Although the errors were and
continue to be immaterial to prior periods, because of the significance of an out-of-period correction
in the current year, we applied the guidance of Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, “Considering the
Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial
Statements,” and revised the prior year financial statements. As a result, the fiscal 2006 beginning
retained earnings increased by $41.5 million for an additicnal release of a valuation allowance on our
deferred tax assets. The corresponding adjustments increased current deferred tax assets by
$0.7 million and non-current deferred tax assets by $40.8 million. We also revised the effect upon the
adoption of SFAS No. 158 in fiscal 2007 to reflect remeasurement of the funded status of our foreign
defined benefit pension plans using the current exchange rate at May 27, 2007. This resulted in an
increase in other non-current liabilities of $25.2 million and corresponding increases to accumulated
other comprehensive loss of $21.8 million and deferred tax assets of $3.4 million at May 27, 2007.
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The following table provides a summary of the effect from the adjustments described above to
previously reported balances and the revised balances reported in the fiscal 2008 consoclidated
financial statements:

Current Accumulated
Deferred  Non-current Other Other
Tax Deferred Non-current Retained Comprehensive
{In Millions) Assets Tax Assets, Net Liabilities  Earnings Loss
Balance as previously reported at
May 27, 2007 $ 73.2 $ 1944 $ 1325 § 1,685.7 $ (92.0)
Adjustments:
Deferred tax 1.0 40.5 - 41.5 -
Defined benefit pension plan - 34 25.2 - {21.8)
Revised bafance at May 27, 2007 §$ 74.2 $ 2383 $ 157.7 $ 1,727.2 $ (113.8)
Balance as previously reported at
May 28, 2006 $ 74.7 $ 185.7 $ 1656 $ 1,376.2 $ (113.5)
Deferred tax adjustment 0.8 40.7 - 41.5 -
Revised balance at May 28, 2006 $ 75.5 $ 226.4 $ 1656 § 14177 $ (113.5)
Balance as previously reported at
May 29, 2005 $ 126.9 $ 192.2 $ 1421 $ 961.2 $ (98.2)
Deferred tax adjustment 0.7 40.8 - 41.5 -
Revised balance at May 29, 2005 $ 127.6 $ 233.0 $ 1421 $ 1,002.7 $ (98.2)

The adjustments described above had no effect on the consolidated statements of income and
cash flows for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue from the sale of semiconductor products upon shipment, provided we have
persuasive evidence of an arrangement typically in the form of a purchase order, title and risk of loss
have passed to the customer, the amount is fixed or determinable and collection of the revenue is
reasonably assured. We record a provision for estimated future returns at the time of shipment,
Approximately 54 percent of our semiconductor product sales were made to distributors in fiscal
2008, compared to approximately 55 percent in fiscal 2007 and approximately 51 percent in fiscal
2006. We have agreements with our distributors that cover various programs, including pricing
adjustments based on resale pricing and volume, price protection for inventory and scrap
allowances.

In line with industry practices, we generally credit distributors for the effect of price reductions
on their inventory of our products and, under specific conditions, we repurchase products that we
have discontinued. In general, distributors do not have the right to return product, except under
custormary warranty provisions. The programs we offer to our distributors could include one or more
of the following:

» allowances involving pricing and volume. We refer to this as the “contract sales debit”

program.
* allowance for inventory scrap. We refer to this as the “scrap allowance’ program.
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Under the contract sales debit program, products are sold to distributors at standard
published prices that are contained in price books that are broadly provided to our various
distributors. Distributors are required to pay for this product within our standard commercial terms.
After the initial purchase of the product, the distributor has the opportunity to request a price
allowance for a particular part number depending on the current market conditions for that specific
part as well as volume considerations. This request is made prior to the distributor reselling the part.
Once we have approved an allowance to the distributor, the distributor proceeds with the resale of
the product and credits are issued to the distributor in accordance with the specific allowance that we
approved. Periodically, we issue new distributor price books. For those parts for which the standard
prices have been reduced, we provide an immediate credit to distributors for inventory quantities
they have on hand.

Under the scrap allowance program, certain distributors are given a contractually defined
allowance to cover the cost of any scrap they might incur. The amount of the allowance is specifically
agreed upon with each distributor.

The revenue we record for these distribution sales is net of estimated provisions for these
programs. Our estimates are based upon historical experience rates by geography and product
family, inventory levels in the distribution channel, current economic trends and other related factors.
We continuously monitor the claimed allowances against the rates assumed in our estimates of the
allowances. Actual distributor claims activity has been materially consistent with the provisions we
have made based on our estimates.

Service revenues are recognized as the services are provided or as milestones are achieved,
depending on the terms of the arrangement. These revenues are included in net sales and totaled
$25.1 million in fiscal 2008, $33.9 million in fiscal 2007 and $47.8 million in fiscal 2006.

Certain intellectual property income is classified as revenue if it meets specified criteria
established by company policy that defines whether it is considered a source of income from our
primary operations. These revenues are included in net sales and totaled $1.6 million in fiscal 2008,
$2.8 million in fiscal 2007 and $5.3 million in fiscal 2006. All other intellectual property income that
does not meet such criteria is not considered a source of income from primary operations and is
therefore classified as a component of other operating income, net, in the consolidated statement of
income. Intellectual property income is recognized when the license is delivered, the fee is fixed or
determinable, collection of the fee is reasonably assured and remaining obligations are
inconsequential or perfunctory to the other party.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of standard cost, which approximates actual cost on a first-in,
first-out basis, or market. The total carrying value of our inventory is reduced for any difference
between cost and estimated market value of inventory that is determined to be obsolete or
unmarketable, based upon assumptions about future demand and market conditions.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. We use the straight-line method to depreciate
machinery and equipment over their estimated useful life (3-9 years}. Buildings and improvements
are depreciated using both straight-line and declining-balance methods over the assets’ remaining
estimated useful life (5-40 years), or, in the case of leasehold improvements, over the lesser of the
estimated useful life or lease term.
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We capitalize eligible costs to acquire software used internally. We use the straight-line method
to amortize software used internally over its estimated useful life {3-5 years). Internal-use software is
included in the property, plant and equipment balance.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of identifiable net tangible
and intangible assets acquired in a business combination. Goodwill is assigned to reporting units and
as of May 25, 2008, we have eight reporting units that contain goodwill.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

We evaluate goodwill for impairment on an annual basis and whenever events or changes in
circumstance indicate that it is more likely than not that an impairment loss has been incurred. We
evaluate goodwill impairment annually in our fourth fiscal quarter, which has been selected as the
period for our recurring evaluation for all reporting units. Our impairment evaluation of goodwill is
based on comparing the fair value to the carrying value of our reporting units containing goodwill.
The fair value of a reporting unit is measured at the business unit level using a discounted cash flow
approach that incorporates our estimates of future revenues and costs for those business units.

We assess the impairment of long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying value may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows
expected to result from their use and eventual disposition. Our long-lived assets subject to this
evaluation include property, plant and equipment and amortizable intangible assets. Amortizable
intangible assets subject to this evaluation include developed technology, patents and technology
licenses we have acquired. Our impairment evaluation of long-lived assets includes an analysis of
estimated future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the assets over their
remaining estimated useful lives. If our estimate of future undiscounted net cash flows is insufficient
to recover the carrying value of the assets over the remaining estimated useful lives, we will record
an impairment loss in the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the fair value. if
assets are determined to be recoverable, but the useful lives are shorter than we originally estimated,
we depreciate or amortize the net book value of the asset over the newly determined remaining
useful lives.

Income Taxes

We determine deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the future tax consequences that can be
attributed to net operating loss and credit carryovers and differences between the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, using the enacted
tax rates expected to be applied when the taxes are actually paid or recovered. The recognition of
deferred tax assets is reduced by a valuation allowance if it is mare likely than not that the tax benefits
will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets depends upon the generation of
future taxable income during the periods in which the net operating loss and credit carryovers and
differences between financial statement carrying amounts and their respective tax bases become
deductible.

Earnings per Share

We compute basic earnings per share using the weighted-average number of common shares
outstanding. Diluted earnings per share are computed using the weighted-average common shares
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outstanding after giving effect to potential common shares from stock options, restricted stock and
restricted stock units based on the treasury stock method.

For all years presented, the reported net income was used as the numerator in our
computation of basic and diluted earnings per share. A reconciliation of the shares used in the
computation follows:

{In Millions, except exercise prices) 2008 2007 20086
Weighted-average common shares outstanding used for basic

earnings per share 2528 3195  339.8
Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock options, restricted stock and restricted stock units 115 14.7 17.2

Weighted-average common and potential common shares
outstanding used for diluted earnings per share 264.3 3342 3570

Anti-dilutive common equivalent shares:
Stock options:
Number of shares 23.0 20.6 10.9

Weighted-average exercise price $27.26 $26.46 3$29.84

Anti-dilutive common equivalent shares are not included in the calculation of diluted earnings
per share. For fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, the effect of these shares was anti-dilutive
because the exercise price of the related stock options exceeded the average market price during the .
year. Shares related to outstanding stock options at May 25, 2008 that were anti-dilutive could
potentially dilute basic earnings per share in the future.

Currencies

The functional currency for all operations worldwide is the U.S. dollar. We include gains and losses
arising from remeasurement of foreign currency financial statement balances into U.S. dollars in
selling, general and administrative expenses. We also include gains and losses resulting from foreign
currency transactions in selling, general and administrative expenses. Included in net income was a
net foreign currency gain of $2.1 million in fiscal 2008 and net foreign currency losses of $1.6 million
and $0.1 million for fiscal 2007 and 2008, respectively.

Financial Instruments

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash equivalents are highly liquid instruments with an original maturity
of three months or less. We maintain cash equivalents in various currencies and in a variety of
financial instruments.

Deferred Compensation Plan Assets. Employee contributions under the deferred compensation plan
(See Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements) are maintained in a rabbi trust and are not
readily available to us. Participants can direct the investment of their deferred compensation plan
accounts in the same investments funds offered by the 401{k}) plan. Although participants direct the
investment of these funds, they are classified as trading securities and are included in other assets
because they remain assets of the company until they are actually paid out to the participants. We
had deferred compensation plan assets of $563.7 million at May 25, 2008, $54.3 million at May 27,
2007 and $42.6 million at May 28, 2006, which are included in other assets. In connection with these
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trading securities, we recorded a net loss of $6.2 million in fiscal 2008, a net gain of $3.2 million in
fiscal 2007 and a net gain of $2.4 million in fiscal 2006. There is an offset for the same amounts
included in SG&A expenses in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2008, respectively, that represents the
corresponding change in the liability associated with the employee deferred compensation plan due
to the change in market value of these trading securities.

Derivative Financial Instruments. As part of our risk management strategy we use derivative financial
instruments, including forwards, swaps and purchased options, to hedge certain foreign currency
and interest rate exposures. Our intent is to offset gains and losses that occur from our underlying
exposure with gains and losses on the derivative contracts used to hedge them. As a matter of
company policy, we do not enter into speculative positions with derivative instruments. The criteria
we use for designating an instrument as a hedge include the instrument’s effectiveness in risk
reduction and direct matching of the financial instrument to the underlying transaction.

We record all derivative instruments on the balance sheet at fair value. Gains or losses
resulting from changes in the values of these derivatives are accounted for based on the use of the
derivative and whether it qualifies for hedge accounting. See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for a full description of our hedging activities and related accounting policies.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts for cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable
approximate their fair vatues due to the short period of time until their maturity. Fair values of
deferred compensation plan assets, long-term debt, currency forward contracts and currency
options are based on quoted market prices or pricing models using prevailing financial market
information as of May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2007. See Note 2 to the Consclidated Financial
Statements for fair values of derivative financial instruments and Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for fair value of long-term debt.

Share-based Compensation

We measure and record compensation expense for all share-based payment awards based on
estimated fair values in accordance with SFAS No. 123 {revised 2004}, “Share-Based Payment,”
which we adopted on May 29, 2006, the first day of fiscal 2007. SFAS No. 123(R) eliminates the ability
to account for share-based compensation transactions using the intrinsic value method under
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and
instead requires that such transactions be accounted for under the fair-value method. We applied the
modified prospective transition method to adopt SFAS No. 123(R) and accordingly, operating results
for periods prior to fiscal 2007 have not been restated to reflect the effect of SFAS No. 123(R). Under
the modified prospective method, share-based compensation expense includes amounts for those
share-based awards granted beginning in fiscal 2007 and all unvested share-based awards granted
prior to May 29, 2006. We provide share-based awards to our employees, executive officers and
directors through various equity compensation plans including our employee equity, stock option,
stock purchase and restricted stock plans as described in Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

The fair value of stock option and stock purchase equity awards is measured at the date of
grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing model and the fair value of restricted stock awards is
based on the market price of our common stock on the date of grant. The fair value of awards is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. The compensation expense for share-
hased awards is based on awards that are expected to vest and is reduced for estimated forfeitures.
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We apply an annual forfeiture rate that is determined based on historical forfeitures. Qur estimated
forfeiture rate is evaluated each reporting period and, taking into consideration all available evidence
both before and after the reporting date, we make appropriate adjustments. This forfeiture rate
represents the awards expected to be forfeited each year and results in the recognition of share-
based compensation expense over the vesting period for those awards that vest. For fiscal 2008 and
2007, forfeiture rates of 6.2 percent and 5.1 percent, respectively, were applied for share-based
compensation expense related to employee stock options (excluding officers). The compensation
expense for share-based awards granted prior to May 29, 2006 is based on the fair values previously
determined for the pro forma disclosure required under SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” adjusted for expected forfeitures.

Share-based compensation expense included in operating results for fiscal 2008, 2007 and
2006 is presented in the following table:

{In Millions, Except Per Share Amounts) 2008 2007 2006
Cost of sales:

Gross compensation $ 198 $§ 233 % -

Capitalized in inventory during the period (16.0) (17.6} -

Realized from inventory during the period 16.3 15.3 -

20.1 21.0 -

Research and development 27.3 31.7 3.0
Selling, general and administrative 42.3 58.8 13.1
Total share-based compensation included in income before

taxes 89.7 111.5 16.1
Income tax benefit (26.7} (33.4) {(5.9)
Total share-based compensation, net of tax, included in net

income $ 630 $ 781 $ 102
Share-based compensation effects on earnings per share:
Basic $ 025 $ 024 $ 0.3
Diluted $ 024 $ 023 $ 0.03
Share-based compensation capitalized in inventory $ 20 % 23 % -
Total share-based compensation $ 894 $ 1138 3% 16.1

The adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) at the beginning of fiscal 2007 increased our total share-
based compensation expense by including the recognition of new share-based compensation
expense arising from our stock option and stock purchase plans, which was not required under APB
No. 25. Share-based compensation expense recorded prior to fiscal 2007 included compensation
expense primarily associated with restricted stock awards. As a result, in the year we adopted SFAS
No. 123(R}, the effect on operating results in fiscal 2007 was a reduction in income before taxes and
net income of $90.3 miliion and $64.5 million, respectively, from the amounts they would have been
under the previous accounting standard. Corresponding basic earnings per share in fiscal 2007 was
reduced by $0.20 and diluted earnings per share was reduced by $0.19 in fiscal 2007. We have
reported the excess tax benefit from the exercise of share-based compensation awards as a
financing activity, with a corresponding amount reported as an operating activity in the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows for fiscal 2008 and 2007,
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Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123{R), we measured compensation expense in accordance
with the intrinsic method of APB No. 25 and reported pro forma information regarding net income
and earnings per share required by SFAS No. 123, as amended by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure.” The pro forma information illustrated the
effect on net income and earnings per share as if we had accounted for share-based awards to
employees under the fair value method specified by SFAS No. 123. Pro forma information required
under SFAS No. 123(R) for the period prior to fiscal 2007 is presented in the following table:

May 28,

{ln Millions, Except Per Share Amounts) 20086
Net income - as reported $ 449.2
Adjustments:
Share-based compensation charge included in net income determined

under the intrinsic value method, net of tax 10.2
Total share-based compensation benefit determined under the fair value

method, net of tax benefit 36.3
Net income - pro forma $ 495.7
Basic earnings per share — as reported $ 132
Basic earnings per share - pro forma $ 1.46
Diluted earnings per share - as reported $ 1.26
Diluted earnings per share - pro forma $ 139

The fair value of share-based awards to employees was estimated using a Black-Scholes
option pricing model that used the following weighted-average assumptions:

2008 2007 2006

Stock Options

Expected life {(in years) 4.1 41 5.3
Expected volatility 33% 37% 66%
Risk-free interest rate 4.6% 5.1% 4.2%
Dividend yield 0.6% 0.5% 0.3%
Stock Purchase Rights

Expected life {in years) 0.7 0.8 0.7
Expected volatility 35% 37% 31%
Risk-free interest rate 3.5% 4.9% 3.5%
Dividend yield 0.8% 0.5% 0.4%

When we began to record compensation expense for share-based payment awards at the
beginning of fiscal 2007, we used the simplified method specified by the SEC’s Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 107 to determine the expected life of stock options. For all options granted after
December 31, 2007, we determine expected life based on historical stock option exercise experience,
adjusted for our expectation of future exercise activity. The expected volatility is based on implied
volatility, as management has determined in connection with the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) that
implied volatility better reflects the market's expectation of future volatility than historical volatility.
Our historical volatility during the past several years included a period of time that our stock price
experienced significant increases and decreases. We believe that this past stock price volatility is
unlikely to be indicative of future stock price performance because of our transition to a more analog
focused company with particular emphasis on the analog standard linear categories. Our implied
volatility is determined based on our traded options which are actively traded on several exchanges.
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We derive the implied volatility using the closing prices of traded options during a period that closely
matches the timing of the option grant. The traded options selected for our measurement are
near-the-money and close to the exercise price of the option grants and have terms ranging from one
to two years. Prior to fiscal 2007, we used our historical stock price volatility in accordance with the
requirements of SFAS No. 123 for purposes of our pro forma information. The risk-free interest rate is
based upon interest rates that match the expected life of the outstanding options under our
employee stock option plans and of purchase rights under our employee stock purchase ptan. The
dividend yield is based on recent history and our expectation of dividend payouts.

The weighted-average fair value of stock options granted during fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006
was $8.49, $8.14 and $14.82 per share, respectively. The weighted-average fair value of rights
granted under the stock purchase plans was $6.78, $6.76 and $8.55 per share for fiscal 2008, 2007
and 20086, respectively.

Under our equity compensation plans, employees who retire from the company and meet
certain conditions set forth in the plans and related stock option grant agreements continue to vest in
their stock options after retirement. During that post-retirement period of continued vesting, no
service is required of the employee. For pro forma reporting purposes, we historically recognized
compensation costs of these options using the nominal vesting period approach. SFAS No. 123(R}
specifies that a stock option award is considered to be vested when the employee’s retention of the
option is no longer contingent on the obligation to provide continuous service (the “non-substantive
vesting period approach”). Under the non-substantive vesting period approach, the compensation
cost should be recognized immediately for options granted to employees who are eligible for
retirement at the time the option is granted. If an employee is not currently eligible for retirement, but
is expected to become eligible during the nominal vesting period, then the compensation expense
for the option should be recognized over the period from the grant date to the date retirement
eligibility occurs. Upon adoption of SFAS No. 123(R}, we changed the method for recognizing the
compensation cost for these options to the non-substantive vesting period approach for those
options that were granted beginning in fiscal 2007. if we had used the non-substantive vesting period
approach in calculating the amounts disclosed in the pro forma table above and for unvested option
grants prior to fiscal 2007, the pre-tax share-based compensation expense would have been lower by
$14.2 million in fiscal 2008, $19.5 million in fiscal 2007 and $23.2 million in fiscal 2006.

Use of Estimates in Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications
Certain amounts in the consolidated financial statements and notes to consolidated financial

staterments for prior years have been reclassified to conform to the fiscal 2008 presentation. Net
operating results have not been affected by these reclassifications.
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Note 2. Financial Instruments
Cash Equivalents

Our policy is to diversify our investment portfolio to minimize the exposure of our principal to credit,
geographic and investment sector risk. At May 25, 2008, investments were placed with a variety of
different financial institutions and other issuers. Investments with maturity of one year or less have a
rating of A1/P1 or better.

Our cash equivalents consisted of the following as of May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2007:

{in Millions) 2008 2007

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Available-for-sale securities:

Institutional money market funds $ 2426 $ 164.2
Commercial paper 109.9 259.3
3525 423.5

Held-to-maturity securities:
Bank time deposits 179.0 208.0
Total cash equivalents % 5315 $ 6325

Since we had no marketable investments at May 25, 2008 or May 27, 2007, there were no gross
realized gains or losses on available-for-sale securities recognized in fiscal 2008 or fiscal 2007. In
fiscal 2006, we recognized gross realized gains on available-for-sale securities of $4.7 million and
there were no gross realized losses on available-for-sale securities.

Although our non-marketable investments had no carrying value at May 25, 2008 and May 27,
2007, we still hold stock in certain non-publicly traded companies. As a result, we recognized gross
realized gains of $0.2 million from proceeds received from one of our equity investments in fiscal
2008. There were no gross realized gains in fiscal 2007, but we had gross realized gains of $5.4 million
in fiscal 2006, which came primarily from the sale of shares and acquisitions by third parties. We
recognized impairment losses of $1.2 million in fiscal 2007 and $4.2 million in fiscal 2006 for
non-marketable investments.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The objective of our foreign exchange risk management policy is to preserve the U.S. dollar value of
after-tax cash inflow in relation to non-U.S. dollar currency movements. We are exposed to foreign
currency exchange rate risk that is inherent in orders, sales, cost of sales, expenses, and assets and
liabilities denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. We enter into foreign exchange
contracts, primarily forwards and purchased options, to hedge against exposure to changes in
foreign currency exchange rates. These contracts are matched at inception to the related foreign
currency exposures that are being hedged. Exposures which are hedged include sales by
subsidiaries, and assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. Our
foreign currency hedges typically mature within one year.

We measure hedge effectiveness for foreign currency forward contracts by comparing the

cumulative change in the hedge contract with the cumulative change in the hedged item, both of
which are based on forward rates. For purchased options, we measure hedge effectiveness by the
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change in the option’s intrinsic value, which represents the change in the forward rate relative to the
option’s strike price. Any changes in the time value of the aption are excluded from the assessment of
effectiveness of the hedge and recognized in current earnings.

For derivative instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges, we record the
effective portion of the gains or losses on the derivative instrument in accumulated other
comprehensive loss as a separate companent of shareholders’ equity and reclassify amounts into
earnings in the period when the hedged transaction affects earnings. For cash flow hedges the length
of time we hedge our exposure is 3 to 6 months. For derivative instruments that are designated as fair
value hedges, the gain or loss on the derivative instrument, as well as the offsetting gain or loss on
the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk, is included in selling, general and administrative
expenses. The effective portion of all changes in these derivative instruments is reported in the same
financial statement line item as the changes in the hedged item. For derivative instruments that do not
meet the designation for accounting hedges, gains or losses on the derivative instrument are
immediately recorded in earnings. Beginning in fiscal 2008, derivative instruments used to hedge
exposures to variability in expected future foreign denominated cash flows are no longer designated
as cash flow hedges. A net realized gain from these derivative instruments was immaterial in fiscal
2008 and a net realized loss from fair value hedges in fiscal 2008 was also immaterial, In fiscal 2007,
we recognized a $0.7 million net realized loss from cash flow hedges and a $1.1 million net realized
gain from fair value hedges. In fiscal 2006, we recognized a $0.3 miliion net realized loss from cash
flow hedges and a $0.1 million net realized gain from fair value hedges.

We report hedge ineffectiveness from foreign currency derivatives for both forward contracts
and options in current earnings. We also report ineffectiveness related to interest rate swaps in
current earnings. Hedge ineffectiveness was not material for fiscal 2008, 2007 or 2006. No cash flow
hedges were terminated as a result of forecasted transactions that did not occur.

Fair Value and Notional Principal of Derivative Financial Instruments

The table below shows the fair value and notional principal of derivative financial instruments at
May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2007. The notional principal amounts for derivative financial instruments
provide one measure of the transaction volume outstanding as of fiscal year-end and do not
represent the amount of the exposure to credit or market loss. The estimates of fair value are based
on applicable and commonly used pricing models using prevailing financial market information at
May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2007. The fair value of forward foreign currency exchange contracts
represents the present value difference between the stated forward contract rate and the current
market forward rate at settlement. The fair value of foreign currency option contracts represents the
probable weighted net amount we would expect to receive at maturity. The credit risk amount shown
in the table represents the gross exposure to potential accounting loss on these transactions if all
counterparties failed to perform according to the terms of the contract, based on the then-current
currency 8xchange rate or interest rate at each respective date. Although the following table reflects
the notional principal, fair vatue and credit risk amounts of the derivative financial instruments, it does
not reflect the gains or losses associated with the exposures and transactions that the derivative
financial instruments are intended to hedge. The amounts ultimately realized upon settlement of
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these financial instruments, together with the gains and losses on the underlying exposures, will
depend on actual market conditions during the remaining life of the instruments.

Carrying Notional  Estimated Credit
(In Millions} Amount Principal Fair Value Risk
2008
FOREIGN EXCHANGE INSTRUMENTS
Purchased options:
Japanese yen $ - 3 9.0 $ - % -

2007
FOREIGN EXCHANGE INSTRUMENTS
Forward contracts - To sell dollars:

Pound sterling $ - % 100 $ - 8 -
Singapore dollar - 2.6 - -
Total $ - $ 126 $ - $ -

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that may subject us to concentrations of credit risk are primarily investments
and trade receivables. Our investment policy requires cash investments to be placed with high-credit
quality counterparties and limits the amount of investments with any one financial institution or direct
issuer. We sell our products to distributors and manufacturers involved in a variety of industries
including computers and peripherals, wireless communications and automotive. We perform
continuing credit evaluations of our customers whenever necessary and we generally do not require
collateral. Our top ten customers combined represented approximately 58 percent of total accounts
receivable at May 25, 2008 and approximately 62 percent at May 27, 2007.

Net sales to major customers as a percentage of total net sales were as follows:

May 25, May 27, May 28,

Years Ended: 2008 2007 2006
Distributor:
Avnet 15% 14% 12%
Arrow 12% 13% 12%
OEM:
Nokia 1% * *
* less than 10%

Sales to the distributors included above are mostly for our Analog segment products, but also
include some sales for our other operating segment products. Historically, we have not experienced
significant losses related to receivables from individual customers or groups of customers in any
particular industry or geographic area.
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Note 3. Consolidated Financial Statement Details

Consolidated Balance Sheets
{In Millions}

RECEIVABLE ALLOWANCES
Doubtful accounts
Returns and allowances

Total receivable allowances

INVENTORIES
Raw materials
Work in process
Finished goods

Total inventories

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Land

Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Internal-use software

Construction in progress

Total praperty, plant and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

Property, plant and equipment, net

OTHER ASSETS

Deposits

Debt issuance costs

income tax receivable

Deferred compensation plan assets
Other

Total other assets

ACCRUED EXPENSES

Payroll and employee related

Accrued interest payable

Severance and restructuring expenses
Litigation accruals

Other

Total accrued expenses
OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accrued pension cost

Deferred compensation plan liability
Other

Total other non-current fiabilities
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Unrealized loss on cash flow hedges
Defined benefit pension plans

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

2008 2007
$ 1.3 $ 1.2
24.1 31.2

$ 254 $ 324
$ 89 $ 171
93.7 109.5
46.0 49.4

$ 1486 $ 176.0
$ 298 $ 300
531.5 532.0
1,926.3 1,974.6
101.1 103.5
37.8 79.8
2,626.5 2,719.9
{2,069.2)  {2,136.4)
$ 5573 § 5835
$ 161 § 7.9
8.7 -
20.0 -
53.7 54.3
13.7 7.7

$ 1122 $ 699
$ 1005 $ 766
25.4 0.1
15.3 2.4

- 3.2

39.1 40.4

$ 1803 $ 122.7
$ 139 ¢ 753
53.7 54.3
17.8 28.1

$ 854 $ 157.7
$ - % (0
(86.8) (113.7)

$ (86.8) $ (113.8)
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O

Consolidated Statements of Income

({In Millions) 2008 2007 2006
OTHER OPERATING INCOME, NET

Net intellectual property income $(0.6) $(1.8) ${4.7)
Gain on sale of manufacturing plant assets (3.1} - -
Litigation settlement 3.3 - -
Net intellectual property settlements - - {3.4)
Intangible asset impairment - - 1.8
Other - (1.0} -
Total other operating income, net $(0.4) $(2.8) $(5.7)

OTHER NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE), NET
Net gain {loss) on marketable and other investments, net:
Trading securities:

Change in net unrealized holding gains {losses) $6.2) $32 $24
Available-for-sale securities:
Gain from sale - - 4.7
Non-marketable investments:
Gain from sale 0.2 - 5.4
Impairment losses - (1.2) {4.2)
Total net gain (loss} on marketable and other investments, net 6.0 2.0 8.3
Share in net losses of equity-method investments - - (0.7)
Charitable contribution (0.2} - (9.7)
Total other non-operating income {expense), net $(6.2) $20 $(2.1)
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Note 4. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information and Non-Cash Investing and
Financing Activities

(In Millions} 2008 2007 2006

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid for:
Interest $56585 $ 11 $1.9
Income taxes $117.3 $128.3 $16.

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH INVESTING AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cancellation of shares withheld for taxes on restricted stock and

i-N

performance share unit awards $146 $ 14 $1.3
Acquisition of software license under long-term contracts $ - $ 08 %205
Reduction in goodwill to recognize acquired tax asset $ 31 § - % -

Note 5. Cost Reduction Programs and Restructuring of Operations
Fiscal 2008

We reported net charges of $27.2 miilion in fiscal 2008 for severance and restructuring expenses
related to the actions described below. These actions reflect our strategy of continued focus on our
analog capabilities and on higher value-added analog products that generate higher gross margins
and preduce higher returns on invested capital.

In April 2008, we announced a warkforce reduction that eliminated approximately 128
positions across the company, primarily in product line and support functions as part of our effort to
strategically align resources in connection with our focus on accelerating revenue growth in key
market areas that require better power management and energy efficiency. As a result of this action,
we recorded a charge of $9.6 million for severance, which represents the total amount expected to be
incurred in connection with this workforce reduction. The majority of the affected employees are
expected to depart by the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2009. Severance amounts are generally paid
30-60 days after the employee’s actual departure date.

In January 2008, we announced that we would dispose of certain manufacturing equipment
and reduce the workforce at our wafer fabrication facilities as part of an action to modernize our
facilities and rationalize our capacity. We expect substantially all activities related to this action to be
completed by the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2009. In connection with this action, we eliminated
approximately 200 positions, primarily at our manufacturing plants located in Arlington, Texas; South
Portland, Maine; and Greenock, Scotland. The majority of the affected employees had departed by
the end of fiscal 2008. As a result, we recorded a total charge of $19.1 million, which represents the
total amount expected to be incurred in connection with this action, Of this amount, $13.2 million is
for severance and $3.2 million is other exit-related costs for dismantling and removing equipment.
This amount also includes non-cash charges of $4.5 million for the impairment of equipment. These
charges were partially offset by a $1.8 million gain recognized upon the subsequent sale of some of
the equipment.

In June 2007, we entered into an agreement with the landlord of a facility we vacated as part of
a previous cost reduction action. The agreement terminated the lease and we settled the remaining
obligations under the lease agreement for $4.2 million. As a result, we recorded a $1.5 million
recovery for the refease of the residual accrued balance of the lease obligation.
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The following table provides further detail of amounts reported as severance and restructuring
expenses on the condensed consolidated income statement for fiscal 2008:

Analog All

{in Millions) Segment Others Total
Workforce reduction:

Severance $6.5 $31 %96
Manufacturing restructure:

Severance - 13.2 13.2

Impairment of equipment - 4.5 4.5

Other exit-related costs - 3.2 3.2

Gain from disposal of equipment - (1.8) (1.8)

- 19.1 19.1

Release of reserves:

Other exit-related costs - {1.5) {1.5)
Total severance and restructuring expenses $6.5 $20.7 $27.2

In June 2007, we completed the sale of our assembly and test plant in Singapore that was
closed in fiscal 2007. The facility and its residual equipment were sold for $12.0 million to an
unrelated third party. The carrying value of the assets sold was $7.6 million. As a result, we recorded a
gain of $3.1 million in fiscal 2008, after deducting final transaction costs of $1.3 million. These assets
were part of our manufacturing operation, which is not considered an operating segment under
SFAS No. 131, but is a corporate group included in the category described as "All Others.”

Fiscal 2007

We reported net charges of $4.6 million in fiscal 2007 for severance and restructuring expenses
related to the actions described below. Our cost reduction and restructuring actions in fiscal 2007
were consistent with our focus on our analog capabilities and on higher value-added analog products
that generate higher gross margins and produce higher returns on invested capital.

In late fiscal 2006, we began upgrading the wafer-manufacturing capacity at our facility in
Greenock, Scotland to specifically support our high-value, high-performance analog products. This
significant capital investment project was focused on aligning our manufacturing capabilities with
expected future demand and on improving equipment productivity and efficiency in the factory. The
expected improvement in manufacturing efficiency reduces the direct labor requirements for the
Greenock operation. As a result, in November 2006 we terminated 33 employees who were a part of
the manufacturing workforce in the Greenock facility. All of these affected employees departed prior
to the end of November 2006. In connection with this action, we recorded a $1.3 million charge for
severance.

We also began the conversion of certain wafer-manufacturing capacity at our Texas facility
from 150mm to 200mm wafer-manufacturing capacity to support our high-value, high-performance
analog products. Similar to the objectives of the capital investment project in Scotland, this
conversion was expected to reduce product cost, as well as improve equipment productivity, which
should substantially reduce direct labor requirements for our Texas operation. Equipment conversion
started in June 2006 and was completed in the first half of fiscal 2008. The conversion activity
included a workforce reduction of 87 employees in Texas. All affected employees were notified in
early June 2006 and their departure dates coincided with the phased timing of the conversion. As a
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result, we recorded a $2.7 million charge for severance, which included severance for the affected
Texas employees, as well as severance associated with other minor workforce reductions in support
areas.

In addition to these severance charges, we recorded $0.6 million for exit-related costs that
were incurred under a lease obligation associated with a facility closure that occurred as part of a
prior cost reduction action.

The following table provides a summary by segment of the severance and restructuring
expenses described above that were recorded in fiscal 2007:

Analog All
{In Mitllions) Segment Others Total
Severance and restructuring expenses:
Greenock capacity upgrade:
Severance $ - $1.3  $1.3
Texas capacity conversion:
Severance 0.3 2.4 2.7
Other exit-related costs - 0.6 0.6
Total severance and restructuring expenses $0.3 $4.3 %46

We completed the closure of our assembly and test plant in Singapore by the end of the first
quarter of fiscal 2007. All production activity ceased by the end of July 20086. During the remainder of
fiscal 2007, we were actively engaged in a program to locate a buyer and sell the facility, including
residual equipment, in its current condition. As a result, the Singapore plant assets, which had a
carrying value of $7.6 million, were classified as "“held for sale” and reported in other current assets in
the consolidated balance sheet as of May 27, 2007,

Fiscal 2006

We reported net charges of $33.7 million in fiscal 2006 for severance and restructuring expenses
related to the actions described below. Our cost reduction and restructuring actions in fiscal 2006
were consistent with our strategy of focusing on our analog product capabilities.

In November 2005, we took steps to improve our competitive cost structure by reducing
indirect manufacturing costs, mainly at our Texas plant. This included a change in the plant’s
organizational structure and a reduction of its workforce. This action was completed by the end of
November and affected 57 employees, most of whom were indirect manufacturing personnel in the
Texas facility. As a result, we recorded a charge of $2.7 million for severance,

in July 2005, we announced that we would close our assembly and test plant in Singapore in a
phased shutdown after unsuccessful efforts to sell the plant on terms that were acceptable to us, as
we determined that the equipment in Singapore was of higher value to us than any of the potential
offers we received. The Singapore piant had been geared more towards complex, high-pin count
products and we have moved more to a product portfolio that does not have a great need for these
high-pin count packages. The plant's equipment and any remaining production volume were
consolidated into our other assembly and test facilities in Malaysia and China. The closure activities
were completed by the end of our first quarter in fiscal 2007. Approximately 973 employees were
notified of termination at the time we announced our decision to close the plant. Departure dates of
these employees coincided with the phased timing of the plant closure activities. In connection with
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this action, we recorded a charge of $28.2 million, primarily for severance. Non-cash charges of
$0.1 million are also included in this amount for the write-off of certain plant assets used in one of the
assembly lines that was immediately shut down in July 2005.

In addition to these charges, we recorded a net charge of $3.5 million for cost reduction
actions primarily related to the reorganization of our product lines into two groups (Signal Path Group
and Power Management Group) originally announced at the end of fiscal 2005. The charge included
$2.6 million of severance for 29 employees whose departures were completed in the first quarter of
fiscal 2007 and $0.9 million of other exit-related costs for a lease obligation.

The charges described above were partially offset by a $0.7 million credit for the release of
severance and other exit-related cost accruals no longer required due to completion of activities
related to prior cost reduction actions.

As part of our actions to reposition toward a higher-value analog portfalio, we have divested
businesses that do not align with our business model. In March 2006, we entered into an agreement
to sell a small business unit that was developing high definition products to Marvell International Ltd.
Our HDP business unit was an operating segment with insignificant revenues that was included
within the Analog reportable segment. Under the terms of the agreement Marvell acquired
intellectual property and certain assets of the HDP business for $7.0 million. The tangible assets of
this unit, primarily machinery and equipment, had a carrying value of $0.4 million. The remaining
intangible assets of the business were evaluated for impairment upon the signing of the agreement.
As a result of that evaluation, we recorded a $5.2 million goodwill impairment loss and a $1.8 miilion
impairment loss on an intangible asset in fiscal 2006 to adjust the carrying values of the remaining
assets of the business to their recoverable fair values. The sale transaction was completed in April
2006, at which time we recorded a $0.6 million gain that is included in our results of operations for
fiscal 2006.

In June 2005, we completed the sale of our cordless business unit to HgCapital, a private
equity investor based in London, U.K. The sale was originally announced at the end of fiscal 2005. The
cordless business unit was a part of the wireless operating segment within the Analog reportable
segment. Under the terms of the agreement, HgCapital acquired certain assets, primarily machinery
and equipment with a carrying value of $1.6 million, and intellectual property. In addition, HgCapital
agreed to hire approximately 70 engineers, who were based at our cordless business unit in
‘s-Hertogenbosch and its design center in Hengelo, The Nethertands. As a result, upon the close of
the sale we recorded a gain of $24.3 million that is included in our results of operations for fiscal 2006.
We also recorded an additional gain of $4.0 million, which represented contingent consideration
earned when the buyer achieved certain revenue milestones set forth in the agreement.
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The following table provides a summary of the cost reduction charges by segment recorded in
fiscal 2006:

Analog All
(In Millions) Segment Others Total
Cost reduction program charge:
Singapore plant closure:
Severance $ - $28.1  $28.1
Asset write-off - 0.1 0.1
Streamline operations:
Severance 0.4 2.3 2.7
Business reorganization:
Severance 0.7 1.9 2.6
Other exit-related costs - 0.9 0.9
1.1 333 344
Release of reserves:
Severance (0.2) {0.5) {0.7)
Total cost reduction program charge $0.9 $32.8 $33.7

Summary of Activities

The following table provides a summary of the activities related to our cost reduction and
restructuring accruals during fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006:

Fiscal 2008 Fiscal 2008 Cost Reduction and
Manufacturing Workforce Restructuring Actions
Restructure Reduction In Prior Years
Other Exit- Other Exit-
{In Millions) Severance Related Costs Severance Severance Related Costs  Total
Balance at May 29, 2005 $ 44 $5.9 $10.3
Cost reduction charges 334 0.9 34.3
Cash payments (28.7) {1.2) {29.9)
Release of residual
reserves {0.6) (0.1) (0.7
Balance at May 28, 2006 8.5 5.5 14.0
Cost reduction charges 4.0 0.6 4.6
Cash payments {12.0} (0.5} (12.5)
Exchange rate
adjustment - 0.6 0.6
Balance at May 27, 2007 0.5 6.2 6.7
Cost reduction charges $13.2 $3.2 $ 9.6 - - 26.0
Cash payments (7.3} (2.5} {1.2) {0.3) (4.6} {15.9)
Release of residual
reserves - - - - (1.5} (1.5}
Balance at May 25, 2008 $ 5.9 $0.7 $ 84 $ 0.2 $0.1 $156.3

During fiscal 2008 we paid severance to 133 employees in connection with workforce

reductions related to the actions described above that primarily occurred in fiscal 2008. Payments for
other exit-related costs include the payment of contract termination penalties and costs for
equipment removal as part of the manufacturing restructure announced in January, as well as
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payments of lease obligations associated with actions taken in prior years, including the settlement of
the lease obligation discussed above.

The balances at May 25, 2008 represent all remaining estimated costs for activities yet to be
completed as a result of the actions described above. Payments for a remaining $14.5 million of
severance balances are expected to be substantially completed during the first half of fiscal 2009.
Other exit-related costs of $0.8 million primarily relate to costs for dismantling and removing
equipment located in our wafer fabrication facilities located in Arlington, Texas; South Portland,
Maine; and Greenock, Scotland, which is expected to be completed during the first half of fiscal 2009.

Note 6. Acquisition

in January 2007, we acquired Xignal, a German-based developer of high-speed data converters.
Xignal develops continuous-time sigma delta analog-to-digital converters (ADCs), a technology that
enables high-resolution, high-speed ADCs with greatly reduced power levels compared to traditional
pipeline solutions. The acquisition of Xignal's technology and design team was intended to
strengthen our position in the data conversion market. The acquisition was accounted for using the
purchase method of accounting with a purchase price of $3.3 million (after assuming $3.1 million of
net liabilities) for all of the outstanding shares of both the company’s commaon and preferred stock. In
connection with the acquisition, we recorded a $6.1 million in-process R&D charge in fiscal 2007.
In-process R&D was expensed upon acquisition because technological feasibility had not been
established and no future alternative uses exist. The remainder of the purchase price was allocated to
net liabilities of $3.1 million and goodwilt of $6.3 million. Pro forma results of operations related to this
acquisition have not been presented since the current fiscal year operating results for Xignal up to the
date of acquisition were immaterial to our consolidated financial statements.

In fiscal 2008, one of our foreign operations generated sufficient taxable income to utilize a net
operating loss carryover that was acquired as part of the original purchase of Xignal. As a result, we
recorded an adjustment to reduce the amount allocated to goodwill by $3.1 million and recognize the
corresponding tax asset in fiscal 2008.

Note 7. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill

The following table presents goodwill by reportable segments:

Analog All .
{In Millions) Segment Others Total
Balances at May 28, 2006 $34.6 $227 $57.3
Acquisition of Xignal Technologies AG 6.3 - 6.3
Balances at May 27, 2007 40,9 227 63.6
Rearganization of reporting units 22.7 {22.7) -
Reduction in goodwill to recognize acquired tax asset {(3.1) - (3.1)

Balances at May 25, 2008 $60.5 $ - $605

At the beginning of fiscal 2008, one of our reporting units containing goodwill that was
previously reported in the category of “All Others,” was reorganized into a reportmg unit that is
included in our Analog segment.
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In the third quarter of fiscal 2008, one of our foreign operations generated sufficient taxable
income to utilize a net operating loss carryover that was acquired as part of the purchase of Xignal in
January 2007 {See Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). As a result, we recorded an
adjustment to reduce goodwill by $3.1 million and to recognize the corresponding deferred asset,
which is included in other assets in the consolidated balance sheet.

In fiscal 2007, we recorded $6.3 million of goodwill in connection with the acquisition of Xignal
(See Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements), In fiscal 2006, we recorded a $5.2 million
impairment loss for goodwill of the HDP reporting unit, which arose in connection with our decision
to sell the HDP business {See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). We also recorded an
additional $2.4 million impairment loss for goodwill of the CRT reporting unit, which arose in
connection with our annual evaluation of goodwill in fiscal 2006. The fair values of these reporting
units were determined using a discounted cash flow approach that incorporated our estimates of
future sales and costs for these business units.

Note 8. Asset Retirement Obligations

Our asset retirement obligations arise primarily from contractual commitments to decontaminate
machinary and equipment used at our manufacturing facilities at the time we dispose of or replace
them. We also have leased facilities where we have asset retirement obligations from contractual
commitments to remove leasehold improvements and return the property to a specified condition
when the lease terminates.

At the time we adopted SFAS No. 143, which prescribes the accounting for asset retirement
obligations, we did not recognize any asset retirement obligations associated with the closure or
abandonment of the manufacturing facilities we own. Our legal asset retirement obligations for
manufacturing facilities arise primarily from local laws and statutes that establish minimum standards
or requirernents in the event a manufacturing facility is shut down, or otherwise exited ar abandoned.
The Financial Accounting Standards Board has since published FASB Interpretation No. 47,
“Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations,” which clarified that the timing and (or)
method of settlement of a conditional asset retirement obligation should be factored into the
measurement of the liability when sufficient information exists. FIN No. 47 was effective by the end of
our fiscal 2006 during which time we considered these factors and evaluated the asset retirement
obligations associated with the closure or abandonment of our manufacturing facilities. As a result,
we determined that the asset retirement obligations related to these facilities were immaterial to our
financial condition and results of operations.
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The following table presents the activity for the asset retirement obligations included in other

non-current liabilities for the years ended May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2007;

{In Millions}
Balance at May 28, 2006 $3.1
Liability incurred for assets acquired 0.3
Liability settled {0.1}
Revision in estimated cash flows {0.1}
Accretion expense 0.2
Balance at May 27, 2007 34
Liability incurred for assets acquired 0.1
Liability settied {0.2)
Accretion expense 0.2
Balance at May 25, 2008 _ §35
Note 9. Debt
Debt at fiscal year-end consisted of the following:
(In Millions) 2008 2007
Senior floating rate notes due 2010, 3.05% at May 25, 2008 $ 250.0 $ -
Senior notes due 2012 at 6.15% 375.0 -
Senior notes due 2017 at 6.60% 375.0 -
Bank floating rate unsecured term loan, 3.20% at May 25, 2008 453.1 -
Unsecured promissory note at 2.50% 24.1 20.4
Other 0.1 0.2
Total debt 1,477.3 20.6
Less current portion of long-term debt 62.5 -
Long-term debt $1,414.8 $20.6

In June 2007, we entered into an unsecured bridge credit facility with an affiliate of Goldman
Sachs for $1.5 billion which was used to finance the accelerated stock repurchase program
announced in June 2007 (see Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). Interest on the
bridge loan was paid weekly at 0.5 percent over the one-week LIBOR. This unsecured bridge credit
facility was then repaid and the debt was effectively replaced with $1.0 billion principal amount of
senior unsecured notes issued in June 2007 through a public offering and a $500 million unsecured
term loan with a consortium of banks funded in July 2007.

The offering of unsecured notes included $250.0 million aggregate principal amount of senior
floating rate notes due June 2010, $375.0 million aggregate principal amount of 6.15 percent senior
notes due June 2012 and $375.0 million aggregate principal amount of 6.60 percent senior notes due
June 2017. The senior floating rate notes bear interest at 0.25 percent over the three-month LIBOR,
with the interest reset and payable quarterly, and are redeemable by us beginning December 15,
2008. Interest on the senior fixed rate notes is payable semi-annually and the notes are redeemable
by us at any time.

The $500.0 million unsecured term loan with a consortium of banks matures June 2012 and
bears interest at 0.5 percent over the three-month LIBOR (reset quarterly) with principal and interest
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payable on a quarterly basis. The loan agreement also contains certain covenants that require the
maintenance of certain financial ratios. As of May 25, 2008, we were in compliance with all covenants.

The unsecured promissory note, which is denominated in Japanese yen (2,408,750,000), is
due November 2010. Interest is payable quarterly at a fixed 2.5 percent annual rate. We are also
required to comply with the covenants set forth under our multi-currency agreement,

The aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt at May 2b, 2008 are presented in the
following table:

Fiscal year: {In Millions}
2009 $ 625
2010 62.5
201 336.6
2012 203.1
2013 437.6
2014 and thereafter 3756.0

$1,477.3

The estimated fair value of long-term debt was $1,461.7 million at May 25, 2008.

We have a $20 million multicurrency credit agreement with a bank that provides for
multicurrency loans, letters of credit and standby letters of credit that was renewed in October 2007,
At May 25, 2008 we had committed $1.6 million of the credit available under the agreement. The
agreement contains restrictive covenants, conditions and default provisions that require the
maintenance of certain financial ratios. As of May 25, 2008, we were in compliance with all financial
covenants under the agreement, The agreement expires in October 2008 and we expect to renew it
before then.
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Note 10. Income Taxes

Worldwide pretax income from operations and income taxes consist of the following:

(In Millions) 2008 2007 2006
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES

U.s. $337.1 $452.0 $555.1
Non-U.S. 114.1 78.6 140.1

$451.2 $530.6 $695.2

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEFIT}

Current:
U.S. federal, state and local $103.6 $149.6 $157.0
Non-U.S. 10.2 219 18.7
113.8 171.5 175.7
Deferred:
U.S. federal and state 16.4 (11.9) 64.6
Non-U.S. {11.3) (4.3) b.7
5.1 {16.2) 70.3
Income tax expense $118.9 $155.3 $246.0

Income tax expense of $118.9 million for fiscal 2008 includes $31.9 million in tax benefits
recognized during fiscal 2008 that arose primarily from the resolution of international tax inquiries,
the expiration of the statute of limitations associated with international tax matters and costs related
to the manufacturing restructure and workforce reduction actions. Income tax expense of
$155.3 million for fiscal 2007 included a tax benefit of approximately $18.5 million from the
retroactive reinstatement to January 1, 2006 of the U.S. federal R&D tax credit under the Tax Relief
and Health Care Act of 2006 enacted into law during fiscal 2007. Of the $18.5 million, $12.4 million
was related to fiscal 2007 R&D expenses and $6.1 million was related to fiscal 2006 R&D expenses.
The tax benefit from the federal R&D credit was partially offset by the non-deductible nature of the
in-process R&D charge related to the Xignal acquisition. The fiscal 2006 income tax expense of
$246.0 million included incremental tax expense of $24.5 million related to the repatriation of
accumulated foreign earnings under provisions of the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 and
$5.8 million related to discrete transactions recorded during fiscal 2006 that had higher effective tax
rates. Those discrete transactions included cost reduction and restructuring activities associated with
the announced closure of the Singapore plant and the sale of the cordless business. The tax benefit
from employee stock plans recorded through paid-in capital was $27.6 million in fiscal 2008,
$29.6 million in fiscal 2007 and $104.5 million in fiscal 2006.

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Interpretation No. 48
(FIN 48), “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - an interpretation of FASB Statement
No. 109, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an entity's
financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and
measurement attribute for financial statement disclosure of tax positions taken or expected to be
taken on a tax return, Recognition of a tax position is determined when it is more-likely-than-not that a
tax position will be sustained upon examination, including resolution of any related appeals or
litigation processes. A tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is
measured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized upon
ultimate settlement with a taxing authority,
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We adopted FIN 48 effective at the beginning of fiscal 2008. The cumulative effect of applying
FIN 48 was a $37.1 million increase to retained earnings at the beginning of fiscal 2008, Historically,
we have classified unrecognized tax benefits as current income taxes payable. Under FIN 48, we now
classify unrecognized tax benefits as long-term income taxes payable except to the extent we
anticipate cash payment within the next year. The amount of unrecognized tax benefits at the
beginning of fiscal 2008 was $139.1 million and is reported in long-term income taxes payable. Of this
amount, $137.0 million relates to unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would affect our
effective tax rate and the remaining $2.1 million would affect goedwill. Any prospective adjustments
to our unrecognized tax benefits will be recorded as an increase or decrease to income tax expense
and cause a corresponding change to our effective tax rate.

The following table provides a summary of the changes during fiscal 2008 in the amount of
unrecognized tax benefits that are included in long-term income taxes payable on the consolidated
balance sheet:

(In Millions)
Balance at the beginning of fiscal 2008 $139.1
Settlements and effective settlements with tax authorities (9.6)
Lapse of applicable statute of limitations (7.9)
Increases for tax positions in the current year 10.8
Other changes in unrecognized tax benefits 0.2
Balance at May 256, 2008 $132.6

At May 25, 2008, $130.5 million of the unrecognized tax benefit that, if recognized, would affect
our effective tax rate and the remaining $2.1 million would affect goodwill. Interest and penalties
related to unrecognized tax benefits are included within income tax expense. The gross amount of
interest and penalties accrued was $11.5 million as of the beginning of fiscal 2008 and $14.4 million as
of May 25, 2008.

We are required to file income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, various state and local
jurisdictions, and many foreign jurisdictions. A number of years may elapse before an uncertain tax
position is audited and ultimately resolved. While it is often difficult to predict the final outcome or the
exact timing of resolution for any particular uncertain tax position, we believe that the amounts of
unrecognized tax benefits we have accrued reflect our best estimate. We adjust these amounts, as
well as the related interest and penalties, as actual facts and circumstances change. Upon resolution
of an uncertain tax position, we record an adjustment to income taxes in the same period.

We believe that it is reasonably possible that the unrecognized tax benefits mainly related to
transfer pricing matters for tax years where the statute of limitations expire during fiscal 2009 could
decrease by as much as $12.6 million within the next year.

As of May 25, 2008, our federal tax returns for fiscal year 2001 and fiscal years 2005 through
2007 remain subject to examination by the IRS. Fiscal years 2002 through 2004 are closed to
examination. Several state taxing jurisdictions are examining our state tax returns for fiscal 2004 and
2005. With a few exceptions, tax returns for fiscal years 1998 and after remain subject to examination
by state tax authorities. Internationally, tax authorities from several foreign jurisdictions are also
examining our tax returns. In general, our international tax returns for fiscal years 2001 and after
remain subject to examination.
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The IRS completed its examination of our tax returns for fiscal years 1997 through 2000 and in
July 2003 issued a notice of proposed adjustment seeking additional taxes of approximately
$19.1 million (exclusive of interest) for those years, We contested the adjustment through the IRS
administrative process. Our agreement with the Appeals Office of the IRS to settle the matter for a
payment of approximately $14.7 million (exclusive of interest) was approved by the Congressional
Joint Committee on Taxation in October 2007 and interest computations totaling $2.6 million were
finalized by the IRS in January 2008. All payments have been made, the matter is now completed and
the final resolution of this matter did not have a material effect on our financial statements.

The tax effects of temporary differences that constitute significant portions of the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities are presented below:

{In Millions) 2008 2007
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS!

Equity investments $154 $ 180
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 14.0 20.4
Inventory 311 3156
Accrued liabilities 62.3 42.8
R&D expenditures 69.3 85.2
Deferred compensation 2.7 48.3
Share-based compensation 435 311
Non-U.S. loss carryovers and other allowances 86.7 88.9
Federal and state credit carryovers 82.7 71.3
Other 3.9 4.0
Gross deferred tax assets 411.6 441.5
Valuation allowance {81.2) {103.5)
Total deferred tax assets 330.4 338.0
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Other liahilities - (25.5)
Total deferred tax liabilities - (25.5)
Net deferred tax assets $330.4 $3125

i) Amounts for fiscal 2007 have been revised (See Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements).

The increase in net deferred tax assets during fiscal 2008 of $17.9 million is from continuing
operaticns and from the tax effect on other comprehensive income items.

We record a valuation allowance to reflect the estimated amount of deferred tax assets that
may not be realized. The valuation allowance has been established primarily against the
reinvestment and investment tax allowances related to our operation in Malaysia because we have
concluded that a significant portion of the deferred tax asset will not be realized due to the uncertainty
of sufficient taxable income in Malaysia beyond the foreseeable future. The valuation allowance for
deferred tax assets decreased by $22.3 million in fiscal 2008 compared to an increase of $1.6 million
in fiscal 2007.

The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets depends upon the generation of future taxable
income during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible. As of May 25,
2008, based on historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods
that the deferred tax assets are deductible, we believe it is more likely than not that we will realize the
benefits of these deductible differences, net of the valuation allowance.
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The reconciliation between the income tax rate computed by applying the U.S. federal
statutory rate and the reported worldwide tax rate follows:

2008 2007 2006

U.S. federal statutory tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Non-U.S. income taxed at different rates (3.0) (0.7 (1.7}
U.S. state and local taxes net of federal benefits 0.9 0.8 1.2
Dividends repatriated - - 3.5
Changes in beginning of year valuation allowances {(1.9) {0.3) (0.8)
Export sales and domestic manufacturing benefit {(1.3) {2.00 2.9
Tax credits (1.1} (2.3} (1.0§
Impairment of goodwill - - 0.7
Other {2.2) (1.2} 1.4
Effective tax rate 26.4% 29.3% 35.4%

During fiscal 2005, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 {AJCA)} was signed into law,
creating a one-time incentive for U.S. corporations to repatriate accumulated income earned abroad
by providing an 85 percent dividends-received deduction for certain dividends from controlled
foreign corporations. As a result, we undertook a comprehensive evaluation to decide whether, and
to what extent, foreign earnings that had not yet been remitted to the U.S. might be repatriated. In
fiscal 2006, our Chief Executive Officer and our Board of Directors approved a Domestic
Reinvestment Plan pursuant to the AJCA guidelines. We completed our evaluation of the AJCA's
provisions in fiscal 2006 and we made the determination to repatriate a total of $678.0 million in
foreign earnings. Of this amount, $496.0 million qualified as extraordinary dividends as defined under
the AJCA, and the associated income tax expense of $24.5 million was recorded in fiscal 2006. The
plan was fully completed in fiscal 2007.

Aside from the foreign earnings repatriated under the AJCA, we intend to continue reinvesting
certain foreign earnings from non-U.S. subsidiaries indefinitely. No U.S. income taxes have been
provided on the cumulative unremitted earnings of approximately $227.3 million from non-U.S.
subsidiaries as of May 25, 2008. It is not practicable to determine the U.S. income tax liability that
would be payable if such earnings were not reinvested indefinitely.

At May 25, 2008, we had $61.7 million of state net operating loss carryovers, which expire
between 2009 and 2027. We also had $136.8 million of state credit carryovers, consisting primarily of
California R&D credits of $136.5 million which can be carried forward indefinitely. In addition, we had
net operating losses and other tax allowance carryovers of $457.2 million from certain non-U.S.
jurisdictions, most of which do not expire.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2008, one of our foreign operations generated sufficient taxable
income to utilize a net operating loss carryover that was acquired as part of the purchase of Xignal in
January 2007. This net operating loss carryover had not been previously recognized since we had
concluded that it was more likely than not that the tax benefit would not be realized. As a result of
realizing this benefit in the third quarter, we recorded an adjustment to reduce goodwill by
$3.1 million and to recognize the corresponding deferred asset.
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Note 11. Retirement and Pension Plans

The annual expense for all retirement and pension plans was as follows:

{(In Millions) 2008 2007 2006
Salary deferral 401{k} plan $17.2 $17.0 $214
Non-U.S. pension and retirement plans $12.7 $17.6 $16.6
U.S. Plans

Our retirement and savings program for U.S. employees consists of a salary deferral 401{k) plan. The
salary deferral 401(k} plan allows employees to defer up to 30 percent of their salaries, subject to
certain limitations, with partially matching company contributions. To encourage employee
participation, we make a matching contribution of 150 percent of the first 4 percent of the employee’s
contribution to the 401(k) plan. Contributions are invested in one or more of twenty-seven investment
funds at the discretion of the employee. One of the investment funds is a stock fund in which
contributions are invested in National common stock at the discretion of the employee. 401(k)
investments made by the employee in National common stock may be sold at any time at the
employee’s direction. Although we have reserved 10,000,000 shares of common stock for issuance
to the stock fund, shares purchased to date with contributions have been purchased on the open
market and we have not issued any stock directly to the stock fund.

We also have a deferred compensation plan, which altows highly compensated employees (as
defined by IRS regulations) to defer greater percentages of compensation than would otherwise be
permitted under the salary deferral 401(k) plan and IRS regulations. The deferred compensation plan
is a non-qualified plan of deferred compensation maintained in a rabbi trust. Participants can direct
the investment of their deferred compensation plan accounts in the same investment funds offered
by the 401{k) plan.

Internaticnal Plans

Certain of our international subsidiaries have varying types of defined benefit pension and retirement
plans that comply with local statutes and practices.

At May 27, 2007, we adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 158, which requires recognition of the
funded status of a defined benefit postretirement plan on the consolidated balance sheet and
recognition of changes in that funded status in the year in which the changes occur through
comprehensive income. Effective for our fiscal 2009, it also requires the measurement date of the
plan's funded status to be the same as the company’s fiscal year-end.
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The incremental effect of applying this Statement to individual line items on the consolidated
balance sheet as of May 27, 2007 is presented in the following table:

Befare Application After Application
{In Millions) of SFAS No. 1568  Adjustment of SFAS No. 1568
Deferred tax assets, net!" $235.3 $ 3.0 $238.3
Other non-current liabilities‘" $134.4 $23.3 $157.7
Accumulated other comprehensive loss!! $ 93.5 $20.3 $113.8
m Amounts for fiscal 2007 have been revised (See Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements).

We maintain defined benefit pension plans in the UK., Germany and Taiwan that cover all
eligible employees within each respective country. In fiscal 2007 and 2006, we also had a defined
benefit pension plan in Japan, which was terminated in full and replaced by a defined contribution
plan in August 2007. As a result, we incurred a total charge of $0.2 million for the curtailment and
settlement of the defined benefit pension plan.

Pension plan benefits are based primarily on participants’ compensation and years of service
credited as specified under the terms of each country’s plan. The funding policy is consistent with the
local requirements of each country, We may also voluntarily fund additional annual contributions as
determined by management. The plans use measurement dates of February 28" and May 31 to
determine the measurements of plan assets and obligations.

Plan assets of the funded defined benefit pension plans are invested in an index based fund
held by a third-party fund manager or are deposited into government-managed accounts in which we
are not actively involved with and have no control over investment strategy. One of the plans is a
self-funded plan. The plan assets held by the third-party fund manager consist primarily of U.S. and
foreign equity securities, bonds and cash. The fund manager monitors the fund's asset allocation
within the guidelines established by the plan's Board of Trustees. In line with plan investment
objectives and consultation with company management, the Trustees set an allocation benchmark
between equity and bond assets based on the relative weighting of overall international market
indices. The overall investment objectives of the plan are 1) the acquisition of suitable assets of
appropriate liquidity which will generate income and capital growth to meet current and future plan
benefits, 2) to limit the risk of the assets failing to meet the long term liabilities of the plan and 3) to
minimize the long term costs of the plan by maximizing the return on the assets. Performance is
regularly evaluated by the Trustees and is based on actual returns achieved by the fund manager
relative to its benchmark. The expected long-term rate of return for plan assets is based on analysis of
historical data and future expectations relevant to the investments and consistency with the assumed
rate of inflation implicit in the market.
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The following table presents target allocation percentages and the fiscal year end percentage
for each major category of plan assets:

2008 2007
Asset Target Actual Target Actual
Category Allocation Allocation Allocation Percentage
Equities 63% 59% 80% 67%
Bonds 24% 26% 20% 17%
Other 13% 16% 0% 16%
Total 100% 100% 100% 100%

For all of our plans the discount rates represent the rates at which benefits could have been
settled at the measurement date and were determined based on an analysis of the investment returns
underlying annuity contracts, or alternatively the rates of return currently available on high quality
fixed interest investments for liability durations that match the timing and amount of the expected
benefit payments. The source data used to determine the discount rates for the U.K. and Germany
plans are based on the published iBoxx index of AA bond yields for durations of over 15 years. The
yields at the plans’ measurement dates were approximately 6.2 to 6.6 percent. While no formal
liability cash flow projections were made for these plans, the mean term of their liabilities was
determined for assessing appropriate bond durations. Qur plan in Taiwan is not material.

Net annual periodic pension cost of these non-U.S. defined benefit pension plans is presented
in the following table:

{In Millions) 2008 2007 2006
Service cost of benefits earned during the year $ 51 $ 58 $ 5.2
Plan participant contributions {1.1) (1.1) (1.0)
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 15.9 16.3 135
Expected return on plan assets {(19.7) {16.8) (11.5)
Net amortization and deferral 5.5 7.0 49
Net periodic pension cost 5.7 11.2 11.1
Plan settlement 0.2 - -
Total net periodic pension cost $ 59 $11.2 $111
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Changes in the benefit obligations and plans assets are presented in the following table:

(In Millions) 2008 2007
PROJECTED BENEFIT OBLIGATION
Beginning balance $341.1 $280.5
Service cost 5.1 5.8
Interest cost ' 15.9 16.3
Benefits paid (7.4) (6.4)
Actuarial {gain) loss (70.3) (31.5)
Plan amendments - 0.6
Plan settlement {5.9) -
Exchange rate adjustment 12.7 75.8
Ending balance $291.2 $341.1
PLAN ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
Beginning balance $245.8 $188.8
Actual return on plan assets {17.1) 8.0
Company contributions 48.6 3.1
Plan participant contributions 1.1 1.1
Benefits paid {7.0) {5.8)
Plan settlement {6.8) -
Exchange rate adjustment 1.7 50.6
Ending balance $272.3 $245.8
RECONCILIATION OF FUNDED STATUS
Fund status — Benefit obligation in excess of plan assets $ 189 $ 953
Contribution after measurement date {500 {20.0)
Accrued pension cost $ 139 % 753

ACCUMULATED BENEFIT OBLIGATION
Fiscal year end balance $288.5 $337.1

For the fiscal 2007 information presented in the table above, we have revised the ending
balances for the projected benefit obligation and plan assets from amounts previously reported to
reflect the remeasurement of those balances at May 27, 2007 at the current exchange rate then in
effect.

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets:

{In Millions) 2008 2007
Other non-current liabilities $139 3% 753
Accumulated other comprehensive loss $86.8 $113.7
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Amounts in accumulated other comprehensive loss that have not yet been recognized as
components of net periodic pension cost:

{In Millions) 2008 2007

Transition asset $(1.4) $ (1.5)

Actuarial loss 88.2 1156.2
$86.8 $113.7

The net periodic pension cost and projected benefit obligations were determined using the
following assumptions:

2008 2007 2006

NET PER!IODIC PENSION COST

Discount rate 2.8%-5.2% 1.8%-48% 1.8%-5.4%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 1.8%-3.8% 1.8%-3.0% 2.0%-4.3%
Expected long-term return on assets 3.0%-7.5% 2.4%-7.3% 2.3%-7.5%
PROJECTED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Discount rate 2.8%-6.2% 1.8%-5.2% 1.8%-4.8%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 1.8%-3.8% 1.8%-3.0% 1.8%-3.0%

Total contributions paid to these plans were $33.6 million in fiscal 2008, $23.4 million in fiscal
2007 and $23.2 million in fiscal 2006, In July 2007, we made a $26.2 million contribution to establish a
trust fund related to another one of our international defined benefit pension plans. We currently
expect contributions to total approximately $7 million in fiscal 2009. This amount excludes any
voluntary contribution, which is yet to be determined by management.

The following table presents the total expected benefits to be paid to plan participants for the
next ten fiscal years as determined based on the same assumptions used to measure the benefit
obligation at the end of the fiscal year:

{In Millions)
2009 $ 7.3
2010 7.7
2011 8.0
2012 8.2
2013 8.6
2014-2018 49.3
Total $89.1

Amounts in accumulated cther comprehensive loss expected to be recognized as
components of net periodic pension cost over the next fiscal year:

(In Millions)
Amortization of net transition asset $(0.3)
Amortization of net loss $36

90 National Semiconductor Annual Report 2008




Note 12. Shareholders’ Equity
* Stock Purchase Rights

The preferred stock purchase rights associated with our common stock which had certain potential
anti-takeover effects expired on August 8, 2006.

» Stock Repurchase Program
Fiscal 2008

In June 2007, our Board of Directors approved (i) a $1.5 billion accelerated stock repurchase
program; and (ii} an additional $500 million stock repurchase program similar to our existing stock
repurchase program announced in March 2007. We entered into two separate agreements with
Goldman Sachs to conduct the accelerated stock repurchase program. Under one of the agreements,
we repurchased from Goldman Sachs, for $1.0 billion, a number of shares of our common stock
determined by the volume-weighted average price of the stock during a six month pericd, subject to
provisions establishing minimum and maximum numbers of shares. Under the other agreement, we
repurchased shares of our common stock from Goldman Sachs immediately for an initial amount of
$500 million. Goldman Sachs purchased an equivalent number of shares of our common stock in the
open market over the next six months, and at the end of that period, the initial price was adjusted
down hased on the volume-weighted average price during the same period. The price adjustment
was settled by us, at our option, in shares of aur common stock. The $1.5 billion accelerated stock
repurchase program was completed in December 2007 with a total 58.0 million shares repurchased.

In addition to the accelerated stock repurchase program, we repurchased an additional
27.9 million shares of our common stock during fiscal 2008 for $623.5 million as part of two
$500 million stock repurchase programs: (i) the $500 million stock repurchase program announced in
March 2007, which was completed during the third quarter of fiscal 2008, and {ii} the $500 million
stock repurchase program announced in June 2007. Al of these shares were repurchased in the
open market. For all of fiscal 2008, we repurchased a total of 85.9 million shares of our common stock
for $2,123.5 million through both the $1.5 billion accelerated stock repurchase program and the two
$500 million stock repurchase programs. All shares of common stock that were repurchased had
been cancelled as of the end of fiscal 2008.

The following table provides a summary of the activity under our stock repurchase programs
and retated amounts remaining available for future common stock repurchases at the end of fiscal
2008:

Stock Repurchase Programs
Accelerated

June Stock March
{In Millions) 2007 Repurchase 2007 Total
Balance at May 27, 2007 $ - $ - $379.3 $ 379.3
Approval of new program 500.0 1,500.0 - 2,000.0
Common stock repurchases (244.2} {1,600.0) (379.3) {2,123.5)
Balance at May 25, 2008 $ 255.8 $ - 3 - $ 2658

All stock repurchased has been cancelled and is not held as treasury stock.
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During the period after the end of our 2008 fiscal year through July 18, 2008, we repurchased a
total of 4.4 million shares for $94.7 million under our stock repurchase programs.

Fiscal 2007

We repurchased a total of 32.9 million shares of our common stock during fiscal 2007 for
$774.0 million as part of three programs: (i) the $400 million stock repurchase program announced in
December 2005, which was completed during the first quarter of fiscal 2007, (ii) the $500 million stock
repurchase program announced in June 2006, which was completed during the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2007 and (iii} the $500 millicn stock repurchase program announced in March 2007. All of these
shares were repurchased in the open market.

Fiscal 2006

We repurchased a total of 37.2 million shares of our common stock for $950.7 mitlion during fiscal
2006 as part of three programs: (i} the $400 million stock repurchase program announced in March
2005 which was completed in September 2005, {ii} the $400 million stock repurchase program
announced in September 2005 which was completed in January 2006 and {iii} another $400 million
stock repurchase program announced in December 2005. All shares were repurchased in the open
market.

* Dividends

We paid a total of $50.6 million in cash dividends during fiscal 2008 and $45.1 million in cash
dividends during fiscal 2007. In June 2008, the Board of Directors declared a cash dividend of $0.06
per outstanding share of common stock, which was paid on July 7, 2008 to shareholders of record at
the close of business on June 16, 2008.

* Delisting of Common Stock from Arca Exchange

We voluntarily delisted our stock from the NYSE Arca Exchange {formerly the Pacific Exchange)
effective December 26, 2006. Our stock continues to be listed on the New York Stock Exchange.

Note 13. Share-Based Compensation Plans

In September 2007, the 2007 Employees Equity Plan (EEP) was approved by our shareholders. The
plan authorizes 14,000,000 shares for equity based awards in the form of stock options, restricted
stock and restricted stock units. Up to 1,000,000 of the shares may be issued in connection with
restricted stock and restricted stock units. This new plan replaces two of our former compensation
plans that provided equity based awards to non-executive employees. As a result, no further awards
will be made to employees under the 1997 Employees Stock Option Plan and the Restricted Stock
Plan. At the time these two former plans were replaced, there were 38.7 million shares that were
available and not yet subject to awards. These shares will not be used for future awards and any
shares currently subject to awards under these plans which are forfeited, cancelled or expired will
also not be used.

» Stock Options
Including the EEP described above, we have five equity compensation plans under which employees

and officers may be granted stock options to purchase shares of common stock. One plan, which has
been in effect since 1977 when it was first approved by shareholders, authorizes the grant of up to
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78,709,858 shares of common stock (most of which have been previously granted} for non-qualified
or incentive stock options (as defined in the U.S. tax code) to officers and key employees. The 1997
Employees Stock Option Plan, which was initially adopted in 1997, was replaced by the EEP as
described above and authorized the grant of shares of common stock for non-qualified stock options
to employees who are not executive officers. While new options can no longer be granted under the
plan, there are options that are still outstanding under it. The Executive Officer Stock Option Plan,
which was approved by shareholders in 2000, authorizes the grant of up to 12,000,000 shares of
commuon stock for non-qualified stock options only to executive officers. The 2005 Executive Officer
Equity Plan (EQEP), first approved by shareholders in fiscal 2004, authorizes the issuance of a total of
6,000,000 shares, up to 4,000,000 of which can be issued pursuant to the exercise of stock options.
All of these plans provide that options are granted at the closing market price on the date of grant and
can expire up to a maximum of between six years and one day and ten years and one day after grant
or three months after termination of employment (up to five years after termination due to death,
disability or retirement), whichever occurs first. The plans provide that options can begin to vest six
months after grant. All options granted in the last three fiscal years expire six years and one day after
grant and begin vesting with one-fourth of the total grant vesting after one year and the rest in equal
monthly installments over the next three years.

We have a director stock option plan that was approved by shareholders in fiscal 1998 which
authorized the grant of up to 2,000,000 shares of common stock to eligible directors who are not
employees of the company. Options were granted automatically upon approval of the plan by
shareholders and were granted automatically to eligible directors upon their appointment to the
board and subsequent election to the board by shareholders. Options issued to directors under this
plan vested in full after six months. Under this plan, options to purchase 430,000 shares of common
stock with a weighted-average per share exercise price of $14.04 and weighted-average remaining
contractual life of 3.7 years were outstanding and exercisable as of May 25, 2008. The aggregate
intrinsic value of these fully vested shares was $2.8 million at May 25, 2008. In connection with the
approval of amendments to the director stock plan in fiscal 2006, this plan was frozen and no new
options can be granted under the pian.

As of May 25, 2008, under all equity compensation plans for stock options there were
71.6 million shares reserved for issuance, including up to 16.7 million shares available for future
option grants. The number of shares available for future option grants may be reduced by up to
2.4 million shares issued in connection with restricted stock, restricted stock units and performance
share units, as permitted under the EEP and the 2005 EQEP
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The following table summarizes the activity of common stock shares related to our equity
plans granting stock options (including the EEP, but excluding the director stock option plan under
which new options can no longer be granted) during fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006:

Number of Shares Weighted-Average

{In Millions} Exercise Price
Qutstanding at May 29, 2005 76.7 $15.26
Granted 5.8 $24.67
Exercised {22.9) $11.71
Forfeited (2.0) $16.27
Expired (1.0) $29.35
Outstanding at May 28, 2006 56.6 $17.38
Granted 6.2 $23.12
Exercised (6.0} $12.72
Forfeited (0.7) $20.52
Expired (0.9) $29.02
Qutstanding at May 27, 2007 65.2 $18.29
Granted 6.7 $27.26
Exercised (5.9) $12.84
Forfeited (0.7) $25.03
Expired (0.8} $28.06
Outstanding at May 25, 2008 54.5 $19.76

Expiration dates for options outstanding at May 25, 2008 range from June 29, 2008 to May 15,
2014.

The total intrinsic value of options exercised in fiscal 2008 was $79.2 million. The total intrinsic
value of options was $73.9 million for options exercised in fiscal 2007 and $327.3 million for options
exercised in fiscal 2006. Total unrecognized compensation cost related to stock option grants as of
May 25, 2008 was $73.1 million, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period
of 2.5 years.

The foliowing table provides additional information about total options outstanding under the
stock option plans {excluding the director stock option plan) at May 25, 2008:

Weighted-
Aggregate Average
Number of Intrinsic Remaining
Shares Weighted-Average Value Contractual Life
(In Millions) Exercise Price (In Millions}) {In Years}
Fully vested and
Expected to vest 53.3 $19.64 $201.0 3.0
Currently exercisable 43.3 $18.26 $198.7 2.6

* Stock Purchase Plan
We have an employee stock purchase plan approved by shareholders that authorizes the issuance of

up to 16,000,000 shares to eligible employees worldwide. Our stock purchase plan uses a captive
broker and we deposit shares purchased by the employee with the captive broker. In addition, for
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international participants, the National subsidiary that the participant is employed by is responsible
for paying to us the difference between the purchase price set by the terms of the plan and the fair
market value at the time of the purchase. During fiscal 2007, we amended the stock purchase plan
effective October 1, 2006 to change the price paid by the employee to 85 percent of the lower of the
comman stock’s fair market value at the time of enrollment in ane of two six-month purchase periods
in a one-year offering period or the end of the purchase period. Previously, the price paid by the
employee was 85 percent of the lower of the common stock’s fair value at the beginning of a
one-year offering period or at the end of the applicable gquarter in the offering period.

Under the terms of our stock purchase plan, we issued 1.5 million shares in fiscal 2008,
1.3 million shares in fiscal 2007 and 1.7 million shares in fiscal 2006 to employees for $26.0 million,
$27.0 million and $30.8 million, respectively. As of May 25, 2008 there were 8.8 million shares
reserved for future issuance under the stock purchase plan.

* Other Forms of Equity Compensation

We have a director stock plan, which has been approved by shareholders, that authorizes the
issuance of up to 900,000 shares of common stock to eligible directors who are not employees of the
company. The stock is issued automatically to eligible new directors upon their appointment to the
board and to all eligible directors on their subsequent election to the board by shareholders.
Directors may also elect to take their annual retainer fees for board membership and committee
chairmanship in stock under the plan. The shares issued to the directors under the plan are restricted
from transfer for between six and thirty-six months. As of May 25, 2008, we had issued 566,229
shares under the director stock plan and had reserved 333,771 shares for future issuances. Total
unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested shares under the director stock plan as of
May 25, 2008 was $0.5 million, which is expected to be recegnized over a weighted-average period of
1.8 years.

We have a restricted stock plan which, as discussed above, was replaced by the EEP It
authorized the issuance of common stock and granting of restricted stock units to employees who
are not officers of the company. Although no new shares can be tssued and no new units can be
granted, there were 30,000 restricted stock units outstanding under this plan as of May 25, 2008.
Under the EEP restricted stock and restricted stock units, both of which are subject to restrictions,
may be granted to employees. These restrictions may be based exclusively on the passage of time or
may also include performance conditions and the minimum performance period is one year. Vesting
of all restricted stock and restricted stock units can begin to occur six months after grant and expire
over time. The minimum full vesting period is three years and the awards have an expiration date no
later than six years and one day after being granted. For performance based restricted stock units, the
number of shares actually issued upon completion of the restriction period will vary in accordance
with the performance level achieved during the performance period. We use restricted stock awards
as a retention vehicle for employees with technical skills and expertise that are important to us. As of
May 25, 2008, there were no restricted stock units outstanding and up to 910,650 shares were
available for future issuances of restricted stock and restricted stock units under the EEP.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), we recorded the cost from restricted stock and
restricted stock units as unearned compensation for an amount equal to the market value of our
common stock on the date of issuance, which was amortized ratably over the vesting period. This
unearned compensation was included in the consolidated financial statements as a separate
component of shareholders’ equity. Upon the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R}, we eliminated the
remaining unearned compensation balance and no longer recognize it as a separate component of
shareholders’ equity. Total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested restricted stock
shares and restricted stock units outstanding as of May 25, 2008 was $8.8 million, which is expected
to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 3.6 years.

National Semiconductor Annual Report 2008 95




The following table provides a summary of activity during fiscal 2008 for grants of restricted
stock not yet vested and restricted stock units under the restricted stock plan and the EEP (excluding
units granted with performance based restrictions):

Number of Shares  Weighted-Average

{In Thousands) Grant-Date Fair Value
Outstanding at May 29, 2005 602.6 $16.73
Granted/lssued 186.3 $27.38
Vested (163.4) $18.93
Forfeited {93.9) $14.54
Qutstanding at May 28, 2006 531.6 $20.17
Granted/Issued 120.0 $24.23
Vested (192.1) $16.75
Forfeited (8.8) $25.26
QOutstanding at May 27, 2007 450.7 $22.62
Granted/lssued 159.5 $24.04
Vested (124.8) $21.73
Forfeited {10.0} $28.39
Qutstanding at May 25, 2008 475.4 $23.21

The total fair value of restricted shares that vested in fiscat 2008, 2007 and 2006 was
$2.8 million, $4.4 million and $4.3 million, respectively.

The EQCEP, which was first approved by shareholders in October 2004, autharizes the issuance
to executive officers of up to a total of 6,000,000 shares through stock options and performance share
units. Of this total, up to 3,500,000 shares may be issued as payment for performance share units and
the balance remaining may be issued upon the exercise of stock options. In September 2007,
amendments to the EQEP were approved by our shareholders. As amended, the number of shares
available for issuance under the EOEP was increased by 3,000,000 shares, of which up to 1,500,000
shares may be issued in connection with performance share units and the remaining shares may be
used in connection with options. The EOEP no longer permits the issuance of shares to executive
officers through stock appreciation rights. Under this plan, options to purchase 520,000 shares of
common stock were granted in fiscal 2008 and options to purchase 264,000 shares of commaon stock
were granted in fiscal 2007. Targets for the performance share units for the first two-year
performance period were established in the first quarter of fiscal 2006. In July 2007, the first
performance period was measured and 1,005,000 shares were issued in payment of the performance
share units for the first performance period. Targets for the performance share units for the second
two-year performance period were established in the first quarter of fiscal 2007. The second
performance period was measured in July 2008 and no shares were issusd as minimum performance
thresholds were not achieved. Targets for the performance share units for the third two-year
performance period, which is still in process, were established in the first quarter of fiscal 2008 and
performance will be measured after the end of fiscal 2009. Total unrecognized compensation cost
related to performance share units not yet vested as of May 25, 2008 was $8.0 million, which is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.0 year. As of May 25, 2008, we have
up to 2,495,000 shares available for future issuances of shares in payment of performance share units
under the EOEP
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Note 14. Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments

We lease certain facilities and equipment under operating lease arrangements. Rental expenses
under operating leases were $31.9 million, $38.5 million and $36.8 million in fiscal 2008, 2007 and
2006, respectively.

Future minimum commitments under non-cancelable operating leases are as follows:

{in Millions)
2009 $24.5
2010 17.9
2011 8.8
2012 5.0
2013 2.6
2014 and thereafter 2.2
Total $61.0

We have two agreements with local energy suppliers in Maine and Texas to purchase
electricity for our manufacturing facilities located there. One of the agreements was a three-year bulk
contract where service began in June 2006. However, the agreement was terminated prior to its
expiration since our level of future electricity usage is expected to be significantly reduced due to the
action announced in January 2008 to modernize our facilities and rationalize the capacity in our
manufacturing plants. We paid a $1.0 million penalty fee and entered into a separate agreement with
the same supplier for the purchase of electricity for the remainder of the service period provided
under the former agreement. The new agreement requires us to purchase a minimum level of
electricity at a specified price as determined by the terms of the agreement. Future minimum
purchases in fiscal 2009 are $2.8 million. We purchased a total of $5.5 million for electricity usage in
fiscal 2008 under both agreements and $9.3 million in fiscal 2007 under the former agreement. No
purchases were made in fiscal 2006. The other agreement began in January 2006 and is a five-year
term full requirement contract with no minimum purchase commitments. The agreement allows for a
fixed purchase price if the annual volume purchased falls within a specified range as determined by
the terms of the agreement. In fiscal 2008, 2007 and 20086, we purchased $8.7 million, $9.7 million and
$2.5 million, respectively, for electricity usage under this agreement.

We have an agreement with a supplier in Malacca, Malaysia to purchase industrial gases for
our manufacturing facility located there. The agreement began in May 2007 and runs through May
2022. Under the terms of the agreement we can purchase up to a certain monthly volume of gas
products based on specified prices as determined by the terms of the agreement, The agreement
permits the review of these prices every five years if such prices vary by more or less than 10 percent
of fair market value. Minimum purchases under the agreement are $457 thousand in each of the next
5 years (fiscal 2009 through 2013) and in fiscal 2014 and thereafter, a remaining $4.1 million. In fiscal
2008, we purchased $0.9 million of gas products under this agreement.

We are party to a master operating lease agreement for capital equipment under which
individual operating lease agreements are executed as the delivery and acceptance of scheduled
equipment occurs. The required future minimum lease payments under these operating leases are
included in the table above. These individual operating lease agreements under the master lease
provide for guarantees of the equipment’s residual value at the end of their [ease terms for up to a
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maximum of $17.4 million. At May 25, 2008, the fair value of the lease guarantees was $0.3 million
and is included in other non-current liabilities.

In June 2008, we entered into a new three-year license agreement with the same unrelated
third-party vendor for the purchase of computer-aided design software. This agreement terminated
and replaced an existing four-year license agreement that was to expire in July 2008. The total cost of
the new license is $22.3 million and an annual payment of $7.5 million is required in advance for the
first year, after which semi-annua!l payments of $3.7 million are required for the following two years.

Contingencies — Legal Proceedings

Environmental Matters. We have been named to the National Priorities List for our Santa Clara,
California, site and we have completed a remedial investigation/feasibility study with the RWQCB,
acting as an agent for the Federal Environmental Protection Agency. We have agreed with the
RWQCR to a site remediation plan and we are conducting remediation and cleanup efforts at the site.
In addition to the Santa Clara site, from time to time we have been designated as a potentially
responsible party (PRP} by international, federal and state agencies for certain environmental sites
with which we may have had direct or indirect involvement. These designations are made regardless
of the extent of our involvement. These claims are in various stages of administrative or judicial
proceedings and include demands for recovery of past governmental costs and for future
investigations and remedial actions. In many cases, the dollar amounts of the claims have not been
specified, and in the case of the PRP matters, claims have been asserted against a number of other
entities for the same cost recovery or other relief as is sought from us. We accrue costs associated
with environmental matters when they become probable and can be reasonably estimated. The
amount of all environmental charges to earnings, including charges for the Santa Clara site
remediation, (excluding potential reimbursements from insurance coverage), were not material
during fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006.

We have retained responsibility for environmental claims and matters connected with
businesses we sold in fiscal years 1936 and 1997. To date, the costs associated with the liabilities we
have retained in these dispositions have not been material and there have been no related legal
proceedings.

Tax Matters. The IRS completed its field examination of our tax returns for fiscal years 1997 through
2000 and in July 2003 issued a notice of proposed adjustment seeking additional taxes of
approximately $19.1 million (exclusive of interest) for those years. We contested the adjustment
through the IRS administrative process. Through that process, we agreed with the Appeals Office of
the IRS to settle the matter for the payment of additional taxes of approximately $14.7 {exclusive of
interest), and this settlement was approved by the Congressional Joint Committee on Taxation in
October 2007. Interest computations totaling $2.6 million were finalized by the IRS in January 2008,
All payments have been made, the matter is now completed and the final resolution of this matter did
not have a material effect on our financial statements.

We are also undergoing tax audits at several international locations and from time to time our
tax returns are audited in the United States by state agencies and at international locations by local
tax authorities. We believe we have made adequate tax payments and/or accrued adequate amounts
such that the outcome of these audits will have no material adverse effects on our financial
statements. For more information on our tax audits, see Note 10 to the Consclidated Financial
Statements.
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Other Matters. In November 2000, a derivative action was brought against us and other defendants
by a shareholder of Fairchild Semiconductor International, Inc. The plaintiff seeks recovery of alleged
"short-swing” profits under section 16(b) of the Exchange Act from the sale by the defendants in
January 2000 of Fairchild common stock. The complaint alleges that Fairchild's conversion of
preferred stock held by the defendants at the time of Fairchild’s initial public offering in August 1999
constitutes a “purchase” that must be matched with the January 2000 sale for purposes of
computing the “short-swing” profits. The plaintiff seeks from us alleged recoverable profits of
$14.1 million. The case has completed discovery in the District Court and we filed a motion for
summary judgment in June 2004. The SEC proposed clarifying amendments to its Section 16({b) rules
in June 2004 which we believe are dispositive of the case and the SEC adopted the rule amendments
in August 2005. Oral argument on the briefing ordered by the District Court as to whether the SEC
amendments should apply to the case was held in November 2005. In February 2007, the District
Court granted our motion for summary judgment. The plaintiff has appealed this ruling, the argument
on the appeal was heard in the Third Circuit Court of Appeals in March 2008 and we are waiting for
the Court’s ruling. We intend to continue to contest the case through all available means.

In September 2002, iTech Group, Inc. (iTech) brought suit against us alleging a number of
contract and tort claims related to a software license agreement and discussions to sell certain assets
to iTech. At the trial which began in May 2005, the jury rendered a verdict finding us liable for breach
of contract, promissory fraud and unjust enrichment and assessing approximately $234.0 thousand
in compensatory damages and $15.0 million in punitive damages. After hearing post trial motions,
the court affirmed the verdict for compensatory damages of approximately $234.0 thousand,
awarded attorneys’ fees to iTech of approximately $60.0 thousand, and reduced the punitive
damages to $3.0 million and judgment was entered in those amounts in August 2005. We appealed
the case and the Appeals Court issued an unpublished opinion in December 2006, reversing the trial
court judgment and remanding the case for retrial or other disposition. After the opinion of the
Appeals Court had become final, we paid plaintiff's counsel attorneys’ fees of approximately
$79.3 thousand, representing the attorneys’ fees originally awarded at trial, plus interest and
additional fees on appeal. The case was settled in October 2007 shortly before retrial that was
scheduled for November 2007. Under the settlement, we paid $6.5 million to iTech in exchange for a
release of all claims related to the litigation and dismissal of the case. At the time of the settlement, we
had already accrued a charge of $3.2 million to cover the damages (excluding attorneys’ fees)
awarded to iTech under the trial court’s original order; the charge for the additional $3.3 due for the
settlement was recorded in fiscal 2008. The matter is now concluded.

In April 2008, LS!I Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiary Agere Systems Inc.
{collectively LSI) instituted an action in the United States International Trade Commission (ITC),
naming us and 17 other respondents in an action seeking an exclusion preventing importation into
the U.S. of semiconductor integrated circuit devices and products made by methods alleged to
infringe an LS| patent on the use of tungsten metallization in semiconductor manufacturing. LS| also
filed a companion case against the same parties in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of
Texas seeking unspecified amounts of monetary damages (trebled because of the alleged willful
infringement}, royalties, attorneys’ fees, costs and an injunction against further infringement. Since
the initiation of both actions, five other parties have been named as respondents/defendants in the
respective actions, The action in the U.S. District Court has been stayed pending the outcome of the
ITC action. Although no hearing date has been set yet in the ITC action, it is expected that a hearing
will occur in early calendar 2009. It is too early in the proceedings for us to make any estimate of a
probable cutcome and range of potential loss. We intend to contest both actions through all available
means.
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In May 2008, eTool Development, Inc. and eTool Patent Holdings Corporation (collectively
eTool) brought suit in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Texas alleging that our
WEBENCH online design tools infringe an eTool patent and seeking an injunction and unspecified
amounts of monetary damages (trebled because of the alleged willful infringement}, attorneys’ fees
and costs. We have filed an answer to the complaint and counterclaims for declaratory judgment of
non-infringement and invalidity of the patent. It is too early in the proceedings for us to make any
estimate of a probable outcome and range of potential loss. We intend to contest the case through all
available means.

We are currently a party to various claims and legal proceedings, including those noted above.
We make provisions for a liability when it is both probable that a liability has been incurred and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. We believe we have made adequate provisions for
potential liability in litigation matters. We review these provisions at least quarterly and adjust these
provisions to reflect the impact of negotiations, settlements, rulings, advice of legat counsel and
other information and events pertaining to a particular case. Based on the information that is
currently available to us, we believe that the ultimate outcome of litigation matters, individually and in
the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on our results of operations or consolidated
financial position. However, litigation is inherently unpredictable. If an unfavorable ruling or outcome
were to occur, there is a possibility of a material adverse effect on results of operations or our
consolidated financial position.

Contingencies — Other

In connection with our past divestitures, we have routinely provided indemnities to cover the
indemnified party for matters such as environmental, tax, product and employee liabilities. We also
routinely include intellectual property indemnification provisions in our terms of sale, development
agreements and technology licenses with third parties. Since maximum obligations are not explicitly
stated in these indemnification provisions, the potential amount of future maximum payments
cannot be reasonably estimated. To date we have incurred minimal losses associated with these
indemnification obligations and as a result, we have not recorded any liabilities in our consolidated
financial statements.

Note 15. Segment and Geographic Information

We design, develop, manufacture and market a wide range of semiconductor products, most of
which are analog and mixed-signal integrated circuits. We are organized by various product line
business units. For segment reporting purposes, each of our product line business units represents
an operating segment as defined under SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise
and Related Information,” and our Chief Executive Officer is considered the chief operating decision-
maker. Business units that have similarities, including economic characteristics, underlying
technology, markets and customers, are aggregated into larger segments. For fiscal 2008, our Analog
segment, which accounted for 98 percent of net sales, is the only operating segment that meets the
criteria of a reportable segment under SFAS No. 131. Operating segments that do not meet the
criteria in SFAS No. 131 of a reportable segment are combined under “All Others.”

Product line business units that make up the Analog segment include amplifiers, audio, data
conversion, interface and power management which includes four different business units
{advanced power, infrastructure power, mobile devices power and performance power). These
business units represent the core analog standard linear focus and receive the majority of our
research and development investment funds. Other business units in our Analog segment that
feature a variety of mixed-signal products, which combine analog and digital circuitry onto the same
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chip, include ASIC and telecom, and Hi-Rel. The Analog segment is focused on utilizing our analog
and mixed-signal design expertise to develop high-performance building blocks and integrated
solutions aimed at end markets, such as wireless handsets and portable electronic devices, and at
applications for broader markets, such as industrial and medical equipment, automotive and
communications infrastructure.

Aside from these operating segments, our corporate structure in fiscal years 2008, 2007 and
2006 also included the centralized Worldwide Marketing and Sales Group, the Technology
Development Group, the Manufacturing Operations Group, and the Corporate Group. Certain
expenses of these groups are allocated to the operating segments and are included in their segment
operating results.

With the exception of the allocation of certain expenses, the significant accounting policies
and practices used to prepare the consolidated financial statements as described in Note 1 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements are generally followed in measuring the sales, segment income or
loss and determination of assets for each reportable segment. We allocate certain expenses
associated with centralized manufacturing, selling, marketing and general administration to
operating segments based on either the percentage of net trade sales for each operating segment to
total net trade sales or headcount, as appropriate. Certain R&D expenses primarily associated with
centralized activities such as process development are allocated to operating segments based on the
percentage of dedicated R&D expenses for each operating segment to total dedicated R&D expenses.
Interest income and expense are combined with other treasury related income/expenses and then
allocated to operating segments based on the percentage of net trade sales for each operating
segment to total net trade sales.
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The following table presents specified amounts included in the measure of segment operating
results or the determination of segment assets:

Analog All

(In Millions) Segment  Others Total
2008

Net sales to external customers $1,839.7 $ 46.2 $1,8859
Segment income before income (loss) taxes $ 5132 $ (62.0) $ 451.2
Depreciation and amaortization $ 70 $ 1267 § 1327
Interest income $ - $ 338 $ 338
Interest expense $ - % 855 $ 855
Share-based compensation expense $ 278 $ 619 $ 897
Gain on sale of manufacturing plant assets $ - % 31 %8 31
Litigation settlement $ - % 33 % 33
Segment assets $ 2205 $1,9286 $2,149.1
2007

Net sales to external customers $1,825.0 $ 1049 $1,9299
Segment income before income taxes $ 529.2 % 14 $ 530.6
Depreciation and amortization $ 7.3 $ 1374 $ 1447
Interest income $ - % 401 $ 4041
Interest expense $ - % 12 3 1.2
Share-based compensation expense $ 313 $ 802 $ 1115
In-process research and development charge $ 61 § - $ 64
Segment assets!" $ 2544 $1,9924 $2,246.8
2006

Net sales to external customers $1,929.7 $ 2284 $2,158.1
Segment income before income taxes $ 68561 $ 101 §$ 695.2
Depreciation and amortization $ 100 $ 1509 $ 1609
Interest income $ - $ 337 $ 337
Interest expense $ - % 1.9 § 1.9
Share-based compensation expense $ 37 $ 124 § 1641
Goodwill impairment loss $ 76 % - $ 78
Gain from sale of businesses $ 289 $ - $ 289
Share in net losses of equity-method investments $ 06 $ 01 $ 07
Segment assets'! $ 2432 $2,309.4 $2,552.6

i Amounts for fiscal 2007 and 2006 have been revised {See Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements).

Segment assets consist only of those assets that are specifically dedicated to an operating
segment and include inventories, equipment, equity investments, goodwill and amortizable
intangibles assets. Since the end of fiscal 2006, we have had no equity method investments included
in segment assets of the Analog segment. Depreciation and amortization presented for each
segment include only such charges on dedicated segment assets. Similarly, share-based
compensation expense presented for each segment includes only such charges related to
employees who directly support the operating segments. The measurement of segment profit and
loss includes an allocation of depreciation expense for shared manufacturing facilities and share-
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based compensation expense associated with direct labor contained in the standard cost of product
for each segment. ‘

Our revenues from external customers are derived from the sales of semiconductor product
and engineering-related services. For fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, sales from engineering-related
services were immaterial and are included with semiconductor product sales. Our semiconductor
product sales consist of integrated circuit components and are considered a group of similar
products.

Net sales to major customers as a percentage of total net sales were as follows:

May 25, May 27, May 28,

Years Ended: 2008 2007 2006
Distributor:

Avnet 15% 14% 12%

Arrow 12% 13% 12%
OEM:

Nokia 11% * *

* less than 10%

Sales to the distributors included above are mostly for our Analog segment products, but also
include some sales for our other operating segment products. Sales to Nokia are primarily for our
Analog segment products.

We operate our marketing and sales activities in four main geographic regions that include the
Americas, Asia Pacific, Europe and Japan. Total sales by geographical area include sales to
unaffiliated customers and inter-geographic transfers, which are based on standard cost, To control
costs, a substantial portion of our products are transported between the Americas, Asia Pacific region
and Europe in the process of being manufactured and sold. In the information presented below, we
have excluded these inter-geographic transfers.
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The following tables provide geographic sales to and asset information by major countries
within the main geographic areas:

{In Millions) 2008 2007 2006
Net sales:
United States $ 3855 $ 4284 $ 4289
Foreign locations:
People’s Republic of China 573.8 539.2 573.5
Singapore 309.9 3409 479.7
Japan 200.6 2171.7 280.1
Germany 204.4 2135 2195
United Kingdom 211.7 190.2 176.4
1,500.4 1,501.5 1,729.2
Total net sales $1,885.9 $1,920.9 $2,158.1
{In Millions} 2008 2007 2006
Long-lived assets:
United States $ 5209 $ 486.2 $ 516.1
Foreign locations:
Malaysia 93.9 113.3 154.6
United Kingdom 735 69.0 61.4
Rest of World 41.6 48.4 52.8
209.0 230.7 268.8
Total long-lived assets $ 7209 $ 7169 $ 7849
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Note 16. Financial Information by Quarter {Unaudited)

The following table presents the unaudited quarterly information for fiscal 2008 and 2007:

(In Millions, Except Per Share Amounts)

Fourth Third Second First
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

2008

Net sales
Gross margin
Net income

$462.0 $453.4 $499.0 $4715
$304.6 $291.7 $321.2 $296.9
$832 $729 $906 $ 856

Earnings per share:
Net income:
Basic
Diluted

$03 $030 $035 §$ 032
$034 $029 $033 $0.30

Weighted-average common and potential common

shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

236.8 2454 258.9 270.1
246.3 255.5 271.5 283.9

Common stock price - high
Common stock price - low

$21.95 $24.96 $27.70 $29.69
$16.21  $16.73 $21.76 $24.08

2007

Net sales
Gross margin
Net income

$455.9 $431.0 $501.6 $541.4
$284.8 $257.7 $2954 $334.3
$901 $737 § 914 $120.1

Earnings per share:
Net income:
Basic
Diluted

$029 $023 $028 $ 036
$028 $022 §$027 $ 035

Weighted-average common and potential common

shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

312.0 315.7 320.9 329.5
327.5 330.1 335.6 343.7

Common stock price — high
Common stock price — low

$28.08 $25.76 $25.81 $26.66
$23.52 $21.656 $22.70 $20.56

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange. The quoted market prices are
as reported on the New York Stock Exchange Composite Tape. At May 25, 2008, there were
approximately 5.7 thousand holders of common stock. The graph showing the performance of our
stock over the last five years can be found in item 5 of this Form 10-K.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
National Semiconductor Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of National Semiconductor
Corporation and subsidiaries (the Company) as of May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2007, and the related
consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for
each of the years in the three-year period ended May 25, 2008. In connection with our audits of the
consolidated financial statements, we also have audited the accompanying financial statement
schedule included in Item 15({a)2. These consoclidated financial statements and financial statement
schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of National Semiconductor Corporation and subsidiaries as
of May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2007, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of
the years in the three-year period ended May 25, 2008, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered
in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all
material respects, the information set forth therein,

As discussed in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted the
provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an interpretation of Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement
No. 109, at the beginning of fiscal year 2008. Also, as discussed in note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), Share-
Based Payment, applying the modified prospective method at the beginning of fiscal year 2007.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board {United States), the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of
May 25, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework, issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQO), and our report dated
July 21, 2008, expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting.

/s{ KPMG LLP

Mountain View, California
July 21, 2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Sharehclders
National Semiconductor Corporation:

We have audited National Semiconductor Corporation and subsidiaries’ {the Company) internal
control over financial reporting as of May 25, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Contro/ -
Integrated Framework, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COS0). The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting included in the accompanying Management's Annual Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting in ltem 9A. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
intarnal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control aver financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Qur audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Qur audit also
included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, National Semiconductor Corporation and subsidiaries maintained, in all
rmaterial respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of May 25, 2008, based on
criteria established in /nternal Control — Integrated Framework, issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board {United States), the consolidated balance sheets of National Semiconductor
Corporation and subsidiaries as of May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2007, and the related consolidated
statements of income, comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not applicable,
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are intended to ensure that the information
required to be disclosed in our Exchange Act fitings is properly and timely recorded, processed,
summarized and reported. In designing and evaluating our disclosure controls and procedures, our
management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and
operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives and that
management necessarily is required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship
of possible controls and procedures. Since we have investments in certain unconsolidated entities
which we do not contro! or manage, our disclosure controls and procedures with respect to such
entities are necessarily substantially more limited than those we maintain for our consolidated
subsidiaries.

We have a disclosure controls committee comprised of key individuals from a variety of
disciplines in the company that are involved in the disclosure and reporting process. The committee
meets regularly to ensure the timeliness, accuracy and completeness of the information required to
be disclosed in our filings containing financial statements. As required by SEC Rule 13a-15(b), the
committee reviewed this Form 10-K and also met with the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief
Financial Officer to review this Form 10-K and the required disclosures and the effectiveness of the
design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures. The committee performed an
evaluation, under the supervision of and with the participation of management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the year covered by this report. Based on that
evaluation and their supervision of and participation in the process, our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability and accuracy of the information disclosed in
this Form 10-K.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

QOur management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of our financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external reporting purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. Internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that {i} pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(i) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorization of
management and directors of the company; and ({iii} provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Management assessed our internal control over financial reporting as of May 25, 2008, the end

of our 2008 fiscal year. Management conducted its evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting based on the framework established in Internal Control-Integrated
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Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
Management’s assessment included evaluation of such elements as the design and operating
effectiveness of key reporting controls, process documentation, accounting policies, and our overall
contral environment. This assessment is supported by testing and monitoring performed by our
internal audit and finance personnel.

Based on our assessment, our management has concluded that our internal control over
financial reporting was effective as of the end of our 2008 fiscal year to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
reporting purposes in accordance with U.S, generally accepted accounting principles. We reviewed
the results of this assessment with the audit committee of our board of directors.

Our independent registered public accounting firm, KPMG LLP, independently assessed the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. KPMG has issued an unqualified
attestation report, which is included under ltem 8 of this Form 10-K as a separate Report of
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls

Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect
that our disclosure controls or our internal control over financial reporting will prevent or detect all
error and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only
reasonable, not absclute, assurance that the control system’s objectives will be met. The design of a
control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints and the benefits of controls
must be considered relative to their costs. Further, because of inherent limitations in all control
systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that misstatements due to error or
fraud will not occur or that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the company have
been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can
be faulty and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake. Controls can alsc be
circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by
management override of the controls. The design of any system of controls is based in part on certain
assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will
succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions. Projections of any
evaluation of controls effectiveness to future periods are subject to risks. Over time, controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions or deterioration in the degree on compliance
with policies or procedures.

Changes in Internal Controls

As part of our efforts to ensure compliance with the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, we conduct a continual review of our internal control over financial reporting. The
review is an ongoing process and it is possible that we may institute additional or new internal
controls over financial reporting as a result of the review. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, we
did not make any changes in our internal controls over financial reporting that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal controls over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable.
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PART il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The following information appearing in our Proxy Statement for the 2008 annual meeting of
shareholders to be held on or about September 25, 2008 and which will be filed in definitive form
pursuant to Regulation 14A on or about August 15, 2008 (hereinafter 2008 Proxy Statement”), is
incorporated herein by reference:

« information concerning our directors appearing in the section on the proposal relating to
election of directors; .

» information appearing under the subcaptions “Audit Committee,” “Section 16{a) Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance,” and “’Code of Business Conduct and Ethics™ appearing
in the section titled “"Corporate Governance, Board Meetings and Committees.”

" oi

Information concerning our executive officers is set forth in Part | of this Form 10-K under the
caption “Executive Officers of the Registrant.”

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information appearing in the section titled “Executive Compensation” (including all related
subcaptions thereof), under the subcaptions “Director Compensation” and “Compensation
Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” in the section titled “Corporate Governance, Board
Meetings and Committees,” and in the section titled “Compensation Committee Report” in the 2008
Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information concerning the only known ownership of more than 5 percent of our outstanding
common stock appearing in the section titled “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners” in
the 2008 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference. The information concerning the
ownership of our equity securities by directors, certain executive officers and directors and officers
as a group appearing under the caption “Security Ownership of Management” in the 2008 Proxy
Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

Equity Compensation Plans

The following table summarizes share and exercise price information about our equity compensation

plans as of May 25, 2008,

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Plan Category

Number of
securities to be issued
upon exercise of
outstanding options,

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding
options, warrants

Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under
equity compensation
plans (excluding securities

warrants, and rights and rights reflected in column {a})
{a} {b) (c}
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders:
Stock Option Plan 4,269,100 $22.27 472,602
Executive Officer Stock Option Plan 0,948,522 $14.14 5,000
Director Stock Option Plant" 430,000 $14.04 -
2007 Employees Equity Plan®
Options® 954,250 $19.07 12,045,750
Restricted Stock / Restricted Stock Units - - 910,650
Employee Stock Purchase Plan - - 8,832,810
Director Stack Plan - - 333,771
2005 Executive Officer Equity Plan:®
Options™ 784,000 $25.94 1,716,000
Performance share units at target 627,832 - 1,867,168
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders:
1997 Employees Stock Option Plan'® 38,548,070 $20.83
Restricted Stock Plan:™
Time based RSU 10,000
Parformance based RSU 30,000
40,000 -
Total 55,601,774 26,183,751
Y The Director Stock Option Plan has been frozen and no further awards can be made under this plan.
121 The 2007 Employees Equity Plan allows for shares to be issued upon the exercise of options and the vesting of
restricted stock and restricted stock units.
@ The amount shown in column (¢) excludes 910,650 shares available for future issuance as awards of restricted stock
and restricted stock units which, if not used, can be used for stock options under the 2007 Employees Equity Plan.
@ Includes shares to be issued upon the exercise of options, as well as shares issued upon payment of performance
share awards.
5 The amount shown in column {c} excludes 1,500,000 shares available for future issuance of shares issued upon

payment of performance share units which, if not used, can be used for stock options under the 2005 Executive Officer

Equity Plan.
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) Includes shares to be issued upon exercise of options under the 1997 Employees Stock Option Plan, This plan has
been frozen and no further awards can be made under this plan.

it Includes shares to be issued upon vesting of restricted stock units. This plan has been frozen and no further awards
can be made under this plan.

Information about our Equity Compensation Plans not Approved by Stockholders

The 1997 Employees Stock Option Plan provided for the grant of non-qualified stock options to
employees who ‘are not executive officers of the company. Options were granted at the closing
market price on the date of grant and can expire up to a maximum of six years and one day after grant
or three months after termination of employment (up to five years after termination due to death,
disability or retirement), whichever occurs first. Options can begin to vest after six months; all
options granted in the last three fiscal years begin to vest after one year, with vesting completed on a
monthly basis ratably over the next three years. The plan was frozen in September 2007 and no
further options can be granted under it.

QOur Restricted Stock Plan authorized the issuance of restricted stock to employees who are not
officers of the company. The plan was made available to employees with skills and technical
expertise considered impartant to us. The plan also allowed for the issuance of stock upon expiration
of restrictions imposed on restricted stock units. Restricted stock units granted with time based
restrictions vest over time, ranging from one to six years after issuance. Restricted stock units
granted with performance based restrictions vest upon satisfaction of the performance conditions at
the completion of a minimum two-year performance period. The plan was frozen in September 2007
and no further awards can be made under it.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information appearing under the subcaptions “Related Transactions” and “Director
Independence” in the section titled “’Corporate Governance, Board Meetings and Committees” in the
2008 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information presented in the section on the proposal relating to ratification of the appointment of
the independent auditor, including the information concerning fees paid to KPMG LLP, appearing in
the 2008 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.
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| PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Pages in
{a} 1. Financial Statements this document
National Semiconductor Corporation and Subsidiaries
For each of the years in the three-year period ended May 25, 2008 - refer to
Index in ltem 8 53-108
(a) 2. Financial Statement Schedules
Schedule Il - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 115

All other schedules are omitted since the required information is inapplicable or the information
is presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements or notes thereto.

{a) 3. Exhibits

The exhibits listed in the accompanying Index to Exhibits on pages 118 to 121 of this report are
filed as part of, or incorporated by reference into, this report.
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NATIONAL SEMICONDUCTOR CORPORATION
SCHEDULE Il - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
{In Millions)

Deducted from Receivables
in the Consolidated Balance Sheets

D _— Doubtful

Description Accounts Returns Allowances  Total

Balance at May 29, 2005 $1.7 $3.6 $ 214 $ 26.7
Additions charged against revenue - 5.9 210.9 216.8
Additions charged against cost and expenses 0.1 - - 0.1
Deductions (0.3 (6.0} {198.5) (204.8})

Balance at May 28, 2006 1.5 35 338 38.8
Additions charged against revenue - 2.3 198.6 200.9
Deductions (0.3)" (3.0) - {204.0} {207.3)

Balance at May 27, 2007 1.2 2.8 284 324
Additions charged against revenue - 24 191.8 194.2
Additions charged against cost and expenses 0.1 - - 0.1
Deductions - {3.1) {198.2) . (201.3)

Balance at May 25, 2008 $1.3 $2.1 $ 220 $ 254

m Doubtful accounts written off, less recoveries,

Qur customers do not have contractual rights to return product to us except under customary
warranty provisions. The majority of returns and allowances are related to the price adjustment
programs we have with distributors, none of which involve return of product. As discussed in Note 1
to the Consolidated Financial Statements, we have agreements with our distributors that cover
various programs, including pricing adjustments based on resale pricing and volume, price
protection for inventory and scrap allowances. The revenue we record for these distribution sales is
net of estimated provisions for these programs. Qur estimates are based upon historical experience
rates by geography and product family, inventory levels in the distribution channel, current economic
trends, and other related factors. Our history of actual credits granted in connection with the
allowance programs has been consistent with the reserves we have recorded.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15{(d} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

NATIONAL SEMICONDUCTOR CORPORATION

Date: July 21, 2008 /S/ BRIAN L. HALLA

Brian L. Halla
Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been
signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities stated and on
the 21% day of July 2008.

Signature Title

Chairman of the Board
5! gg;ﬁNLLH:ﬁLLA and Chief Executive Officer

{Principal Executive Officer)

Senior Vice President, Finance

/S/ LEWIS CHEW and Chief Financial Officer

Lewis Chew (Principal Financial Officer)
/S/ JAMIE E. SAMATH Corporate Cantroller
Jamie E. Samath {Principat Accounting Officer)

/S/ STEVEN R. APPLETON *

Steven R. Appleton Director

/S/ GARY P ARNOLD * Director
Gary P Arnold

/S/ RICHARD J. DANZIG * .
Richard J. Danzig Director

7S/ JOHN T. DICKSON * Director
John T. Dickson

/S/ ROBERT J. FRANKENBERG * Director
Robert J. Frankenberg

/S/ E. FLOYD KVAMME * Director
E. Floyd Kvamme °

/S/ MODESTO A. MAIDIQUE * Director
Modesto A. Maidique

/S/ EDWARD R. McCRACKEN * Di

irector

Edward R. McCracken

*By \s\ LEWIS CHEW
Lewis Chew, Attorney-in-Fact
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Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
National Semiconductor Corporation:

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statement (No. 333-143571) on
Form 5-3 and (Nos. 33-48943, 333-09957, 333-36733, 333-48424, 333-63614, 333-109348,
333-119963, 333-129585, and 333-146600) on Form S-8 of National Semiconductor Corporation of
our reports dated July 21, 2008, with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of National
Semiconductor Corporation and subsidiaries (the Company) as of May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2007,
and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity,
and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended May 25, 2008, and the related
financial statement schedule, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of
May 25, 2008, which reports appear in the 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K of National
Semiconductor Corporation.

Qur report on the consolidated financial statements refers to the Company’s adoption of
Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes ~ an interpretation of Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 109, at the
beginning of fiscal year 2008. Our report on the consolidated financial statements also refers to the
Company’s adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), Share-Based
Payment, at the beginning of fiscal year 2007.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Mountain View, California
July 21, 2008
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Item 14{a) (3)
The following documents are filed as part of this report:

1.

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

10.1

10.2

Financial Statements: reference is made to the Financial Statements described under Part IV,
ltem 14(a) (1).

Other Exhibits:

Second Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, as amended (incorporated by
reference from the Exhibits to our Registration Statement on Form S-3 Registration
No. 33-52775, which bacame effective March 22, 1994); Certificate of Amandment of
Certificate of Incorporation dated September 30, 1994 (incorporated by reference from the
Exhibits to our Registration Statement on Form S-8 Registration No. 333-09957, which
became effective August 12, 1996); Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation
dated September 22, 2000 (incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to our Registration
Statement on Form S-8 Registration No. 333-48424, which became effective Qctober 23,
2000).

By-Laws of the Company, as amended effective April 16, 2008 (incorporated by reference
from the Exhibits to our Form 8-K dated April 16, 2008 filed April 18, 2008}.

Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to our
Registration Statement on Form S-3 Registration No. 33-48935, which became effective
October 5, 1992).

Form of Indenture {incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to our Registration Statement
on Form S-3 Registration No. 333-143571 which became effective June 7, 2007). Form of
Supplemental Indenture for Senior Floating Rate Notes due 2010; Form of Supplemental
Indenture for 6.150% Senior Notes due 2012; Form of Supplemental Indenture for 6.60%
Senior Notes due 2017 (all incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to our Form 8-K dated
June 13, 2007 filed June 18, 2007).

Form of Global Note for Senior Floating Rate Notes due 2010; Form of Global Note for
6.150% Senior Notes due 2012; Form of Global Note for 6.600% Senior Notes due 2017 (all
incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to our Form 8-K dated June 13, 2007 filed
June 18, 2007).

Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement: Executive Officer Incentive
Plan as amended effective July 14, 2004 (incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to our
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 30, 2004 filed August 11, 2004). Executive Officer
Incentive Plan Agreement {incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to our Form 8-K dated
July 18, 2008 filed July 20, 2006).

Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Agreement: Stock Option Plan, as amended
effective February 26, 2007; Form of stock option agreement used for options granted under
the Stock Option Plan (both incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to our Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended February 25, 2007 filed April 5, 2007).
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10.3

10.4

10.56

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Agreement: Executive Officer Stock Option
Plan, as amended effective February 26, 2007; Form of stock option agreement used for
options granted under the Executive Officer Stock Option Plan (both incorporated by
reference from the Exhibits to our Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 25, 2007 filed
April 5, 2007).

Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement: Director Stock Plan as
amended and restated effective August 13, 2005 (incorporated by reference from the
Exhibits to our Registration Statement on Form $-8 Registration No. 333-129585 filed
November 9, 2005).

Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement: Director Stock Option Plan
(incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
May 29, 2005 filed August 9, 2005). Form of stock option agreement used for options granted
under the Director Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to our
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November 28, 2004 filed January 6, 2005).

Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement: Board Retirement Policy
{incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
May 29, 2005 filed August 8, 2005).

Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement: Preferred Life Insurance
Program (incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to our Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended May 29, 2005 filed August 9, 2005).

Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement: Retired Officers and Directors
Health Plan {incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to our Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended May 28, 2006 filed July 27, 2006).

Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Agreement: Executive Staff Long Term
Disability Plan as amended January 1, 2002 as restated July 2002 (incorporated by reference
from the Exhibits to our Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November 24, 2002 filed January 6,
2003).

Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Agreement: Form of Change of Control
Employment Agreement entered into with Executive Officers of the Company (incorporated
by reference from the Exhibits to our Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November 25,2007
filed January 4, 2008). Form of Change of Control Employment Agreement entered into with
Todd M. DeChene.

Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Agreement: National Semiconductor
Deferred Compensation Plan as amended and restated effective as of January 1, 2008
(incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to our Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
November 25, 2007 filed January 4, 2008).

Equity Compensation Plan not approved by Stockholders: Restricted Stock Plan as amended
effective July 18, 2007 (incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to our Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended May 27, 2007 filed July 26, 2007); Form of agreements used for grants of
restricted stock, restricted stock units and performance based restricted stock units under
the Restricted Stock Plan (form of agreements incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to
our Form 8-K dated July 18, 2006 filed July 20, 2006}.
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10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

Equity Compensation Plan not approved by Stockholders: 1997 Employees Stock Option
Plan, as amended effective February 26, 2007; Form of stock option agreement used for
options granted under the 1997 Employees Stock Option plan (both incorporated by
reference from the Exhibits to our Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 25, 2007 filed
April 5, 2007).

Equity Compensation Plan not approved by Stockholders: Retirement and Savings Program
{incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to our Form 10-K for the year ended May 26,
2002 filed August 16, 2002). Amendments One to Seven to Retirement and Savings Program
(incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
May 30, 2004 filed August 11, 2004}. Amendment Eight to Retirement and Savings Program
{incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to our Form 8-K dated September 22, 2005 filed
September 22, 2005).

Management Contract or Compsensatory Plan or Arrangement: Executive Physical Exam
Plan effective January 1, 2003 (incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to our Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended November 24, 2002 filed January 6, 2003).

Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement: Executive Preventive Health
Program, January 2003 (incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to our Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended February 23, 2003 filed April 2, 2003).

Management Caontract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement: 2005 Executive Officer Equity
Plan as amended effective September 28, 2007 (incorporated by reference from the Exhibits
to our Registration Statement on Form 5-8 Registration No. 333-122652 filed October 10,
2007); Form of option grant agreement under 2005 Executive Officer Equity Plan; Form of
performance share unit award agreement under 2005 Executive Officer Equity Plan {both
incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to our amended Form 8-K dated September 28,
2007 filed October 2, 2007).

Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement: Director Compensation
Arrangements (incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to our Form 8-K dated
September 30, 2005 filed September 30, 2005).

Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement: Executive Financial
Counseling Plan (incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to our Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended May 29, 2005 filed August 9, 2005).

Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement: Corporate Aircraft Time
Share Policy as amended effective May 26, 2008.

Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement: Executive Officer Salary
Arrangements.

Master Confirmation {Accelerated Stock Buyback) dated June 7, 2007 between National
Semiconductor Corporation and Goldman Sachs & Co. {incorporated by reference from the
Exhibits to our Form 8-K/A dated June 7, 2007 filed June 12, 2007).

Master Confirmation {Collared Accelerated Stock Buyback) dated June 7, 2007 between
National Semiconductor Corporation and Goldman Sachs & Co. (incorporated by reference
from the Exhibits to our Form 8-K/A dated June 7, 2007 filed June 12, 2007).
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10.24 Credit Agreement dated June 7, 2007 between National Semiconductor, various lenders
thereto and Goldman Sachs Credit Partners L.P. {incorporated by reference from the Exhibits
to our Form 8-K/A dated June 7, 2007 filed June 12, 2007).

10.25 Credit Agreement dated July 20, 2007 between various lenders, Goldman Sachs Credit
Partners L.P as Syndication Agent and Bank of America, N.A. as Administrative Agent
{(incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to our Form 8-K filed July 20, 2007).

141  Code of Ethics,

211 List of Subsidiaries and Affiliates.

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (included in Part V).

24.1 Power of Attorney.

311 Rule 13a-14 (a} /15d-14 (a) Certifications.

321 Section 1350 Certifications.
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Exhibit 21.1

NATIONAL SEMICONDUCTOR CORPORATION
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES OF THE REGISTRANT

The following table shows certain information with respect to our active subsidiaries and affiliates as
of May 25, 2008, all of which are included in our consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES OF NATIONAL SEMICONDUCTOR CORPORATION

Percent of
Voting
State or Other  Other Country In Securities
Jurisdiction of  Which Subsidiary Owned
Name Incorporation is Registered by National
Algorex Inc. California 100%
DigitalQuake, Inc. California 100%
innoCOMM Wireless California 100%
Maediamatics, Inc. California 100%
National Semiconductor International, Inc. Delaware 100%
National Semiconductor {Maine), Inc. Dslaware 100%
National Semiconductor Malaysia LLC Delaware 100%
ASIC It Limited Hawaii 100%
National Semiconductor B.V. Corporation Delaware 100%
National Semiconductor Estonia Qu Estonia 100%
National Semiconductor Finland Oy Finland 100%
Nationa! Semiconductor France S.AR.L. France 100%
National Semiconductor GmbH Germany 100%
National Semiconductor Germany AG Germany 100%
National Semiconductor {I.C.} Ltd. Israel 100%
Nationat Semiconductor S.r.l. Italy 100%
National Semiconductor Aktiebolog Sweden 100%
National Semiconductor Sweden Aktiebolog Swaeden 100%
Denmark, Belgium
Finland, Spain,
National Semiconductor (U.K.} Ltd. Great Britain Netherlands 100%
National Semiconductor (U.K.}) Holdings Ltd. Great Britain 100%
National Semiconductor (U.K.} Pension Trust
Company Ltd. Great Britain 100%
National Semiconductor Benelux B.V. Netherlands 100%
National Semiconductor B.V. Netherlands 100%
National Semiconductor International B.V, Netherlands 100%
Natsem India Designs Pvt. Ltd. India 100%
National Semiconductor Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong 100%
National Semiconductor (Far East) Limited Hong Kong Taiwan 100%
National Semiconductor Hong Kong Sales Limited Hong Kong 100%
National Semiconductor Services Limited Hong Kong 100%
National Semiconductor Manufacturing Hong Kong
Limited Hong Kong 100%
National Semiconductor International Hong Kong
Limited Hong Kong 100%
National Semiconductor Japan Ltd. Japan 100%
National Semiconductor Korea Limited Korea 100%
National Semiconductor Labuan Ltd. Malaysia 100%
National Semiconductor SDN. BHD. Malaysia 100%
National Semiconductor Technology SDN. BHD. Malaysia 100%
National Semiconductor Services Malaysia SDN BHD Malaysia 100%




Percent of
Voting
State or Other  Other Country In Securities
Jurisdiction of Which Subsidiary Owned
Name Incorporation is Registered by National
National Semiconductor Holding SDN BHD Malaysia 100%
National Semiconductor Pte. Ltd. Singapore 100%
National Semiconductor Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd. Singapore 100%
National Semiconductor Manufacturer Singapore
Pte. Ltd. Singapore 100%
People's
Republic of
National Semiconductor Shanghai Limited China 100%
People’s
Republic of
National Semiconductor Management Shanghai Ltd. China 100%
People's
Republic of
National Semiconductor {Suzhou} Ltd. China 100%
People’s
Republic of
National Semiconductor Manufacturing China Trust China Hong Kong 100%
National Semiconductor Canada, inc. Canada 100%
National Semicondutores do Brasil Ltda. Brazil 100%
National Semicondutores da America do Sul Lid. Brazil 100%
Electronica NSC de Mexico, S.A. de C.V. Mexico 100%
British Virgin
National Semiconductor Investments, Ltd. Islands 100%
British Virgin
National Semiconductor Investments Il, Ltd Islands 100%




Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Brian L. Halla, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of National Semiconductor Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer{s) and | are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures {as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e}
and 15d-15(e})) and internal control over financial reporting {as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f}) for the registrant and have:

{a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls
and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information retating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
report is being prepared;

{b)  Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control
over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

(¢}  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

(d}  Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer{s} and | have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of the registrant’'s board of directors {or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of
internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect
the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;
and

{b}  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: July 21, 2008 s\ Brian L. Halla

Brian L. Halia
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer




CERTIFICATION

|, Lewis Chew, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of National Semiconductor Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e)
and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting {as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15{f) and 15d-15{f)} for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls
and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
report is being prepared;

(b)  Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control
over financial reporting to be designed under our supervisions, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
staterments for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

{c)  Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation; and

(d)  Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation of internal contro! over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) Al significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of
internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect
the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information;
and

{b}  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: July 21, 2008 \s\ Lewis Chew

Lewis Chew
Senior Vice President, Finance and Chief
Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of National Semiconductor Corporation (the “Company”} on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 25, 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, Brian L. Halla, Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

{1)  The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13{a) or Section 15(d}, as
applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1834, and

(2)  The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: July 21, 2008 \s\ Brian L. Halla

Brian L, Halla
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer




CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of National Semiconductor Corporation {the “Company”) on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 25, 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, Lewis Chew, Senior Vice President, Finance and
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

{1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15{d), as
applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and

{2)  The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: July 21, 2008 \s\ Lewis Chew

Lewis Chew
Senior Vice President, Finance and
Chief Financial Officer




Board of Directors

Brian L. Halla, Chairman

Brian L. Halla, Chairman, joined the Company as Chairman of the
Board, President and Chief Executive Officer on May 3, 1995. He
was formerly Executive Vice President of LS) Logic Corporation,
responsible far the development of all LS) Logic product lines. Prior
to that, he was with Intel Corporation for 14 years, most recently as
Director of Marketing for Intel's Microcomputer Group. Effective the
beginning of fiscal 2008, he became Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.

Steven R. Appleton

Steven R. Appleton is the Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer of Micron Technology, Inc. He was also President of Micron
from 1994 until 2007. Micron is a leading worldwide provider of
semiconductor memory solutions for computer and computer-
peripheral manufacturing, consumer electronics, CAD/CAM, office
automation, telecommunications, networking and data processing,
and graphics display. Mr. Appteton joined Micron in 1983 and
has held a series of increasingly responsible pesitions, including
Production Manager, Director of Manutacturing, and Vice President
of Manufacturing.

Gary P. Arnold

Gary P Arnold has extensive experience in the international
electronics industry in finance, strategic planning and operations.
From 1993 to 2000 he was President, Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of the Board of Analogy, Inc., a supplier of product design
and simuiation software headquartered in Beaverton, Oregon. Prior
to that, he held Chief Financial Officer positions at Tektronix, Inc.
and at National Semiconductor.

Richard J. Danzig

Richard J. Danzig served as Secretary of the Navy in the Clinton
administration from 1998 to 2001. Prior to that, he was a Traveling
Fellow in Asia and Europe for the Center for International Political
Economy and an Adjunct Professor at Syracuse University's Maxwell
School of Citizenship and Public Affairs. He also served previously
as a member of National Semiconductor's board, from 1987 to 1993.
Mr. Danzig is a graduate of Reed College and also has degrees
from Yale Law School and from Oxford University, where he was a
Rhodes Scholar. He currently serves on a number of advisory boards
addressing defense and security issues.

John T. Dickson

John T. Dickson is the former President and Chief Executive Officer of
Agere Systems, a global leader in storage, wireless data and networks.
He serves on the Board of Directors of Mettler-Toledo Imemational inc,
and KLA-Tencor Corparation and previously served on the Board of the SiA.
He has extensive experience in the semiconductor industry, having held
executive positions at Lucent {Microelectronics Group), AT&T {integrated
Circuit Business Unit), Shographics and Headland Technology.

Robert J. Frankenberg

Robert J. Frankenberg is the former Chairman, President and CEQ
of Encanto Networks, Inc., and also previously served as Chairman,
President and CEQ of Novell, Inc. Prior to that, he served as Vice
President and General Manager of Hewlett-Packard’s Personal
Informatien Products Group. He has been a management consultant
with Net Ventures since 1996, He has a degree in computer
engineering from San Jose State University and is an SEP graduate
of Stanford University’s Graduate School of Business.

E. Floyd Kvamme

E. Floyd Kvamme is a Partner, emeritus, at Kleiner, Perkins, Caufield
& Byers, a high-technology venture capital firm responsible for
developing companies from early start-up to the IPO phase and beyond.
He is also co-chair of the Presidential Council of Advisors on Science
and Technology. Mr. Kvamme was one of five members of the team
that began at National Semicenducter in 1967, serving as its General
Manager and building it into a billion-doflar company. He holds two
degrees in electrical engineering. Mr. Kvamme is retiring from the
Board at the time of the 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Dr. Modesto A. Maidigue

Dr. Modesto A, Maidigue has been President of Fiorida International
University since 1986. Florida International is a public research
university with an enrollment of 38,000 students. Prigr to that, he
served on the faculties of Stanford University, Harvard University
and the Massachusetts Institute of Technology. He was a co-founder
of Analog Devices Inc. and served as Vice President and General
Manager of Analog Devices' Linear IC Division.

Edward R. McCracken

Edward R. McCracken retired as Chairman of Silicon Graphics, Inc.,
Mountain View, California, in 1998. SGI designs, manufactures
and markets visual computer systems used for conceptual design,
anatysis and simulation, Previously, he worked for Hewlett-Packard
for 16 years. He is the former co-chairman of the United States
Advisory Council on the Information Infrastructure and also the former
ca-chairman of Joint Venture: Silicon Valley Netwark,




Management

Directors

Steven R. Appleton
Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer,
Micron Technology, Inc.

Gary P. Arnold*

Former President, Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer,
Analogy, Inc.

Richard J. Danzig*

Senior Feltow,

Center for Naval Analyses
Former Secretary of the Navy

John T. Dickson*
Former President and Chief Executive
Officer, Agere Systems Inc.

Robert J. Frankenberg*
Former Chairman, President and
CEQ, Novell, Inc.

Brian L. Halla

Chairman and

Chief Executive Dfficer

National Semiconductor Corporation

E. Floyd Kvamme

Partner, emeritus, Kleiner, Perkins
Caufield & Byers, Venture

Capital Firm

{retiring from the Board at the time of the
2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders)

Modesto A. Maidique
President, Florida
International University

Edward R. McCracken
Former Chairman

and Chief Executive Officer
Silicon Graphics, Inc.

*Member of the Audit Cosmitiue

Executive Stafi

Brian L. Halla
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

Donald Macleod
President and
Chief Operating Officer

Lewis Chew
Senior Vice President, Finance
and Chief Financial Officer

Todd DuChene
Senior Vice President,
General Counsel and Secretary

Detlev Kunz
Senior Vice President,
Power Management Products Group

C.S. Liu
Senior Vice President,
Worldwide Manufacturing

Michael E. Noonen
Senior Vice President,
Worldwide Marketing and Sales

Suneil Parulekar
Senior Vice President,
Signal Path Products Graup

Ulrich Seif

Senior Vice President,
Manufacturing Services and
Chief Information Officer

Edward J. Sweeney
Senior Vice President,
Human Resources

Mohan Yegnashankaran
Senior Vice President,
Worldwide Technology Development

Other Officers

Robert E. DeBarr
Treasurer

Jamie E. Samath
Corporate Controller

Nancy Lucke Ludgus
Assistant Secretary




Corporate Information

Ata Glance

National Semiconductor creates energy-efficient analog and mixed-
signal semiconductors enabling systems that consume less power,
extend battery life, and generate less heat. National’s leading-edge
products include powes management circuits, display drivers, audio
and operational amplifiers, communication interface products and
data conversion solutions.

Founded
1959

Headquarters
Santa Clara, California

Employees
7.300*

*Figure as of the end of Fiscal Year 2008

Stock Exchange, Listing Symbol
New York Stock Exchange: NSM

Fiscal Year
May 28, 2007 to May 25, 2008

2008 Sales
$1.89 billion

Chief Executive Officer
Brian L. Halla

Unexpired U.S. Patents
3,100

Web Site Address
www.national.com

Worldwide Dperations
Headquarters:

National Semiconductor Corparation
2800 Semiconductor Drive

PO. Box 58090

Santa Clara, California

95052-8030

Telephone {408) 721-5000

Corporate Information

Transfer agent and registrar
Computershare Trust Company, N.A.
P, Box 43078

Providence, Ri 02940-3078

{877) 498-8865
www.computershare.com

Independent Auditors
KPMG LLP

Officer Certifications

National filed the required CEQ Certification with the New Yark
Stock Exchange in October 2007 after the 2007 annual meeting.
The CEQ and CFO certifications required under Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act have been filed with the SEC as an exhibit to
the Form 10-K for fiscal 2008.

Shareholder Information

Common Stock Data

The Company's common stock is traded on the New York Stock
Exchange.

Annual Meeting of Shareholders

The annual meeting will be held on or about September 25, 2008.
A notice of the meeting, together with a form of proxy and a proxy
statement, will be mailed to shareholders on or about August 15, 2008,
at which time proxies will be solicited by the Board of Directors.

Note to All Shareholders

Keep the transter agent informed of your current address. Failure
to do so may require National to report your shares to the state
as unclaimed property even if National does not have physical
possession of your stock certificate. This can result in “escheat” of
your shares to the state.

Form 10-K

ifyou would like to receive afree copy ofthe company’s “Form
10-K" filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
please send your request to:

Investor Relations

Mailstop G2-397

National Semiconductoer Corporation
P.0. Box 58090

Santa Clara, California

95052-8030

Telephone (408} 721-5800

PawerWise® is a registered trademark and SolarMagic™ is a rademark of National Semiconducter Corparation. All other brands or preduct names are trademarks or regisiered irademarks of their

respective holders. All rights reserved,
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Santa Clara, CA 95052

Investor Relations
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